
PLANNING COMMITTEE
10.00 am

THURSDAY
30 JANUARY 2020

COUNCIL CHAMBER - SHIRE 
HALL, GLOUCESTER

MEETING PAPERS





PLANNING COMMITTEE
TIME: 10.00 am
DATE: Thursday 30 January 2020
VENUE: Council Chamber - Shire Hall, Gloucester

A G E N D A

ITEM TOPIC CONTACT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE Andrea Griffiths

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
To receive declarations by members of (a) personal interests 
(including their nature) and (b) prejudicial interests under the 
Code of Conduct. Members who have an interest to declare are 
asked to complete the Declarations of Interests form at the back 
of the chamber.

Andrea Griffiths

3.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
To answer any written public questions about matters which are 
within the powers and duties of the Committee.

The closing date/time for the receipt of questions is 10am 
Thursday 23rd January 2020.

Andrea Griffiths

4.  MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 
To answer any written members’ questions about matters which 
are within the powers and duties of the Committee.

The closing date/time for the receipt of questions is 10.00am 
on Thursday 23rd January 2020.

Andrea Griffiths

5.  MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 12)
The Committee is asked to approved the minutes of the previous 
meeting, held on the 21st November 2019.  

Andrea Griffiths

6.  MEMBERS SITE VISIT (Pages 13 - 16)
To receive the notes of the Members Site Visit held on the 23rd 
January 2020. 

Sarah Pearse



7.  APPLICATION NO: 19/0070/GLMAJW (DISTRICT 
REFERENCE 19/01060/DCC) SITE: ALLSTONE SAND AND 
GRAVEL CENTRE (Pages 17 - 74)
The Committee is asked to consider that variation of conditions 1 
(Commencement /Duration) and 2 (Operating Conditions) of 
planning consent 15/0077/GLMAJW dated 05/10/2016 to allow 
continued use of land for the crushing and screening of inert 
waste materials to produce secondary aggregates (for a 
temporary period of three years).

Linda Townsend

8.  APPLICATION NO: 19/0036CHREG3  SITE: ST JOHN'S 
PRIMARY SCHOOL, ALBION STREET, CHELTENHAM, 
GLOUCESTERSHIRE GL52 2SN (Pages 75 - 96)

Denis Canney

The Committee is asked to consider the change of use to D1 
(Schools) - extension of school grounds.

9.  SECOND REVIEW GLOUCESTERSHIRE STATEMENT OF 
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (Pages 97 - 118)

Robin Drake

The Committee is asked to note the intention of the Director of 
Economy, Environment and Infrastructure to direct officers to 
prepare a Cabinet report for March 2020 that will seek a 
recommendation to County Council to adopt the further revised 
(2nd Review) SCI for Gloucestershire incorporating the 
amendments made following the public consultation between 
October and December 2019.

10.  DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 119 - 120)
The Committee is asked to note the report.  Sarah Pearse

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS
1. The Sites Inspection Visit will take place on 23rd January 
2020.

Please will members meet in the Members Car Park at 
9:20am 

2. The Chairman’s Briefing will take place at 12:30pm in the 
Chairman’s  Room.

NOTES

MEMBERSHIP –Cllr Phil Awford, Cllr Robert Bird, Cllr David Brown, 
Cllr Dr John Cordwell, Cllr Bernard Fisher, Cllr Terry Hale, Cllr Stephen Hirst, 
Cllr Graham Morgan, Cllr Shaun Parsons, Cllr Alan Preest, Cllr Steve Robinson, 
Cllr Pam Tracey MBE, Cllr Robert Vines, Cllr Simon Wheeler and Cllr Will Windsor-
Clive

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification 



about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the 
Monitoring Officer: Jane Burns 01452 428472
 e-mail: jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the commencement of the 
meeting. 

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect 
reports relating to any item on this Agenda or have any other general queries 
about the meeting, please contact 
AndreaGriffiths, Democratic Services Unit 
: 01452 324206/fax: 425240
e-mail: andrea.griffiths@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) TRAINING/SUBSTITUTION – All members must have received recent training 
(since June 2013) before they can sit on the Committee and take part in 
discussion and vote. Substitution arrangements are as set out on page 67 of the 
Constitution. A list of trained Members is available from your Political Assistant.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the 
meeting please leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the 
assembly point which is outside the main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  
Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:andrea.griffiths@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

PLANNING COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on Thursday 21 November 
2019 commencing at 10.00 am.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Phil Awford 
(Chairman)
Cllr Robert Bird
Cllr David Brown
Cllr Bernard Fisher
Cllr Terry Hale
Cllr Stephen Hirst

Cllr Graham Morgan
Cllr Shaun Parsons
Cllr Steve Robinson
Cllr Pam Tracey MBE
Cllr Simon Wheeler

Apologies: Cllr John Cordwell, Cllr Alan Preest, Cllr Robert Vines and Cllr Will 
Windsor-Clive

19. CHAIRMAN'S OPENING NOTE 

The Chairman wished to extend condolences on behalf of the Committee to Cllr 
Cordwell, who had recently suffered a family bereavement.    

The Committee also sent their best wishes to Cllr Vines for his  recovery.  

20. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made.  

21. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

No public questions had been received.  

22. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS 

No Member’s questions had been received.

23. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

Resolved 

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 26th September 2019 be approved as 
a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

24. ENFORCEMENT REPORT 

Andy Birchley, Enforcement Officer presented the report in detail.  Members were 
advised that there were 55 new enquiries which had led to formal investigation.  

Mr Birchley explained that when the Council’s requirements were not met, following 
a reasonable period given to comply, and where the identified breach is serious, 
then formal action would be considered to remedy the situation. This usually 
involved service of a Notice and/or Prosecution.

Members were advised that 5 Breach of Conditions Notices were currently in force 
relating to operational hours at Westington Quarry. Prosecution proceedings had 
taken place against the operator in respect of the alleged breach of some of these 
notices. The prosecutions were originally due to come to Court in April 2019, but 
were adjourned at the Defendant’s request to 30th September 2019; this has further 
adjourned to 19th November 2019. Members were advised that the court 
proceedings had concluded on the 19th November 2019 and 6 charges relating to 3 
offences had been admitted, which resulted in costs and fines of approximately 
£10k.  The Lead Commissioner explained that Officer time related to the Planning 
team only (legal costs not included), and the time equated to just over £3K 

I explained that the Council had tried to work with the operator to resolve the matter 
without the need for legal action, however this approach had not worked and so 
prosecution was taken as a regrettable but necessary last resort.

It was noted that a further Breach of Condition Notice was in force at Westington 
Quarry, relating to approved noise levels being exceeded. In addition a Noise 
Abatement Order had been served by Cotswold District Council’s Environmental 
Health team, who were monitoring noise levels.

Mr Birchley invited members to consider whether they wanted to receive the report 
in a different format, and include anything else. Cllr Parsons commented that the 
minutes were very readable so didn’t think they needed to change, and no other 
members raised any other point.  

Members thanked Mr Birchley for the update and felt it was advisable to highlight 
the case in the Press to ensure it was well reported.  

Members welcomed the report.  

Resolved

That the report be noted.  

25. DELEGATED DECISIONS TAKEN BETWEEN 12TH SEPTEMBER - 7TH 
NOVEMBER 2019. 

Sarah Pearse, Principal Planning Officer presented the report.  

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Resolved

That the delegated decisions made between 12th September and the 7th 
November be noted.  

At this juncture the Chairman adjourned the meeting until 10:30am, as some 
members had called to say they were stuck in traffic.  

26. APPLICATION NO: 18/0032/TWMAJW LAND TO THE WEST OF WINGMOOR 
FARM, STOKE ROAD, BISHOPS CLEEVE. 

Councillor Wheeler referred to the additional information at the rear of Chamber, he 
felt it was unreasonable to expect Members to read the information at such short 
notice.  The Chairperson advised Members that the additional information had been 
supplied by Mr Chatham, who was representing Stoke Orchard and Tredington 
Parish Council.  

Prior to the presentation, Mr Canney also made reference to written response from 
Uckington Parish Council (a copy is attached to the signed Mnutes), which was 
made available at the rear of the Chamber. It was explained that all matters raised 
had been covered in the previous and updated reports.   

An update of the application was presented by Denis Canney, Senior Planning 
Officer.  

Mr Canney explained that this application was due to be reported to the Planning 
Committee on 31st January 2019. However, the application was deferred from 
consideration pending resolution of a procedural error regarding statutory land 
ownership notification procedure when unregistered land across part of the access 
to the development site was identified. This was addressed by the applicant and the 
application was represented to the Planning Committee on 21st March 2019 with an 
Officer Recommendation to refuse the same. The original report to Members was 
attached at Appendix A.

Members were reminded that at the March 2019 meeting the Planning Committee 
resolved as follows: 

“That planning permission is granted in principle, subject to any call in by the 
Secretary of State. In addition the requirement of the Planning Committee to ratify 
any planning conditions that the application should be subject to at the next 
Planning Committee and a section 106 agreement being in place prior to the 
issuing of planning permission to overcome the Highway Authority’s planning 
objection.”

It was noted that following this resolution the application was due to be reported 
back to Planning Committee so that proposed planning conditions could be ratified 
by the Members. 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

Mr Canney explained that the proposed conditions were attached as Item 6 to the 
Agenda on 9th May 2019. However, the applicant requested a deferral to the next 
available Planning Committee and Members resolved that the application be 
deferred until the July Committee meeting.   No Planning Committee was held in 
July and the matter was not considered at the September Planning Committee 
since the applicant and County Council were considering the legal advice obtained 
by the applicant regarding the requirement for a legal agreement relating to the 
highway visibility splay matters.

Members were advised that following the above deferral, further representations 
had been received by the Waste Planning Authority (WPA).  These related to 
procedural matters regarding notification to the Parish Councils, representations 
from residents nearby and additional Parish Councils and Highway Authority 
reconsideration of requirements.  

In terms of procedural matters regarding notification to the Parish Councils, Stoke 
Orchard and Tredington Parish Council had raised concerns regarding a failure to 
be notified of the March 2019 Planning Committee. As such they were unaware of 
the date that the application was to be considered and were denied the opportunity 
to make representations to the Planning Committee (verbally or otherwise) before a 
decision was made. 

It was noted that the Parish Council did request to speak at the deferred Planning 
Committee in January this year and were in attendance to do so. The Parish 
Council’s formal representation was reported at Paragraph 6.8 of the original report 
considered at the Planning Committee on 21st March 2019.

Consequently the Parish Council had requested to speak to Members of the 
Planning Committee as part of the decision making process.  

Mr Canney advised the Committee that representations had been received since 
the March 2019 Planning Committee from three residents along with Uckington and 
Elmstone Hardwicke Parish Council.  It was noted these were available to view 
through the Council’s Public Access website.

Members noted that the matters raised relate to the proposed development include:
• Being contrary to National and Local Plan policies;
• No Green Belt special circumstances;
• Other suitable alternative sites;
• Access;
• Odour;
• Noise;
• Air quality;
• Traffic and transport;
• Flies, dust and seagulls;
• Cumulative impact of waste sites; and
• Proximity to existing and future housing development.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

Mr Canney stated that GCC legal advice was such that the ‘in principle’ resolution 
to grant planning permission made in March 2019 did not preclude consideration of 
further material matters.  
In addition, the applicant had provided comments in response to the concerns 
raised. It was noted that this was available to view on the Council’s Public Access 
website. Officers had considered the representations raised and the responses of 
the applicant to them. Officers accepted that the representations raised were 
material planning considerations, but did not consider that they raised any new 
issues which had not been considered previously by Officers in considering the 
application. 

Mr Canney explained that following the applicant’s legal advice provided in August 
2019, which was publicly available on the GCC Public Access website, Council 
Officers and the applicant’s representatives met in September 2019 to consider this 
advice and discuss highway options going forward. The outcome of this meeting 
was that the Highway Authority was able to reconsider the need for the highway 
splay requirements resulting in an alternative solution to address highway safety at 
the gate entrance near to the Shooting Club and the Wingmoor landfill and 
household recycling facility. 

As such the Highway Authority had reconsidered the previous advice and its 
previous recommendation to the WPA. The revised consultation response, attached 
at Appendix B, had removed the need for visibility splays to be provided as part of 
the highway safety requirements relating to access and egress at the gated 
entrance serving the shooting club (also serving the Severn Trent Water Treatment 
Facility) near to the Wingmoor Household Waste Recycling Centre (HWRC). 

Mr Canney advised the Committee that the existing southern access opened out 
directly onto a private road in a way that had resulted in an inappropriate behaviour 
of exiting without taking into account adjacent accesses. Whilst visibility had been a 
concern previously, more recent pre-application discussion regarding proposals to 
alter the operational layout arrangements to the HWRC, identify that operational 
arrangements at this site were likely to always be subject to change, based on the 
use.  

The Highway Authority considered the matter would be best dealt with by 
addressing north/south driver behaviour. In the absence of visibility and the 
possibility that at any time changes may require the adjacent access to require 
different lengths of visibility, the position was proposed to be addressed by the 
Highway Authority (in accepting minimal visibility) with the intervention of a Stop 
Sign/Line to the access to the application site.

This notably altered the original recommendation to Members in that a S106 legal 
agreement had been required to secure maintenance of visibility splays in the long 
term across 3rd party land not in the control of the applicant. This advice of the 
Highway Authority has now been amended and as a result the WPA was now 
recommending that the matter is controlled via a Grampian style condition. Such a 
condition would require that the applicant provide the recommended Stop Line and 
appropriate signage at the gated site entrance to the shooting club (also serving 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

Severn Trent Water Treatment Facility) near to the HWRC prior to commencement 
of the development. Given the Stop Line Sign option is also on 3rd party land it was 
recognised that the Highway Authority would become the enforcing authority should 
the applicant be unable to maintain the necessary highway safety works through 
the life of the permission. The Highway Authority has statutory powers under 
Section 230 Highways Act 1980 to require the owners of private streets to execute 
such repairs as are needed to obviate danger to traffic. The Highway Authority can 
undertake the repairs in default and recharge the cost thereof. There is a separate 
power for the Highway Authority under Section 230(7) to execute such repairs as 
are urgently required to prevent and remove danger to persons or vehicles in the 
street.

Mr Canney explained that if Members chose to accept the revised recommendation 
of the Highway Authority, it would require a formal amendment to the resolution of 
the 21st March 2019 to not require a S106 legal agreement. 

Mr Canney reiterated that, further to the 21st March 2019 Planning Committee, 
Members were now invited to consider whether planning permission should be 
granted subject to the following proposed conditions and without the need for a 
S106 legal agreement and also subject to any call in by the Secretary of State 
under the Town and Country Planning (Consultation) (England) Direction 2009 as 
“Green Belt development”.  .  

In response to the points raised, the case officer referred to the draft planning 
conditions pointing out in particular, conditions  10 and 11 (Highways), 16 (Noise), 
19 (Dust)  and 21 (Odour) for which schemes were to be agreed with the planning 
authority before commencement of development.  Mr Canney explained that the 
gas main pipeline fell outside of the site.  

The Chairperson invited the registered speakers to address the Committee.  

Objecting: Anne Griffiths

“Thank you for allowing me to speak today.

My family have lived on Lowdilow Lane, Elmstone, Hardwicke for over 40 years. 
This is a small hamlet whose residents live within 500 metres, south of Wingmoor 
Farm West, Landfill and recycling site.

Over many years the landfill sites have grown and expanded with many additional 
and new processes evolving to deal with the counties waste.

We have experienced many nuisances including flies, dust, odours and seagulls. 
We have taken part in scientific research on the flies, and seagulls.  We continue to 
suffer from the dis-amenity which prevents us being able to enjoy the use of our 
own homes, with special regard to the odours.

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

When the weather conditions, are calm, misty ,or foggy this can last for several 
days continuously. They can be smelt as far away as Tewkesbury Road, 
Sainsbury's and on occasions in Cheltenham town.  

Our elected representatives are members of this committee so they are aware of 
the issues raised by residents living around the huge landfill sites, and no doubt 
have expressed these issues to you.

The current operator ENOVERT, processes thousands of tonnes of the county's 
green waste here, using the winrow system, which is turned on a regular basis. This 
is a similar process that is proposed by this applicant.

We have voiced our concerns via the statutory agencies, including the Environment 
Agency, the Wingmoor Farm Liaison Committees. We were members of SWARD, 
Safety in Rubbish and Waste Disposal, a resident group concerned with issues 
around the sites. We also work closely with Enovert's on-site managers with any 
issues as they arise.

We have found it very difficult to access the documentation 'for this planning 
application. However, the Planning Officer has recently provided us with mapping 
by Wales and the West Utilities, which shows that the High Pressure Gas Main runs 
along the side of the proposed site. Therefore presumably this will be subject to a 
development exclusion zone.

There is no detail as to how the applicant will comply with this as it may restrict 
operations, with regard to the proposed concrete slab,  the holding tanks, the 
engineering operations of the plant and machinery occupied buildings, or traffic 
routes, as well as provisions for protecting the staff and members of the public.

The Health and Safety Executive is normally a consultee on a proposed 
development if it is within distance of a major accident pipeline. This does not seem 
to be available. By using the documents available online we wish to object to this 
application on the following grounds:
It does not comply with JCS Adopted Policy, SP15 Health and Environmental 
Quality, Para 4.15 states that development should protect and seek to improve 
environmental quality, and should not result in unacceptable levels of air, noise, 
water; light or soil pollution.

Also, the counties Waste Core Strategy Policy 10, states that due regard must be 
paid to the unacceptable cumulative affects of waste facilities. I note the 
Environment Agency statement also states with reference to ODOURS, that this 
site will be odorous owing to the type and nature of the waste’s involved. There is a 
significant potential for off-site odour particularly during calm conditions when it is 
likely to accumulate in the local area.

It is possible that residual odours may cause impact off-site and result in complaints 
from those potentially affected.  As this is a full planning application we request that 
permission is not granted until all the essential information is available for 
consideration by the committee in respect of a

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

Full Odour Management Plan 
Health Impact Assessment 
Wales and the West Utilities Report 
Health and Safety Executive Report”

Applicant: Mr William Gilder  

“ Good Morning Chairman and committee. I don't think I need any introduction.
I feel that I don't need to reiterate the benefits of what we do, and it was clear from 
the last meeting when the committee supported this application and thank the 
officers involved for their support.  

We have now ironed out the conditions and hopefully we can proceed with the 
development. Just in case any of the committee are in any doubt, since we have 
submitted this application, there have been more and more land approved for 
development for houses in Gloucestershire.

This means more people, which makes our application more viable and more 
important.

We are not at the front end of recycling we are at the back end of recycling, that is 
not just a pun, lets think about it, every single human being in the world produce a 
waste every day, which has to be dealt with, in a responsible manner, we are only a 
tiny facility, dealing with a tiny amount but it all helps.
We are not in a glamourous industry but equally as important as any cutting edge 
technology. ln todays world, ¡t is all about carbon, and saving the planet, that is 
exactly what we are about, returning organic matter back to the land in a safe way, 
and to enable us to do this we need space away from houses, the site at Stoke 
Orchard is an ideal location.

By returning this material to land it is a huge carbon saving and a cost saving for 
farmers.  I have heard comments rom the objectors, however there is nothing new 
in this application.  

Recently I was named as one of the top entrepreneurs in Gloucestershire, I was 
shocked and  surprised but felt honoured, an accolade for my hard work, working7 
days a week, but also for the 200  family's that my business supports because with 
out, them I am nothing.

As one of the judges stated I see an opportunity and grasp it, seeing an opportunity 
and grasping it is one thing, getting it through planning is a completely different 
process.

Mr Chairman and committee please can we just get the job done and stand by the 
decision that was taken in March as this is very much an agricultural venture and 
we can start work.  

Thank You”

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

Richard Chatham - Chairman - Stoke Orchard and Tredington Parish Council.

“All Previous Submissions of Objection on this case are still relevant, pertinent and 
current. You will find copies of those in your pack. Concerning Highways, Green 
Belt, and Odour.

We wish to bring to the Committee’s attention further evidence based information 
which will clarify certain points of discussion raised at the March 21st Meeting as 
recorded in the signed and adopted minutes.

Proof of Odour. Despite previous suggestions from certain committee members to 
the contrary - There is incontrovertible evidence that there is a dangerous, intrusive 
and unpleasant odour attached to Sewage Sludge.

a. We refer the Committee to the JCS Paper - “Revised Statement of Common 
Ground”. A section in this paper is concerned with the recorded problems of odour 
from the Hayden Sewage Works. Here, Severn Trent lay down their program of 
Odour reduction which includes an official Report from Odournet under Appendix 1.
We quote Paragraph 1.18

The Odournet report identifies the key contributors to odour on the site which are 
sludge handling and treatment and which account for approximately 60% of total 
site emissions of which the sludge cake storage comprises 40%. - exactly the 
material this Application is concerned with.

b. We also refer The Committee to the Tewkesbury Borough Plan Policy - ENV1 
“Development near Sewage Treatment Works.” Specifically paragraph 8.65 - which 
seeks to exclude all sensitive development inside a 1000 metre exclusion zone of 
Sewage Treatment works where people’s health and quality of life might suffer. We 
remind the Committee that such a zone around this site will include not only parts of 
the JCS Elm Park development but also parts of Bishops Cleeve are close enough 
to be affected by wind borne odour and spores.

2. Proof of Toxicity / Safety at Work - Please note that this proposal is for the 
chemical treatment of highly toxic Sewage Sludge - It is the Chemical process of 
adding lime (which is also a volatile and dangerous chemical substance to raise the 
PH to 12.4 for a period of 2 hours - We suggest hardly an acceptable use of Green 
Belt land under any circumstances.

Documentation of the dangers of handling and treatment of Sewage Sludge (or Bio 
solids) are available in a considerable number documents and we refer you to the 
HSE site - “Working with sewage The health hazards: A guide for employers” - 
http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/indg198.pdf  This gives reference to active danger of 
serious illness potential and danger of Pathogens and other organisms in this 
material before treatment.

The Government website on Safe Treatment and use of Sewage Sludge
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/sewage-sludge-in-agriculture-code-of-
practice/sewage-sludge-in-agriculture-code-of-practice-for-england-wales-and-

Page 9



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 10 -

northern-ireland Sewage sludge in agriculture: code of practice for England, Wales 
and Northern Ireland Guidance - Published 23 May 2018

We refer with concern to guidelines in this document which include:
11. Protect the environment and avoid public nuisance. 
11.1 Safe Transport of sludge to avoid spillage and pollution. 
11.2 Avoid sludge run-off into water courses. 
11.3 Protect water from pollution. 
11.4 Reduce offensive odour to protect adjoining sites.

We refer to the committee to the inherent Health dangers referred to in both of 
these Site’s Guidelines in consideration not only the staff working on this site but 
also all the staff and public visitors at the Enovert Recycling Centre and the major 
employment area at the Park including Printwaste, CPC, and others. All these sites 
lie within a 250 metre radius and are in potential danger of pathogens and spores in 
the wind if the above Safety recommendations are to regarded.

3. Flood Water and Pollution. Whilst the Flood Risk Assessment refers to the level 
of Fluvial Flooding being in Flood Risk 1 area - no comment is made of Pluvial 
Flooding and with the experience of 7 days back, as Flood warden for the Parish, 
run off from the airfield was overwhelming all drains and watercourses running 
down the Stoke road 3 inches deep and in a similar situation this site represents the 
potential of an ecological disaster with the site drainage swale draining directly into 
the Hyde brook in less than 500 yards. The potential of leachate being in the River 
Severn in under 2. 5 hours.

4. Highways. We further re-inforce our concerns over Highway Safety for 
pedestrians and cyclists and the danger of the junction with Stoke Road after a 4 
car accident on the apex of the bridge under 6 weeks ago which left 3 cars 
damaged and one written off - saved from landing on the railway track by the safety 
fencing which can still be seen.

This Application proposes permitted traffic movement of 60,000 tonnes per year 
over this bridge. 20,000 tonnes of Sludge + 10,000 tonnes of lime in. 30,000 tonnes 
of treated sludge and leachate out.

Permission of this Application in the Green Belt against all Recommendations and 
with no benefit to this or adjoining Communities is unacceptable.  We rest our 
Case”.

The Chairperson invited questions from Members following the presentation.  
 
Councillor Tracey asked what the situation was regarding flooding at the moment.  
Mr Mead explained that it was not under his Highways remit therefore he was 
unable to provide a response.  

Councillor Fisher questioned the special circumstances in relation to the Green 
Belt.  Mr Phillips advised the Committee that the issues surrounding Green Belt had 
been outlined to members in the report to Committee on 21st March. Members 

Page 10



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 11 -

discussed whether  very special circumstances existed to allow this development in 
the Green Belt and this was agreed by Members as set out in the March Committee 
Minutes.  Councillor Fisher remarked that since March 2019, all the Districts had 
signed up to the climate change emergency.  

Councillor Parsons wished to know if the points raised by Mr Chatham had been 
covered within the Officer report.  Mr Canney advised the Committee that he had 
only just received the pack from Mr Chatham and had not had the opportunity to 
read the pack at this stage.    

Councillor Hale wished to know what was currently happening with the waste cake.  
Mr Canney explained that the waste was disposed of at landfill and there was some 
odour associated with it.  

Councillor Hirst remarked that the Committee should only be discussing the 
material changes since the last meeting.  Mr Canney explained that the changes 
were the Highways Authority revised recommendation and the procedural issues in 
relation to notification of the Parish Councils.  Councillor Hirst asked if the Parish 
Council had raised any material changes, to which Mr Canney replied that, in his 
opinion, there were no material changes from the March 2019 Committee .  
Councillor Hirst felt these issues should not be considered.  

The Committee entered into debate.  

Councillor Fisher referred to the waste cake and the lime mix in open air which was 
involved before it could be put back onto the land for use.  He added that it was an 
EU Directive to put waste back on to land, however changes in waste now made it 
more toxic.  He felt that the operation could be done in a controlled environment 
inside a plant facility, rather than in the Green Belt as dust and odour would be in 
the atmosphere, if done in the open.  Councillor Fisher made reference to the plan 
to build 4100 new houses in the local vicinity and the climate change emergency, to 
which GCC had signed up.   It was noted that lime odour would travel and there 
was enough pollution form the landfill site, which would eventually be returned to 
agricultural land.  In addition he referred to the 5 ton weight limit on the road.  

Councillor Bird referred Councillor Fisher to the March 2019 meeting, when 
Members had agreed the special circumstances in relation to this development in 
the Green Belt.  He felt there were no new issues raised and it would not be right to 
retrospectively change the decision, as this would undermine the decision making 
process.  He reminded the Committee that there were conditions to be approved 
and Councillor Bird proposed to grant planning permission subject to those 
conditions.  

Councillor Hale remarked that the lime would be added under controlled 
circumstances, unlike a farmer who could spray with no conditions.  The 
Chairperson allowed Officers to answer this question for clarity.  Mr Canney 
explained that a separate permit would be issued by the Environment Agency in 
relation to the site and boundaries.  

Page 11



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 12 -

The Chairperson called for a seconder to Councillor Bird’s proposal to accept the 
conditions.  Councillor Tracey seconded the motion, this was also supported by 
Councillor Hirst.  

Councillor Hirst reiterated there was no material change to the application since 
Members last considered it. .  

Councillor Fisher felt there were material changes and once again referred to the 
Climate Change emergency, as he felt the application would contribute further 
pollution to the environment and this operation should be done in an enclosed 
environment.  

Mr Evans, Solicitor, explained that Members were asked to consider the conditions 
before them as set out in the Officer Report. He confirmed that if Members 
accepted the proposed conditions, then the Section 106 agreement would no 
longer be required, as clarification had been obtained from the Highway Authority in 
relation to the stop line and sign.  However, the application would still  need to be 
referred to the Secretary of State before the planning permission could be granted.  

The Chairperson then put Councillor Bird’s proposal to grant planning permission 
subject to the proposed conditions as presented before the Committee, as 
seconded by Councillor Tracey.   On being put to the vote the application was 
passed (7 in favour and 3 against).  

The Planning Committee therefore: 

Resolved 

That planning permission be granted subject to the proposed conditions and 
without the need for a S106 legal agreement and also subject to any call in by 
the Secretary of State under the Town and Country Planning (Consultation) 
(England) Direction 2009 as “Green Belt development”.

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 11.14 am

Page 12



1
Notes by: Sarah Pearse (23/01/2020)

Member Site Visit Meeting

23rd January 2020

Weather conditions: Dull, overcast and dry. 

Planning Committee Member Attendance:

Councillors:
AWFORD, Cllr Philip (Chairman)
BIRD, Cllr Robert
BROWN, Cllr David
CORDWELL, Cllr John 
FISHER, Cllr Bernard
HALE, Cllr Terry
HIRST Cllr Stephen 
MORGAN, Cllr Graham

P
Ap
P
Ap
Ap
P
P
P

PARSONS, Cllr Shaun 
PREEST Cllr Alan
ROBINSON Cllr Steve
TRACEY, Cllr Pamela
VINES, Cllr Robert
WHEELER, Cllr Simon
WINDSOR-CLIVE, Cllr Clive

Ap
Ap
P
Ap
Ap
Ab
Ap

Key: P=present, Ab=absent, Ap= Apologies

Officers in attendance: 

Sarah Pearse, (SP) Principal Planning Officer, Kevin Phillips, (KP) Team Manager, 
Linda Townsend, Senior Planning Officer (Case Officer) and, Denis Canney, Senior 
Planning Officer (Case Officer).

Site 1: Planning application 19/0036/CHREG3 for the change of use to D1 
(Schools)-extension of school grounds on land adjacent to St. Johns Primary 
School, Albion Street, Cheltenham, GL52 2SN. 

Case Officer: Denis Canney

The proposal is for a change of use from an open area to forest school use, 
surrounded by a 1.5m high black metal fence, with a hedgerow behind. A forest 
school can be on or off the school site.

The CO described the location of the site, the position of the vegetation to be 
retained and the position of the proposed fence and railings on the land owned by 
the Diocese. The CO advised that thee site lies in the Cheltenham Central 
Conservation Area, and pointed to the locations of  Grade II listed buildings near and 
adjoining the application site, with railings. 

The Borough Council raised an objection to the proposal because of its location 
within the Conservation Area. The County Highways representative was initially 
concerned about highway safety, but has suggested an appropriate planning 
condition and is now satisfied. No representations from the Public have been 
received.

The main issues raised by the application are:

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



2
Notes by: Sarah Pearse (23/01/2020)

 The impact upon heritage assets,
 Residential amenity in terms of smoke and noise,
 Highway Safety

Member Questions:

Cllr Hirst asked whether there would be a fence behind the existing hedge. The CO 
clarified that there is an existing wall at the rear of the vegetation and metal railings 
at the south east of the site adjacent to Berkeley Street.

Cllr Brown asked how many children would be present on site at one time and when 
it would be used. The CO was unsure but thought it might be one class at a time and 
used during the school day.

Cllr Hirst asked for Witcombe Place to be pointed out. The CO indicated this street 
on a plan and that it was to the west of the application site, adjacent to the school.

Cllr Hale asked whether the site would be locked when not in use and whether its 
use would be exclusively for the school. The CO confirmed that this would be the 
case.

Cllr Hirst remarked that properties surrounding the site were a mixture of 
architectectural  styles. The CO agreed and pointed out which properties were listed 
buildings.

Cllr Awford asked what will become of the site at night and how it could be kept 
secure.  KP commented that there was already evidence of people using the site for 
rough sleeping. The CO explained that the site would be locked when not in use and 
this could be controlled by planning condition if it were thought appropriate.

Cllr Hirst asked if the area of vegetation adjacent to the wall of the property on the 
southern boundary would be part of the nature area. The CO confirmed that it would 
be retained and maintained by the school.

Cllr Morgan asked, thinking about the fire pit, if the area was in smokeless zone.  
The CO undertook to find out before the Committee meeting. 

Members were invited to view the application site from the roadside, before 
departing  the site at 10.25 am.

Site 2: Planning application for the variation of conditions: 1 
(Commencement/Duration) and 2 (Operating Conditions) of planning consent 
15/0077/GLMAJW dated 05/10/2016 to allow the continued use of land for the 
crushing and screening of inert waste materials to produce secondary 
aggregates (for a temporary period of three years) on land at Allstone Sand 
and Gravel Centre, Land off Myers Road, Gloucester, GL1 3QD.

Before visiting the site, Member viewed the site from behind the Mercedes Benz garage on 
the Triangle Retail Park.

Page 14



3
Notes by: Sarah Pearse (23/01/2020)

Members were joined on site by Richard Street representing the operator, Paul Duncliffe, the 
Planning Agent and Julie Betteridge representing Gloucester City Council Environmental 
Health.

The CO described the proposal and surroundings and the reason for the planning 
application. The CO used an aerial photograph to point out the surrounding properties and 
landscape features such at Metz Way and the railway line.

A period of crushing had taken place before Christmas and the washing plant was running 
on the new concrete pad and aggregate washing was being undertaken during the site visit.

Members Questions

Cllr Hirst asked for confirmation of the numbers of vehicles visiting the site per day. The CO 
clarified that there would be an average of 20 vehicles per day. On some days there would 
be none at all, and on others there would be more than 20. The CO explained the there were 
more than one site/ planning permission operating from the area and using the access road. 
Some cement lorries and associated aggregate delivery lorries were seen to pass the site 
visiting the adjoining concrete batching plant that was not controlled by Allstones. Also the 
skip waste vehicles also used the access road past the site to access the Waste transfer 
Station.

Cllr Morgan asked whether the 20 vehicles used the access ramp. The CO and the Agent 
confirmed that the ramp was used to access the site.

Cllr Brown asked about the area of concrete hard standing that has been introduced since 
the application was last determined. The CO pointed out the location on the plan and 
Members were able to see the area of concrete from the ramp. The CO explained that the 
concrete pad catches run-off from the plant and facilitates water recycling.

The Agent explained that Members were looking at the washing plant and that crushing took 
place to the east of the site, on an area of lower lying land, further away from residential 
properties. Crushing takes place on a campaign basis over two, two week periods 
throughout the year. The crushing and washing is carried out by S E Davis, who are leaders 
in their field and work all over the Country.

Cllr Morgan reiterated that there were no objections from Statutory Consultees. Julie 
Betteridge from Gloucester City Environmental Health raised no concerns about the 
operation of the site and said that either she or a colleague would attend Planning 
Committee to answer any Member’s questions.

The site Operator had placed several buckets of material adjacent to the access to 
demonstrate up close they type of products produced at the site. Richard Street explained 
that there was pear gravel, 20mm and 40 mm clean stone and sand. These could be used 
for road construction sub base, path ways and pipe laying etc. They are also trying to 
produce a type 1 product.

The site meeting ended at 11.50 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



APPLICATION NO:
19/0070/GLMAJW VALIDATION 

DATE:
2nd October 2019

DISTRICT REF: 19/01060/DCC

AGENT: P E Duncliffe Ltd, The Chapel, Dean Lane, Stoke Orchard, 
Cheltenham

APPLICANT: Allstone Sand and Gravel Limited

SITE: Allstone Sand and Gravel Centre, land off Myers Road, 
Gloucester, GL1 3QD

PROPOSAL: Variation of conditions 1 (Commencement /Duration) and 2 
(Operating Conditions) of planning consent 15/0077GLMAJW 
dated 05/10/2016 to allow continued use of land for the 
crushing and screening of inert waste materials to produce 
secondary aggregates (for a temporary period of three years)
PARISH OF Unparished SITE AREA: 1.89 Ha

GRID 
REF:

384753 E
218235 N

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission is GRANTED for the reasons 
summarised in paragraphs 7.74 to 7.78 subject to the planning conditions 
recommended in Section 8.0 of this report.

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION

1.1 The 1.89 ha elongated teardrop shaped area of former railway sidings lies 1 km 
southeast of Gloucester city centre, approximately 30 metres east of Horton 
Road junction railway crossing and 500 metres west of Barnwood railway 
junction.  The application site is accessed from Myers Road, located to the north 
of the site.   The application site forms part of a larger site, located immediately 
east of the application site that is owned by the Applicant.  The Applicant 
operates a large waste recycling facility which has been operational since 1999 
providing a facility to segregate waste from a number of different sources 
including local authorities, demolition and domestic skip hire contracts, the 
majority of which is brought to the site in the Applicant’s own lorries, skip loaders 
and roll–on, roll-off containers.  The facility is not open to members of the public.  
The application site has been in use by the Applicant as a facility for the crushing 
and screening of construction and demolition waste materials to produce 
secondary aggregates since 2011.  There is a concrete batching plant and skip 
hire businesses also operating on the adjacent site, which are not controlled by 
the Applicant and subject to separate planning permissions.  

1.2 Land to the south of the application site and beyond the railway lines is an area 
known as The Railway Triangle that is accessed from Metz Way.  A 
supermarket, car showroom and other commercial/industrial uses are located on 
this area of land.  Gloucester Royal Hospital is located approximately 200 metres 
to the north-west of the application site.  To the west of the application site, on 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



Page 18



Horton Road is the Irish Club and car park and numbers 1 and 2 Gas Holder 
Cottages.  2 Gas Holder Cottages is only 5 metres from the site’s northern 
boundary but both these properties have been purchased by the Applicant.  

1.3 The access road to the Gloucester Old Boys Rugby Club and its car park is 
located 8 metres north of the main Allstone site entrance and forms the northern 
boundary of the land in the Applicant’s ownership.  To the north of the Rugby 
Club are playing fields and public open space.  There are two residential areas 
(Swallow Park and Armscroft Park) located to the north and north-east of the 
application site.  The nearest residential property on Etheridge Place is 35 
metres away from the site to the north.  There are residential properties located 
130 metres to the south, beyond the A4302 Metz Way.  

1.4 The application site is partially screened from the residential properties to the 
north by the natural fall of the land.  The boundaries of the site have some limited 
natural regeneration of scrub.  

1.5 The site is accessed from Myers Road which is public highway to the edge of the 
application site access ramp, which is surfaced with tarmac and of sufficient 
width to allow two vehicles to pass.  The vehicular access to the main Allstone 
entrance is via a private road from this point.  Public Right of Way reference 
ZGL126 is located 250 metres east of site and links Blinkhorns Bridge Lane to 
Metz Way in a generally north-east- south-westerly direction by passing under 
the railway line.  PROW ZGL181 lies 146 metres north of site, runs east-west 
between Etheridge Place and Coronation Grove, passing along the north side of 
the Rugby Club.  Wotton Brook flows north south through public open space 
before being culverted under the railway line and 300 metres of the application 
site but following the eastern boundary of the land in the Applicant’s control.  
None of the land in the Applicant’s control, including the application site, is within 
a high risk flood zone of the Wotton Brook, which is primarily on the public open 
space land, west of Coronation Grove.  The site lies 600 metres north of the 
Barton Street Air Quality Management Area declared for the exceedance of 
annual average NO2 objective.  

2.0 DESCRIPTION OF DEVELOPMENT

2.1 The submitted application proposes a variation to conditions 1 and 2 of 
planning consent 15/0077GLMAJW under Section 73 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990.  Condition 1 is concerned with the permitted 
timescale of the waste management facility and condition 2 sets out the scope 
of the operation.  The purpose of the facility is to process inert construction 
and demolition waste in the form of brick/rubble and soils by crushing and 
screening materials using mobile plant.  Finished material is then stockpiled 
on site for future sale/distribution and rejected material is transported off site 
to landfill.  An average of 20 vehicle movements per day based on an average 
load of 18 tonnes is anticipated.  The Supporting Statement states that: “This 
includes an allowance for 50% backhauling where lorries bringing in inert 
waste material will return with aggregate or those collecting aggregate will 

Page 19



bring inert waste to the site.”  The Applicant does not currently operate any 
wheel cleaning facilities and does not consider them necessary.  No change is 
proposed to these operations.  

2.2 The waste site has been operating since 01/11/2010.  This is the third renewal 
of temporary planning permission which has been sought by the Applicant 
since the initial grant of temporary planning permission was made on 25th 
March 2011.  The application seeks to extend the end date from 5th October 
2019 for a further three years.  The reason that the Applicant is not seeking a 
permanent planning consent is provided in the Supporting Statement, 
following the granting of outline planning permission on 19th December 2018 
for the redevelopment of the site for (400 units) of housing and student 
accommodation; “At the present time, the Company wish to renew the 
recycling operation for a further period of three years to allow them sufficient 
time to continue to explore viable options for their business in the long term.”

Existing Condition 1

The development hereby permitted shall cease and the site be restored to 
permeable hard standing to the levels indicated on the Site Survey Plan 
ASG/001/2013 (dated Feb 2013), with all plant and machinery removed, no later 
than the expiration of three years from the date of this permission. [05/10/2016]

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 
as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, 
and in the interests of the amenity of the area in accordance with Saved Policy 
37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan.

Proposed Condition 1

The development hereby permitted shall cease and the site be restored to 
permeable hard standing to the levels indicated on the Site Survey Plan 
ASG/001/2019, dated September 2019, with all plant and machinery 
removed, by no later than 5th October 2022. 

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004, and in the interests of the amenity of the area in accordance with 
Saved Policy 37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan.

2.3 A revision is also sought to condition 2, which sets out the scope of the 
operations permitted.  The revision is concerned with changes to the Site 
Location Plan specified in condition 2 with the addition of a relatively small 
parcel of land into the ownership of the Applicant to the north west of the 
application site and shown within the blue line, known as 1 and 2 Gas Holder 
Cottages.  The red lined application site remains the same.  These dwellings 
are currently occupied by employees of the Applicant.  In addition, a 
rectangular area of hardstanding measuring 35 metres by 30 metres has been 
installed for the purposes of washing crushed materials of soils and debris.  A 
water sump has been installed to recycle the water used in the washing 

Page 20



process.  This washing pad has been located to the west of the access ramp, 
leading off Myers Road, to the north and close to the northern application site 
boundary.  The Supporting Statement states that “The Company endeavours 
to approach matters on a ‘campaign basis’ whereby the processing activities 
i.e. crushing and screening activities are carried out relatively infrequently – 
and not usually more that two periods of crushing over a period of 3-4 weeks 
and two periods of washing over a three week period annually).  The crushing, 
screening and washing processes are conducted by a specialist contractor 
(SE Davis Limited) appointed by the Company.”  

2.4 The Applicant has submitted an updated Noise Impact Assessment and Air 
Quality Report, both of which were referenced in existing condition 2.  
Following their original submission with this application these documents were 
further amended following the detailed comments from consultees during the 
processing of this application.  The amended Noise Impact Assessment was 
submitted on 3rd December 2019 and the Dust Management Plan was 
submitted on 17th December 2019.

Existing Condition 2

Unless varied by other condition(s) attached to this permission, the development 
hereby permitted shall be carried out within the site edged red with a continuous 
line on the 'Site Location Plan' (hereafter referred to as 'the Site'), Drawing 
Number ASG/001/2015 Rev A Survey and Site Location details, dated 
September 2015, Site Layout Plan Number ASG/002/2015 Rev. A , Site Layout 
Plan dated September 2015, Noise Impact Assessment by ARUP dated 30 
March 2016, Air Quality Report by ARUP dated 10th March 2016 and with the 
details in the submitted planning application and supporting information and 
specifications with any scheme, working programme or other details submitted 
for the prior written approval of the Waste Planning Authority in pursuance of any 
condition attached to this permission.

Reason: In order to define the scope of the consent and in the interests of the 
amenity of the area in accordance with Saved Policy 37 of the adopted 
Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan. 

Proposed Condition 2

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out within the site edged 
red with a continuous line on the 'Site Location Plan' (hereafter referred to as 
'the Site'), Drawing Reference: ASG/001/2019, dated September 2019; Site 
Layout Plan ASG/002/2019 Rev. B; Supporting Statement dated 
September 2019; Dust Management Plan by Ove Arup & Partners Ltd., 
dated 9th December 2019, received 17th December 2019; Technical 
Report R8129-3 rev 3 dated 2nd December 2019 by 24Acoustics, letters 
from 24Acoustics dated 8th January 2020 and 15th January 2020 and with 
the details in the submitted planning application and supporting information 
and specifications with any scheme, working programme or other details 
submitted for the prior written approval of the Waste Planning Authority in 
pursuance of any condition attached to this permission.

Page 21



Reason: In order to define the scope of the consent and in the interests of the 
amenity of the area in accordance with Saved Policy 37 of the adopted 
Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan. 

2.5 Planning permission 15/0077GLMAJW was subject to planning condition 15 
requiring the submission of a Noise Management Strategy based upon the 
ARUP Noise Impact Assessment report detailed in condition 2 within 3 
months of the date of permission, being the 5th January 2017.  The Applicant 
did not submit this scheme until the submission of this renewal application but 
has submitted a noise management strategy in order to satisfy the 
requirements set out in following planning condition:  

Existing Condition 15

A site specific Noise Management Strategy based upon the recommendation and 
mitigation measures detailed in the ARUP Noise Impact Assessment report for 
extension of temporary planning permission (30/03/2016) submitted in support of 
the planning application shall be submitted for the written approval of the Waste 
Planning Authority within three calendar months of the date of this permission 
and once approved implemented within 7 days thereof and thereafter maintained 
for the duration of this permission. 

The Noise Management Strategy must take into consideration the 
recommendations and suggested mitigation measures of the said ARUP Noise 
Impact Assessment report and address the following activities, proposing 
methods to limit the noise disturbance:

i. Vehicle movements into and out of the site (including idling vehicles on their 
entrance to the site and reversing bleepers) 

ii. Loading and unloading of material
iii. Crushing of material
iv. Screening and sorting and washing of material as appropriate
v. The use of any other plant or machinery as part of the facility
vi. Provision for monitoring and review of the scheme

Reason: In the interests of limiting noise pollution and to protect the residential 
amenities enjoyed by neighbouring residents in accordance with Saved Policy 37 
of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan and the adopted Waste Core 
Strategy Policy WCS 4. 

2.6 Planning permission 15/0077 was subject to planning condition 19 requiring 
the submission of a Dust and Air Quality Management Strategy based on the 
ARUP Air Quality Report referenced in condition 2.  This was required to be 
submitted by the 5th January 2017.  This was not submitted by the Applicant 
until the submission of this application in order to satisfy the requirements 
detailed in the following condition: 

Page 22



Existing Condition 19

A site specific Dust and Air Quality Management Strategy based upon the 
recommendations and suggested mitigation measures and generic Dust and Air 
Quality Management Strategy detailed in the ARUP Air Quality Report (Dated 
10/03/2016) shall be submitted for the written of the Waste Planning Authority 
within three calendar months of the date of this permission and once approved 
implemented within 7 days thereof and in any event prior to the commencement 
of any crushing and screening activities on Site. 

The Dust Management Strategy must address the following activities, proposing 
methods to limit the air quality disturbance:

i. Dust  generated by vehicle movements into and out of the site and along 
the access road

ii. Loading and unloading of material
iii. Crushing of material
iv. Screening and sorting of material
v. Washing of material
vi. The use of any other plant or machinery as part of the facility
vii. Measures to protect Network Rail Property.
viii. The impact of vehicle movements on local concentrations of dust, 

ambient NO2 and PM10.
ix. Provision for monitoring and review of the scheme.

Reason: In the interests of limiting dust pollution and to protect the residential 
amenities enjoyed by neighbouring residents, in accordance with Saved Policy 
37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan and the adopted Waste 
Core Strategy Policy WCS4.

2.7 Since the application was submitted, the Applicant has provided the details of 
waste vehicle registrations, type of waste and tonnages imported to the 
application site between January 2017 and 2019.  A letter from Kurt Wyman 
Surveyors and Property Agents dated 1st November 2019 was supplied 
confirming that they were retained by the Applicant since 2017 to keep a 
watching brief for potential available sites for relocation but confirmed that no 
opportunities had been identified over the last couple of years.

Amended Report received 03.12.2019

2.8 The revised Noise Impact Assessment by 24Acoustics, dated 2nd December 
2019 was submitted following detailed comments from the Council’s Acoustic 
Consultant (CAC) at Atkins Global Ltd. 

Amended Report received 09.12.2019

2.9 The Dust Management Plan by Ove Arup and Partners Ltd., dated 9th 
December 2019 was submitted following detailed comments from the 
Council’s Air Quality Advisor (CAQA) at Atkins Global Limited. 

Page 23



Amended Site Plan received 17.12.19 

2.10 Site Layout Plan ASG/002/2019 Rev. B was submitted to show the material 
storage exclusion zones of 6 and 20 metres from the southern railway 
boundary and north-western boundary to Gas Holder Cottages.  

Amended Report received 17.12.19

2.11 The Dust Management Plan by Ove Arup and Partners Ltd. was submitted 
following detailed comments from the Council’s Air Quality Advisor (CAQA) at 
Atkins Global Limited.

Letters from 24Acoustics dated 20.12.2019 and 08.01.2020

2.12 Two letters from the Applicant’s acoustic consultant clarifying some detailed 
points made by the CAC were submitted.

Letter from 24Acoustics dated 15.01.2020

2.13 The Applicant’s acoustic consultant submitted a revised noise contour plan 
having made some changes to the acoustic model of noise from the concrete 
crushing operation.  This now demonstrates, with the benefit of 6 metre high 
stockpiles close to the site boundary and the installation of 1.8 metre high 
boundary fencing between the Application Site and the Gas Holder Cottages, 
that the noise impact at all receptors will be below 55dB, although the noise 
level in the rear gardens of Gas Holder Cottages will be marginally below 
65dB.  

Amended Report received 21.01.2020

2.14 The updated consultee comments were incorporated into an updated  Noise 
Impact Assessment incorporating the Noise Management Plan for clarity. 

3.0 PLANNING HISTORY

3.1 The table below indicates the planning history on the application site and the 
Applicant’s adjacent waste recycling site which is subject to separate planning 
permissions. 

Application number Description of development Decision/date

16/00948/OUT Outline application for housing and 
student accommodation; construction of 
new vehicular access; provision of car 
parking, road, footpath and drainage 
infrastructure; ground works, provision of 
open space and landscaping and 
demolition of existing buildings and 
structures. (All matters reserved except 
access).

Granted 
subject to legal 
agreement 
signed on 
19/12/2018

Page 24



15/0077/GLMAJW Use of land to provide facility for the 
crushing and screening of inert waste 
materials to produce secondary 
aggregates (for a temporary period of two 
years).

Granted 

13/0021/GLMAJW
(County matter)

Use of land to provide facility for the 
crushing and screening of inert waste 
materials to produce secondary 
aggregates (for a temporary period of two 
years).

Granted
27/09/13

11/0001/GLMAJW
(County matter)

Use of land to provide a facility for the 
crushing and screening of inert waste 
materials to produce secondary 
aggregates (for a temporary period of 18 
months).

Granted 
25/03/11

Applications on the adjacent part of the Allstone site

20/0003/GLMAJW Variation of conditions 2,3,6,7,18,23 of 
planning permission 07/0081/GLMAJW

Received 
17/01/20

10/0054/GLMAJW
(County matter)

Variation of conditions 7, 11 and 16 of 
planning permission 07/0081/GLMAJW to 
allow the use of the south and west doors, 
alter monthly data returns and increase 
hours of operation. 

Withdrawn 
02/09/10 

09/0045/GLMAJW
(County matter)

Variation of conditions 7, 11 and 16 of 
planning permission 7/0081/GLMAJW to 
allow the use of the south and west doors, 
alter monthly data returns and increase 
hours of operation.  

Refused 
03/12/09

07/0081/GLMAJW
(County matter)

Variation of condition 7 of planning 
permission 05/01126/FUL to allow the 
door on the eastern elevation to be used 
in association with the WTS.
 

Consent 
30/07/08 

05/0080/GLFUL
05 /01126/FUL
(County matter)

Variation of condition 2 of appeal decision 
APP/U1620/A/98/294844/P7, to allow the 
treatment of putrescible and special 
wastes.  

Consent 
17/08/06 

04/00986/FUL                                                                                                                 Variation of condition 5 on planning 
permission 97/00789/COU to allow the 
door on the east elevation to be opened 3 
times per week for operational reasons. 

Refused  
20/08/04 

03/01073/FUL Erection of 2.4 metre high security fencing 
(Amended Plans)

Consent 
02/03/04

01/00254/FUL  
Appeal ref 
APP/U1620/A/01/1 
078338 

Variation of condition 5 on planning 
permission 97/00789/COU to allow door in 
west elevation to remain open during 
operational hours and door on east 
elevation to be opened three times per 
week for operational reasons.  Appeal 
against condition 5 of permission 
97/00789/COU as varied by condition 2 of 
permission 01/00254/FUL which restricts 
the use of the east door to emergency 

Consent 
granted (Split 
decision) 
03/07/01        

Page 25



purposes only. The appellant sought 
variation to allow the east door to be 
opened three times per week for 
operational reasons. 

01/00255/FUL Variation of condition 2 on planning 
permission 97/00789/COU to allow use of 
part of waste transfer building for storage 
of building and garden products. 

Consent 
03/07/01 

00/00654/FUL Extension to existing offices. (To the 
north of the existing office building 
located to the west of the site) 

Consent 
19/12/00 

00/00176/FUL Variation of condition 5 on planning 
permission ref: 97/00787/COU to allow 
door on west elevation to remain open 
during operational hours subject to door 
opening to contain noise. 

Consent 
21/08/00 

99/00214/ADV Externally illuminated lettering to gable-
end of building. 

Consent 
18/05/99 

98/00191/COU
(Duplicate application 
to 97/00789/COU) 

Change of use from warehouse (Class 
B8) to waste transfer station.  

Refused  
17/06/98 

97/00789/COU
 Appeal Ref 
T/APP/U1620/A/98 
/294844/P7 

Change of use from warehouse (Class
B8) to Waste Transfer Station. 

Refused  
31/03/98 
Allowed at 
appeal 
09/10/98 

97/00444/FUL Erection of 2 storey workshop with 
ancillary offices.  Installation of 
weighbridge and aggregate bays, 
construction of parking area, landscaping 
and planting works, demolition of storage 
building and open store. 

Consent 
granted  
01/10/97 

96/00418/LAW (Application for Certificate of Lawfulness) 
Use of land for open storage. 

Granted 
26/09/96 

96/00421/FUL 
 Appeal Ref 
T/APP/U1620/A/96 
/273132/P4  

Installation of a weighbridge. Not 
determined   
Allowed at 
appeal 
17/03/97 

95/00575/FUL   
Appeal Ref 
T/APP/U1620/A/96 
/263624/P4  

Erection of 2 storey workshop with 
ancillary offices.  Installation of 
weighbridge and aggregate bays and re-
grading of the bank to Wotton Brook. 

Not 
determined 
14/11/95  
Dismissed at 
appeal 
17/03/97 

P/590A/67/68 Construction of warehouse for storage 
and distribution for fertilisers. 

Granted 
04/07/68

P/590/67 Change of use of existing disused 
locomotive sheds to distribution depot, 
land at rear of Horton Road Stadium. 

Granted 
08/03/68 

Page 26



Enforcement History

3.2 The Allstone waste management operation has been subject to investigation of 
complaints by the Planning Enforcement Officer, dating back to 2006.  The most 
recent complaints relating to operations taking place outside of hours permitted 
by planning condition (19/0069/COND); the creation of a pedestrian access from 
the Rugby Club car park and the installation of modular buildings used as 
canteen and office (19/0072/ECOU); the unauthorised change of use of land for 
parking of vehicles and skips (19/0073/UNLAWF) are on land outside of the 
current planning application site.  The Applicant has advised that the Waste 
Planning Authority will shortly receive a further planning application on the 
adjacent waste management site in order to resolve these issues.  

4.0 POLICY CONTEXT

NATIONAL POLICY GUIDANCE

National Planning Policy Framework

4.1 The revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF3) published on 19th 
February 2019 sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how 
these are expected to be applied and is a material consideration in determining 
the application.  In assessing and determining planning proposals, the local 
planning authority should apply the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development, which is the main focus of the NPPF3 in relation to both the plan-
making and decision making process.  The NPPF does not contain specific 
waste policies; however local authorities should have regard to policies in the 
framework so far as relevant to waste applications.  

4.2 Paragraph 7 NPPF3 advises that the purpose of the planning system is to 
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development.  Sustainable 
development means that 3 overarching objectives of building a strong and 
competitive economy, maintaining healthy and vibrant communities and 
protecting the environment need to be pursued.  

4.3 Paragraph 11 NPPF3 advises that decision takers should apply a 
presumption in favour of sustainable development by: 

 approving development proposals that accord with an up to date 
development plan without delay; or 

 where there are no relevant development plan policies or the policies 
are out of date, granting permission unless;

 the application of policies in the NPPF that protect areas or assets of 
particular importance provide a clear reason for refusing the proposed 
development; or 

 any adverse impact of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the NPPF 
taken as a whole.

Page 27



4.4 Paragraph 108 NPPF3 advises in assessing proposals for development it 
should be ensured that a safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved 
for all users and significant impacts from the development on the transport 
network (in terms of capacity and congestion) or on highway safety can be 
cost effectively mitigated to an acceptable degree. 

4.5 Paragraph 109 NPPF3 requires that development should not be refused on 
highway grounds unless there would be an unacceptable impact on highway 
safety or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be 
severe.

4.6 Paragraph 170 NPPF3 discusses how planning decisions should contribute to 
and enhance the natural and local environment.  In relation to air quality 
NPPF 3 notes that this can be achieve by:

“e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at 
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by unacceptable levels of 
soil, air, water or noise pollution or land instability.  Development should 
wherever possible help to improve the local environmental conditions such as 
air and water quality taking into account relevant information such as River 
Basin Management Plans.” 

4.7 Paragraph 180 NPPF3 advises that planning decisions should ensure that 
new development is appropriate for its location, taking into account the likely 
effects of pollution on health, living conditions and the natural environment, as 
well as the potential sensitivity of the site or the wider area to impacts that 
could arise from the development.  In so doing they should mitigate and 
reduce to a minimum potential adverse impacts resulting from noise from new 
development and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impact on 
health and the quality of life.  

4.8 Paragraph 204 NPPF3 in relation to minerals advises that planning policies 
should:

“(e) safeguard existing and planned and potential sites for bulk transport, 
handling, processing minerals, manufacture of concrete and concrete 
products; and handling, processing and distribution of substitute, recycled and 
secondary aggregate material.”

National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)

4.9 Air Quality Paragraph 005: When could air quality considerations be relevant 
to the development management process?

“Whether air quality is relevant to a planning decision will depend on the 
proposed development and its location. Concerns could arise if the 
development is likely to have an adverse effect on air quality in areas where it 
is already known to be poor, particularly if it could affect the implementation of 
air quality strategies and action plans and/or breach legal obligations 

Page 28



(including those relating to the conservation of habitats and species). Air 
quality may also be a material consideration if the proposed development 
would be particularly sensitive to poor air quality in its vicinity.
Where air quality is a relevant consideration the local planning authority may 
need to establish:

 the ‘baseline’ local air quality, including what would happen to air 
quality in the absence of the development;

 whether the proposed development could significantly change air 
quality during the construction and operational phases (and the 
consequences of this for public health and biodiversity); and 

 whether occupiers or users of the development could experience poor 
living conditions or health due to poor air quality.

4.10 Noise Paragraph 001: When is noise relevant to planning?

“Noise needs to be considered when development may create additional 
noise, or would be sensitive to the prevailing acoustic environment (including 
any anticipated changes to that environment from activities that are permitted 
but not yet commenced). When preparing plans, or taking decisions about 
new development, there may also be opportunities to make improvements to 
the acoustic environment.  Good acoustic design needs to be considered 
early in the planning process to ensure that the most appropriate and cost-
effective solutions are identified from the outset.”

4.11 Noise Paragraph 002: Can noise override other planning concerns?

“It can, where justified, although it is important to look at noise in the context 
of the wider characteristics of a development proposal, its likely users and its 
surroundings, as these can have an important effect on whether noise is likely 
to pose a concern.”

4.12 Noise Paragraph 009: How can the risk of conflict between new development 
and existing businesses or facilities be addressed?

“Development proposed in the vicinity of existing businesses, community 
facilities or other activities may need to put suitable mitigation measures in 
place to avoid those activities having a significant adverse effect on residents 
or users of the proposed scheme.

In these circumstances the Applicant (or ‘agent of change’) will need to clearly 
identify the effects of existing businesses that may cause a nuisance 
(including noise, but also dust, odours, vibration and other sources of 
pollution) and the likelihood that they could have a significant adverse effect 
on new residents/users. In doing so, the agent of change will need to take into 
account not only the current activities that may cause a nuisance, but also 
those activities that businesses or other facilities are permitted to carry out, 
even if they are not occurring at the time of the application being made.

Page 29



The agent of change will also need to define clearly the mitigation being 
proposed to address any potential significant adverse effects that are 
identified. Adopting this approach may not prevent all complaints from the 
new residents/users about noise or other effects, but can help to achieve a 
satisfactory living or working environment, and help to mitigate the risk of a 
statutory nuisance being found if the new development is used as designed 
(for example, keeping windows closed and using alternative ventilation 
systems when the noise or other effects are occurring).

It can be helpful for developers to provide information to prospective 
purchasers or occupants about mitigation measures that have been put in 
place, to raise awareness and reduce the risk of post-purchase/occupancy 
complaints.”

4.13 Use of Planning Conditions Paragraph 014:  

“A temporary planning permission may also be appropriate to enable the 
temporary us of vacant land or buildings prior to any longer term proposals 
coming forward (a meanwhile use).  It will rarely be justifiable to grant a 
second temporary permission (except in cases where changing 
circumstances provide a clear rationale, such as temporary classrooms and 
other school facilities).  Further permissions can normally be granted 
permanently or refused if there is clear justification for doing so.  There is no 
presumption that a temporary grant of planning permission will then be 
granted permanently.”  

4.14 Waste Paragraph 47: Should existing waste facilities be expanded/extended?

“The waste planning authority should not assume that because a particular 
area has hosted, or hosts, waste disposal facilities, that it is appropriate to 
add to these or extend their life. It is important to consider the cumulative 
effect of previous waste disposal facilities on a community’s wellbeing. 
Impacts on environmental quality, social cohesion and inclusion and 
economic potential may all be relevant. Engagement with the local 
communities affected by previous waste disposal decisions will help in these 
considerations.”

4.15 Waste Paragraph 050 states that:

 “There exist a number of issues which are covered by other regulatory 
regimes and waste planning authorities should assume that these regimes will 
operate effectively.  The focus of the planning system should be on whether 
the development itself is an acceptable use of the land and the impacts of 
those uses, rather than any control processes, health and safety issues or 
emissions themselves where these are subject to approval under other 
regimes.  However, before granting planning permission they will need to be 
satisfied that these issues can or will be adequately addressed by taking the 
advice from the relevant regulatory body.”

Page 30



National Planning Policy for Waste – (October 2014)

4.16 The National Planning Policy for Waste (NPPW) was published in October 
2014 setting out detailed waste planning policies which should be read in 
conjunction with the NPPF.  All local planning authorities should have regard 
to its policies when discharging their responsibilities in relation to waste 
management.  The NPPW was published after the Gloucestershire Waste 
Core Strategy was adopted.  

4.17 Section 7 NPPW provides advice about the determination of planning 
applications. Appendix B of this document provides advice on locational 
criteria and in determining planning applications. Waste planning authorities 
should consider where appropriate the following: 

a) protection of  water quality and resources and flood risk management
b) landscape instability
c) landscape and visual impacts
d) nature conservation 
e) conserving the historic environment
f) traffic and access
g) air emissions, including dust
h) odours
i) vermin and birds
j) noise, light and vibration
k) litter
l) potential land use conflict

4.18 Consideration of air emissions and dust will include the proximity of sensitive 
receptors including ecological as well as human receptors and the extent to 
which adverse emissions can be controlled through the use of appropriate 
and well maintained and managed equipment and vehicles.
 

4.19 Local Planning Authorities are also asked not to concern themselves with the 
control of processes which are a matter for the pollution control authorities.  
LPAs should work on the assumption that the relevant pollution control regime 
will be properly applied and enforced. 

DEFRA Noise Policy Statement of England 2010

4.20 The Noise Policy Statement of England (NPSE) was published on 15 March 
2010 by Department for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs and it sets 
out the long term vision of government noise policy to promote good health 
and good quality of life through the management of noise.

4.21 Noise policy long term vision is supported by the following aims:

“Through the effective management and control of environmental, neighbour 
and neighbourhood noise within the context of Government policy on 
sustainable development: 

 avoid significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life; 

Page 31



 mitigate and minimise adverse impacts on health and quality of life; and 
 where possible, contribute to the improvement of health and quality of 

life.”

DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR GLOUCESTERSHIRE

Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy (Adopted November 2012)   

4.22 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 indicates 
that development proposals should be determined in accordance with the 
adopted Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  
Gloucestershire’s Waste Core Strategy (WCS) was adopted 21st November 
2012 and forms part of the Minerals and Waste Development Framework, 
providing a planning framework for waste management across the county of 
Gloucestershire in the period 2012 - 2027.  It identifies a vision, objectives and 
strategy relevant to Gloucestershire compliant with the NPPF.  The WCS is 
part of the adopted Development Plan.  The policies from the WCS relevant to 
the determination of this application are:   

Policy WCS1 – Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
When considering development proposals the Council will take a positive 
approach that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable development 
contained in the National Planning Policy Framework. It will always work 
proactively with Applicants jointly to find solutions which mean that proposals can 
be approved wherever possible, and to secure development that improves the 
economic, social and environmental conditions in the area.

Planning applications that accord with the policies in the WCS (and, where 
relevant, with policies in neighbourhood plans) will be approved without delay, 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out 
of date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise – taking into account whether:

 Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies 
in the National Planning Policy Framework taken as a whole; 

or
 Specific policies in that Framework indicate that development should be 

restricted.

Policy WCS4 – Inert Waste Recycling and Recovery
In order to help reduce the impact of landfill and achieve the requirements of the 
Waste Framework Directive (2008) the Council will aim to divert around 85,000 
tonnes/year of inert waste from landfill through recycling and recovery 
operations.
Proposals for inert waste recycling and recovery facilities will be permitted where 
it can be demonstrated that:

Page 32



1. The impact on the environment and neighbouring land uses is acceptable 
including detailed assessment of the impact of noise and dust and 
attenuation measures.

2. Where viable, the proposal incorporates the use of alternatives to road 
transport such as rail and water and that where road transport is used the 
highway access is suitable for the proposed vehicle movements and is 
supported by a transport assessment and travel plan setting out measures 
to encourage employees to reach the site by foot, cycle or public transport.

3. The proposal contributes towards providing a sustainable waste 
management system for Gloucestershire.

4. If the proposal is permanent and of a ‘strategic’ scale (>50,000 tonnes/year) 
it is located in the area defined as ‘Zone C’ (see Key Diagram) except where 
located within an existing or disused mineral working.

Developments may be acceptable on existing waste management sites and 
mineral workings where it can be demonstrated that the minimum amount of 
materials are being used for restoration/engineering purposes and that the use 
will not unduly prejudice the agreed restoration principles and timescale for the 
site. Temporary developments may be acceptable where the material is recycled 
and re-used on site.

Policy WCS10 – Cumulative Impact: 
In determining proposals for waste related development for new or enhanced 
waste management facilities the Council will have regard to the cumulative 
effects of previous and existing waste management facilities on local 
communities alongside the potential benefits of co-locating complimentary 
facilities together. Planning permission will be granted where the proposal would 
not have an unacceptable cumulative impact. 

In considering the issue of cumulative impact, particular regard will be given to 
the following: 1. Environmental quality; 2. Social cohesion and inclusion; and 3. 
Economic potential. 

Within these broad categories this will, subject to the scale and nature of the 
proposal, include an assessment of the following issues: noise, odour, traffic 
(including accessibility and sustainable transport considerations), dust, health, 
ecology and visual impacts.

 
Policy WCS18 – Bulking and Transfer: 
In order to promote greater efficiency and to reduce the potential impact of 
transporting waste by road, particularly on the Strategic Road Network (SRN) the 
Council will support in principle, proposals relating to the development of new 
and expanded bulking and transfer facilities. 
Planning permission will be granted subject to the following criteria being met: 

1. It can be demonstrated that the impact on the environment and 
neighbouring land uses is acceptable. 

2. The highway access is suitable for the proposed vehicle movements. 
3. The proposal contributes towards providing a sustainable waste 

management system for Gloucestershire. 

Page 33



Particular support will be given to proposals that: 
 Are located within or close to an urban area; and/or
 Involve the re-use of previously developed land, vacant or underutilised 

employment land and/or redundant rural buildings including farm 
diversification opportunities; and / or  

 Involve co-location with an existing operation of a similar or complimentary 
nature; and / or 

 Incorporate alternatives to the transport of waste by road (rail, water etc.), 
and / or 

 Are well located to allow employees to reach the site by foot, cycle or public 
transport.

Policy WCS19 – Sustainable Transport: 
In the interests of sustainable development and minimising the impact of waste 
management on Gloucestershire's roads and the wider natural and historic 
environment, proposals for waste-related development that utilise alternative 
modes of transport such as rail and water will be positively supported. This is 
subject to compliance with other relevant development plan policies and the 
contribution to a sustainable waste management system for Gloucestershire. 

Any development exceeding the thresholds set out in the Department for 
Transport publication 'Guidance on Transport Assessment' must be supported by 
a Transport Assessment (TA) and Travel Plan. Consideration will also be had to 
the location of the proposed development in determining whether a TA is 
required. 

Development that would have an adverse impact on the highway network which 
cannot be mitigated will not be permitted. Where a Travel Plan is required the 
developer will be expected to enter into a Section 106 or unilateral legal 
agreement to secure the development of the travel plan and any contributions 
required to support its implementation. A contribution towards costs of monitoring 
the travel plan will also be required.  

Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan 2002 – 2012 (Adopted October 2004) 

4.23 The Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan (WLP) was adopted in October 2004 
and some of its policies still form part of the Development Plan.  Therefore 
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 applies to 
these policies.  Following the Secretary of State for the Communities and 
Local Government’s Direction (dated 5 October 2007), the following WLP 
policies are ‘saved’ until replaced by Development Plan Documents contained 
in the Minerals and Waste Development Frameworks and are relevant to the 
determination of the proposed development: 

Policy 37 – Proximity to other land uses:  
Proposals for waste development will be determined taking into account such 
matters as the effect on the environment, occupants’ and users’ amenity and 
health, the countryside, the traditional landscape character of Gloucestershire, 
the local highway network, any hazardous installation or substance and any 
adverse cumulative effect in combination with other development in the area. 

Page 34



Where appropriate, suitable ameliorative measures shall be incorporated in the 
proposals to mitigate, attenuate and control noise, dust, litter, odour, landfill gas, 
vermin, leachate and flue emissions. 

Policy 38 – Hours of Operation:  
The Waste Planning Authority will where appropriate impose a condition 
restricting hours of operation on waste management facilities to protect amenity.

Policy 42 – Reinstatement: 
In considering proposals for temporary waste development, the waste planning 
authority requires reinstatement measures for the land including appropriate 
aftercare to secure acceptable and sustainable after-use by a set date. In the 
case of restoration to agriculture, the land should be returned to a quality 
equivalent to or better than existed before development commenced. A good 
environmental standard will be expected that will reflect the character of the land 
as a valuable resource. Details of reinstatement requirements will be determined 
by the circumstances prevailing at the time of the planning decision and when 
any later applications for review are considered. 

Emerging Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire 2018-2032

4.24 The emerging Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire (2018 – 2032) 
(hereafter referred to as “the emerging MLP”) was submitted to the Secretary 
of State for examination in December 2018.  The County Council considered 
the submitted emerging MLP to be sound and legally compliant at that time. 
Examination hearing sessions took place on the 11th and 12th June 2019. 
Following the hearing sessions, a request was made by the County Council to 
the appointed Planning Inspector, to recommend main modifications to the 
emerging MLP.  A public consultation of proposed main modifications to the 
emerging MLP occurred between 16th July and 11th September 2019.  All 
representations to the proposed main modifications to the emerging MLP and 
the County Council’s consideration of them were submitted in October 2019 to 
the appointed Planning Inspector.  On 23rd December 2019 the County 
Council received the Inspector’s Report into the emerging MLP examination.  
The report concluded that the Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire (2018-
2032) provides an appropriate basis for mineral planning in the County, 
subject to incorporating all of the recently consulted main modifications. As of 
January 2020, the County Council are deciding whether to progress with 
adopting the emerging MLP in line with the concluding recommendations of 
the Inspector’s Report.   

4.25 Paragraph 48 of the NPPF3 states that weight may be given to the policies 
contained in emerging plans. From January 2020, officers of the County 
Council consider that significant weight can be given to the policies contained 
in the emerging MLP, made up of the submitted plan from December 2018 
and the main modifications that were consulted upon between July and 
September 2019, when determining minerals-related planning applications. 
Material weight should also be given to the content of the Inspector’s Report 
into the emerging MLP’s examination. However, in all instances the fact that 

Page 35



the policies of the emerging MLP have still to be adopted will need to be taken 
into account. 

4.26 Accordingly the County Council considers the following emerging policies to 
be relevant:  

Policy SR01 | Maximising the use of secondary and recycled aggregates

Part a | Mineral developments

Mineral development proposals will be permitted where they adopt best 
practice in the extraction, processing and transportation of primary minerals in 
order to minimise the amount of waste generated and make provision for the 
sustainable production of secondary and recycled aggregates, subject to the 
requirements of Policy MW06 | Ancillary minerals development 

Part b | Non-mineral developments

Non-mineral development proposals will be permitted where they adopt 
sustainable design principles, construction methods and procurement policies 
that are in line with the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Core Strategy Policy 
WCS 2 | Waste reduction. This includes using the minimal amount of primary 
minerals; reusing or facilitating the recycling of mineral wastes generated 
onsite and using alternative construction materials sourced from secondary 
and recycled aggregates.

Part c | Non-mineral developments involving the production of secondary 
aggregates

Non-mineral developments involving the production of secondary aggregates 
will be permitted subject to such operations meeting the applicable 
requirements of other local development plan policies such as those 
concerned with amenity protection and environmental acceptability.

Policy MW06 | Ancillary minerals development
Ancillary minerals development within mineral sites will be permitted, where it 
can be demonstrated: -
I. the best use of minerals worked from within the boundary of the site in 

which they are located will be facilitated; and / or
II. any importation of minerals and other materials used to produce secondary 

and /or recycled aggregates from elsewhere will represent an 
environmentally acceptable and sustainable option; and

III. all operations will be for a temporary period of time restricted to the life of 
the mineral site in which they are located and the removal of all built 
structures will occur at the earliest opportunity once mineral working has 
ceased; and

IV. the requirements of policy MR01 (Restoration, aftercare and facilitating 
beneficial after-uses) can be satisfactorily met; and

V. a positive contribution will be made to sustaining or growing the local 
economy and /or upholding cultural heritage throughout Gloucestershire.

Page 36



Joint Core Strategy – Adopted 23 November 2017

4.27 As stated above, under Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004, planning applications should be determined in 
accordance with the Development Plan unless material considerations 
indicate otherwise.  The Joint Core Strategy (JCS) forms part of the 
Development Plan and provides the strategic policy for development across 
the three administrative areas of Cheltenham, Gloucester and Tewkesbury 
until 2031.  Gloucester City Council formally adopted the Joint Core Strategy 
(23rd November 2017) along with Tewkesbury Borough Council (5th December 
2017) and Cheltenham Borough Council (11th December 2017).  The JCS 
contains a number of strategic objectives, one of which (Objective 9) is 
concerned with promoting healthy communities by enhancing opportunities for 
working in partnership to ensure that environmental quality and air quality is 
protected. 

The following JCS policies are considered relevant to the determination of this 
application:

Policy SD1 – Employment
Employment – related development will be supported: 

vii. Where it allows the growth or expansion of existing business especially in 
the key growth sectors, subject to all other policies of the plan.
viii. Where it would encourage and support the development of small and 
medium sized enterprises, subject to all other policies of the plan. 

Policy SD14 – Health and Environmental Quality
1. High quality development should protect and seek to improve 
environmental quality. Development should not create or exacerbate 
conditions that could impact on human health or cause health inequality.

2. New development must:
i. Cause no unacceptable harm to local amenity including the amenity of 

neighbouring occupants;
ii. Result in no unacceptable levels of air, noise, water, light or soil 

pollution or odour, either alone or cumulatively, with respect to relevant 
national and EU limit values;

iii. Result in no exposure to unacceptable risk from existing or potential 
sources of pollution. For example, by avoiding placing sensitive uses in 
locations where national or EU limit values are exceeded, or by 
incorporating acceptable mitigation measures into development;

iv. Incorporate, as appropriate, the investigation and remediation of any 
land contamination within the site.

Second Stage Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan (2002) 

4.28 The Second Stage Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan is a draft plan that 
was published and approved for development control decision making in 

Page 37



2002.  As it is not a formally adopted plan its policies cannot be superseded 
by the adoption of the Joint Core Strategy.  However its policies have been 
reviewed by the City Council in light of the JCS, NPPF and the following 
Policy E.4 is considered to have material weight in decision making.   

E.4: Protecting employment land 
Planning permission will not be granted for new development that involves the 
loss of employment land unless the following criteria are met: 
1. The land has limited potential for employment, and 
2. The developer is able to demonstrate that an alternative use, or mix of uses, 
offers greater potential benefit to the community.  

Gloucester City Plan 

4.29 The Pre-Submission Gloucester City Plan (GCP) was approved for public 
consultation by the City Council on 26th September 2019, under Regulation 
19 of The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 
2012 .  The Plan was published for consultation for a period of six weeks, 
between Thursday 7th November and Friday 20th December 2019.  

4.30 Together with the JCS, the GCP will guide the City's future growth up to 2031.  
It covers a time frame of 15 years between 2016 and 2031.  The GCP delivers 
the JCS at the local level but will also set out policies that seek to address 
local issues and opportunities in the City.  It will identify where and how new 
development will take place to make sure requirements are met, and that new 
developments positively contribute to the City's needs.  

4.31 There are no specific proposals for the application site, although there is a 
draft site allocation for approximately 10 dwellings on 0.36 ha site immediately 
to the north with Policy SA19: Land off Myers Road.  The Policy SA19 
overview makes reference to the suitability of this allocation being dependent 
on the removal of the adjacent Allstone Sand and Gravel Site which has 
planning permission for residential development and student accommodation.

4.32 There is another site allocation for approximately 200 residential dwellings on 
a 4.3 ha site immediately to the west of the application site under Policy SA05: 
Land at Great Western Road Sidings.  The overview for this brownfield site is 
the site offers the opportunity for a high density scheme near the city centre 
and transport hub.  Proximity to existing potential sources of air pollution is 
noted and that regard to the City Council’s adopted Railway Corridor Planning 
Brief should be given (see below).

Railway Corridor Planning Brief

4.33 The City Council approved the Revised Draft Supplementary Planning 
Document Railway Corridor Planning Brief in March 2011 as part of the 
emerging Gloucester Local Development Framework.  

Page 38



Central Area Action Plan (August 2006)

4.34 The Central Area Action Plan (CAAP) was intended to be one of four main 
Development Plan Documents of a new Local Development Framework for 
Gloucester to steer the future growth and regeneration of central Gloucester.  
The CAAP Preferred Options Document was subject to public consultation 
between August and September 2006 but in light of the decision to progress 
the JCS, work on this plan was stopped.  The CAAP included proposals for 
The Railway Corridor area as mixed-use development including, B1, B2 or B8 
employment use or mix of uses of greater community benefit including a 
Community Stadium, subject to the relocation of bad neighbour uses, at the 
Horton Road sidings and land accessed off Myers Road, residential 
development.  However the CAAP is now on hold and can be given no weight 
in the determination of this application.

5.0 REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 The application was publicised by site notices dated 31st October 2019 and a 
press notice in the Gloucestershire Citizen newspaper on the 31st October 
2019.  The expiry date given for comments was 21st November 2019.  

5.2 Seventy seven neighbour notification letters were sent to adjoining residents 
on 24th October 2019 with comments requested by 21st November 2019.  A 
total of 30 objections have been recorded to date.  The issues raised in these 
objections relate to:

 Invalid application - cannot renew a temporary permission which has 
expired.  Should not be able to keep renewing a temporary permission;

 Bad neighbour industrial use unsuitable near residential property and 
should be made to move;

 No reason to believe Applicant from past experience;
 Lack of enforcement action has been taken by the County Council 

which cannot be relied upon to be consider planning merits impartially;
 Lack of confidence that mitigation proposed will be carried out by the 

Applicant or enforced by the relevant authorities;
 Excessive noise and dust due to continued operations in the open air 

prevents use of private gardens and means windows have to be kept 
closed;

 Unable to identify noise from this site because of other noisy activities; 
 Noise management strategy has only just been submitted in spite of 

the planning condition requiring since 2017;
 Questions the reasonableness of the average 20 HGV movements per 

day and whether the WPA would know if the 20,000 tonnes throughput 
limit is exceeded.  Considers that an actual vehicle count based on 
actual operation should be provided traffic generation not properly 
quantified;

 Highway Authority response to previous application did not contain an 
objective assessment and was poor quality;

Page 39



 Question the restoration of the site to a hardstanding;
 Dust management plan does not appear to be very thorough and 

appears to be an attempt to meeting a planning condition imposed in 
2017;

 Operating times not adhered to as operations are carried out before 
7am and after 7pm;

 Concern over long term health of children and adults and pets from 
dust in the house and to open space users from hazardous materials 
on site;

 Lack of compliance with planning permissions on this and other parts 
of the main site;  

 Cannot understand how a renewal is possible when there are so many 
breaches and complaints are not dealt with;

 Parking of large HGV and staff along Myers Road can be dangerous 
for pedestrians as cars forced onto pavement by unyielding HGV 
traffic.  Parking restrictions should be considered.  HGV Drivers are 
looking house windows when parked up waiting to enter the site;

 Horton Road from London Road is unsuitable for large volumes of 
traffic with school, hospital and other medical facilities in the area. 
Discourages children from walking to school;

 Excessive speed of lorries on Myers Road;
 Myers Road unsuitable for large articulated lorries and can’t negotiate 

two mini roundabouts on the route;
 Poor condition of road cannot withstand the use;
 Site security and safety issue of new pedestrian access gate from the 

GOBRC car park left unlocked;
 Level crossing on Horton Road increases congestion and pollution of 

standing vehicles, prevents ambulances from reaching hospital and 
questions if air quality has been tested;

 Cement dust from site also adds to the air pollution;
 Rats in gardens and odours and flies;
 There appears to be no monitoring of activities by authorities which is a 

misuse of power, local residents are ignored and should be 
compensated by lowering council tax; 

 Increase in larger aggregate lorries has been noticed;
 Noise from constant crushing on bank holidays and early morning.  

Noise from movement of vehicles around the site;  
 Gutter pavements and shrubs constantly full of litter and site 

workers/visitors throw rubbish outside the site;
 Operating outside of the permitted hours.  Lorries arriving early in 

morning which wakes household; some loads are unsecured; and
 Parking arrangements are out of date with traffic flows and should be 

reorganised to permit parking on one side only.

Page 40



6.0 CONSULTATIONS

Gloucester City Council

6.1 Gloucester City Council does not object to the proposal in principle or in 
relation to its environmental impact.  However they have expressed concerns 
over the sustainability of such a proposal and whether granting a further 
temporary permission for this facility complies with national planning policy.  

“Our concerns can be summarised as: 

- Why a further temporary permission is appropriate in light of the PPG’s 
statements on the use of planning conditions.

- The potential for noise, dust and traffic congestion and pollution 
impacts on existing and future residents. 

- The overall suitability and sustainability of this waste site (which is a 
low value land use) in the centre of Gloucester.”

Gloucester City Environmental Health

6.2 The EHO has no objection to the application in terms of noise and dust 
emissions adversely impacting the nearest sensitive receptors commented:

“Noise:  The submitted noise impact assessment confirms that noise from the 
aggregate activity will not exceed 55dB LAeq, 1 hour at the nearest residential 
receptors to the site which is compliant with condition 14 of the previous 
planning consent.  If the application is granted you may wish to include the 
same condition.

Dust:  The submitted Dust Management Plan appears satisfactory and if the 
application is granted you may wish to include a condition regarding its 
implementation.” 

6.3 The EHO has commented that the aggregate activity holds an Environmental 
Permit which requires the Best Available Techniques to be implemented to 
control noise and dust emissions from the site.  He is not aware of any historic 
or current complaints relating to the aggregate activity.

Local Member

6.4 The Local County Councillor (Councillor Hilton) advised that 29 individual 
letters of objection had been received from members of the public who live 
nearby and that they have good reason to complain about the continued 
operation of stone crushing at the Myers Road site. He has provided the 
following reasons why he considers that the application should be refused and 
requested that this application be referred to the Planning Committee for 
determination:

Page 41



“Temporary becomes permanent

The original planning permission for stone crushing was given on the 25th of 
March 2011 for 18 months and then again on the 23rd March 2013 for two 
years and then again on the 5th of October 2016 for three years. You will see 
a pattern here of late applications that is repeated this time. In total the stone 
crushing has been in operation for nine years.  

Granting for another three years is really stretching temporary permission to 
beyond being reasonable.

Alternative site

On 19th December 2018 Allstone was granted outline planning permission for 
housing on their site. They therefore have permission for an alternative use for 
the site. In nine years of operating temporary permissions they have failed to 
provide any evidence that they have been searching for an alternative site. A 
letter from Kurt Wyman dated the 1st of November 2019 saying they have 
been holding a ‘watching brief’ is not sufficient evidence. Allstone must 
provide evidence of land searches, site visits etc. A letter from a mate just 
won’t do. The county council as the waste planning authority has not been told 
whether they have found an alternative site. This lack of communication is 
disturbing. Has the waste planning authority been asked to assist Allstone to 
find another site? I imagine the answer would be no.

Breaking current permissions

Allstone are serial offenders and have broken a number of conditions of the 
2016 permission 15/0077/GLMAJW. The county council is too feeble in taking 
appropriate enforcement. I have lost confidence in the council’s ability to 
resolve this matter.

 Condition 6: Stockpiles of stone must not be greater than 6 metres. 
Allstone have breached this limit a number of times as reported by the 
planning enforcement team.

 Condition 7: Unauthorised Portakabins have been stored on site.
 Condition 8: Allstone have exceeded throughput volumes set at 20,000 

tonnes per annum. In 2017 volumes were 26,750 tonnes and in 2018 
this was 25,032 tonnes. What are the figures for 2019?

 Condition 15: The company failed to provide a noise management 
strategy in time for the site based on the planning agreement of 2016. 
This despite the close proximity of residential properties.

 Condition 19: The company does not meet this condition to provide the 
county council with 48 hours prior notification of when stone crushing, 
screening and washing is taking place.

 Condition 20: The company did not provide the county council with a 
dust and air quality management strategy within 3 months of the 
previous permission, despite the problems of dust nuisance affecting 
the lives of neighbouring residents.

Page 42



 Condition 26: The company has failed to keep stockpiles away from the 
Network Rail boundary equal to the height of the stockpile.

 Condition 27: Material stockpiled must be kept at least 20 metres away 
from the north western boundary adjacent to 1 and 2 Gas Holder 
Cottages.

 A large concrete standing has been constructed without planning 
permission.

Noise and Dust nuisance 

The people living nearby at Swallow Park and Armscroft Estate have already 
suffered from years of noise and dust from the operation of the stone 
crushing. This application is the fourth to seek temporary permission. When 
does temporary use become semi permanent?

Do residents deserve another three years of dust and noise? I believe it is 
now time to close down stone crushing so near to the homes of families in my 
division. This sort of business should not be operating in an urban 
environment.

There are already heavy lorries visiting other business uses along Myers 
Road, presents an unacceptable intrusion into the lives of people living in 
particular off Norman Ball Way.

Highway Hazard

May I also point out that we have the hospital, Aspen Medical Practice and St. 
Peter's Primary School in the area as well? Heavy lorries travelling along 
Horton Road present an unnecessary hazard to pedestrians and other road 
users.

The section of Myers Road that is a county highway is in poor condition 
because of the damage done to it by the lorries that visit Allstone Sand & 
Gravel. Will the Applicant offer to make good the damage done to the road? 
Similarly Horton Road is breaking up in many places.

Not a suitable location

The proposal to crush stone and stockpile aggregates if it were a new 
permanent proposal in my view would not be approved. The business 
operation carried out by Allstone would be better suited to a non urban 
environment. Ultimately, the proposal to continue to crush stone at this site 
would impose a negative impact of the quality of life of those people living 
nearby.

Recommendation 

I would ask that the application be refused, and for condition 1 of the 
permission 15/0077/GLMAJW to be implemented, it says: “The development 
hereby permitted shall cease and the site be restored to permeable hard 

Page 43



standing to the levels indicated on the site survey plan ASG/001/2013 (dated 
Feb 2013), with all plant and machinery removed, no later than the expiration 
of three years from the date of this permission.” This should have been done 
by 4th of October 2019.

If officers are minded to recommend approval I would like them to consider 
applying new conditions to the permission.

 A bond is applied of sufficient financial penalty, to be retained by the 
county council, if Allstone fail to comply with planning conditions, as 
evidence shows they have done during the last three years.

 A financial contribution to cover full cost of resurfacing of Myers Road 
from Horton Road to the main gates to the Allstone site.

 A financial contribution towards the resurfacing of Horton Road, which 
continues to be damaged by the heavy lorries visiting Allstone.

 A financial contribution to Gloucester City Council towards regular 
footway and highway cleaning caused by dust and debris coming from 
the lorries going to and from Allstone.”

Highways Development Management

6.5 The County Highway advisor has reviewed the application in relation to 
highway capacity and highway safety and has no highways grounds to 
recommend refusal, subject to the imposition of reparation planning condition 
and planning informative relating to the recovery of highway repair costs. 

“The access route along [Myers Road from] Horton Road to the site as 
identified on plan ref [ASG/001/2019] shall not come into operational use until 
a scheme comprising a monitoring, maintenance and reparation strategy is 
agreed in writing with the Waste Planning Authority.  Such a scheme shall be 
fully implemented and include maintenance and repair of the route throughout 
the lifetime of the permission.

Reason: To ensure safe and suitable access in the interests of highway safety 
for all users of Myers Road.”  

6.6 When the local Member’s suggestion that in the event of an approval of 
permission that the Applicant should pay the full cost of resurfacing Myers 
Road from Horton Road was referred to the County Highway advisor for 
further consideration, the County Highway advisor was supportive of a 
planning condition to ensure that the cost of maintenance required due the 
deterioration of the highway which had occurred due to the impacts of the 
development could be secured in the interests of highway safety for all users 
of Myers Road.

Lead Local Flood Authority

6.7 The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) did not comment on application 
15/0077/GLMAJW and did not recommend conditions 1 or 2.  They have no 
comments to make on this variation.

Page 44



Public Health England

6.8 Public Health England (PHE) commented that they “would not normally 
comment on this type of planning application unless there are specific 
chemical & environmental hazard concerns which have the potential to impact 
on the health of local communities. Impacts on public health from local air 
quality, noise and contaminated land fall under the remit of the local authority 
and it is their responsibility to decide whether to comment on these aspects of 
the planning application.

If the local authority has any specific queries relating to potential impacts on 
public health from chemical & environmental hazard exposures, then they are 
welcome to contact us for advice. In addition, the site will require an 
environmental permit to operate and control emissions that could potentially 
impact on and off-site receptors which will be regulated by Gloucester City 
Council.”

Environment Agency 

6.9 The Environment Agency has no objections to the proposed development. 
The operator holds an Environmental Permit for this site and currently has no 
outstanding non-compliances.

Network Rail

6.10 Network Rail advised that all their previous comments still apply.  They raised 
no objection to the previous applications subject to appropriate planning 
conditions relating to fencing, track safety, site drainage and the safe 
operation of machinery adjacent to the track being applied.  

7.0 STRATEGIC INFRASTRUCTURE OBSERVATION

County’s Acoustic Consultant 

7.1 The County’s Acoustic Consultant (CAC) reviewed the submitted Noise 
Impact Assessment which includes a Noise Management Plan in Appendix D 
in order to fulfil the requirements of Condition 15.  The CAC considered that 
the Noise Management Plan meets the requirements of Condition 15 part ii, 
which relates to loading and unloading material but in order to achieve 
compliance with parts i, iii, iv, v and vi, the Noise Management Plan is 
required to include the following information:

 Measures to manage, mitigate or control noise from vehicle reversing 
alarms (Condition 15 part i);

 Information on the time periods during which crushing, screening and 
washing activities would take place (Condition 15 parts iii and iv);

 Measures to manage, mitigate or control noise from crushing, 
screening and washing activities to reduce operational noise levels at 

Page 45



sensitive receptors, where noise levels in excess of 55dB LAeq were 
predicted in Figure 3 of the Noise Impact Assessment report (Condition 
15 parts iii and iv);

 Identification of items of plant or processes involved in crushing, 
screening, washing and sorting operations that are likely to emit 
directional sound (Condition 15 parts iii and iv);

 Measures to manage, mitigate or control noise from “other” plant or 
machinery not specifically linked to loading or unloading, crushing, or 
washing or screening operations (Condition 15 part v);

 Measures to monitor noise at the nearest sensitive receptors during 
campaign periods, including monitoring locations (Condition 15 part vi);

 More details on the complaint management procedure (naming the Site 
Manager, how complaints will be managed and dealt with including 
time periods, contact with local residents, whether the Waste Planning 
Authority will be contacted) and the action to be taken on receipt and 
investigation of a complaint, including the actions stated in Condition 
16.

7.2 Furthermore, the CAC recommended that the Noise Management Plan (NMP) 
includes the following to improve compliance with Condition 6 and Condition 
19, to be secured through amendments to Condition 15:

 Measures on how the stockpile height will be managed and monitored 
during campaign periods, as the stockpile height directly influences 
noise levels at noise sensitive receptors located north, west and east of 
the Site (Condition 6).

 Measures to improve stakeholder communication in advance of 
campaign periods. This includes incorporating a measure to contact 
the Waste Planning Authority at least 48 hours in advance of any 
crushing or screening operations (Condition 19) and to provide details 
on how local residents can contact the Site to discuss noise emissions.

 Requirement to keep and maintain a log book that includes dates and 
times of crushing, screening, washing and sorting activities, and 
records contact with stakeholders (local residents and Local Authority) 
about noise. This logbook should be made available to the Waste 
Planning Authority on request.

 It is recommended that the Noise Impact Assessment is updated by the 
Applicant to address the observations detailed herein.

 Should the Council be minded to grant consent for the continuation of 
activities, that planning conditions as attached to the previous consent 
(ref: 15/0077/GLMAJW) are imposed on any new consent, with 
amendments.  

 Amendments to condition 14 and 15 and recommended two new 
conditions which required the submission of an annual report  
summarising operations from preceding 12 months and update the 
NMP to comply with the requirements of condition 15 with additional 
requirements of a log book and annual reporting.

Page 46



County Acoustic Consultant’s Comments on 19.12.2019

7.3 The CAC advised that she was satisfied that the most recent version of the 
Noise Management Plan is appropriate and meets the requirements of the 
planning condition.  However that there were still issues raised previously in 
the noise assessment which had not been addressed by the Applicant’s 
consultant. Of particular concern are:

 “The high noise levels in excess of the 55dB LAeq noise limit shown at 
residential properties south of Metz Way. I’m sure this is because the 
noise modelling was not undertaken properly (I suspect that screening 
from the embankment and other structures providing screening was 
omitted). But it does raise the question of whether there is an impact there 
or not and I think this requires further investigation before the Applicant 
can confirm that “the noise levels are compliant”

 Additionally, there are dwellings north of the site where the noise contour 
plot implies non-compliance. The commentary requested clarification and 
none has been provided to date.

 I’m still not wholly convinced that we can rely on the stockpile heights to 
be 6m during the crushing campaigns based on the information I have 
seen.  This is because 6m is the maximum height they are permitted to be 
(so only the best case noise attenuation has been considered in the 
assessment), and stockpiles regularly change shape and size.  That said, 
the updated Noise Management Plan requires the Applicant to monitor 
stockpile heights during crushing campaigns to avoid any potential loss of 
noise attenuation from smaller stockpile heights.”

County Acoustic Consultant Comments dated 6th January 2020

7.4 The CAC commented that the updated noise assessment received from 
24Acoustics in relation to the properties to the south of Metz Way takes 
account of screening from the embankment and other structures 
demonstrating that the noise contour band is below 55 dB LAeq.  

7.5 The CAC noted that the updated noise contour still showed Gas Holder 
Cottages and the eastern façade of Chapel House Care Home was inside the 
55 dB LAeq isoline and would be above the noise limit.  

County Acoustic Consultant Comments dated 9th January 2020

7.6 The CAC commented that the noise levels at Gas Holder Cottages would be 
around 65dB when crushing activities are undertaken and therefore the 
planning condition requiring a 55dB limit is not met.  The Applicant’s 
consultant suggested an amended planning condition to relax the noise limit 
for these properties. 

“The free-field noise level in the rear garden of Gas Holder cottages should 
not exceed 55dB LAeq 1 hour except for up to 10 days in any fortnight period 
when it may not exceed 65dB LAeq 1 hour.”

Page 47



7.7 The CAC commented that he had some sympathy with the approach of using 
a higher noise limit for these properties as they are owned and occupied by 
Allstone and given the relatively infrequent operation of the crushing 
equipment.  It was also noted that the crushing operations are only permitted 
to occur during Monday to Friday, so the Applicant can only operate for 10 
days in any fortnight period.  Their wording effectively changes the noise limit 
to 65dB at all times at Gas Holder Cottages.  The permitted the noise levels to 
be increased to 65dB for up to 10 days in any fortnight period at 1 and 2 Gas 
Holder Cottages would be based on guidance in BS5228.  If the planning 
condition is relaxed the following wording was suggested:

“Provided that Gas Holder Cottages are occupied by employees of Allstone 
Ltd, the free-field noise level in the rear garden of Gas Holder Cottages should 
not exceed 55 dB LAeq, 1hour except during crushing activities which may occur 
for up to 20 days per year when free-field noise levels may not exceed 65 dB 
LAeq, 1 hour.”

7.8 The CAC expressed some concern that the revised noise modelling by 
24Acoustics showed that the eastern façade of the Chapel House Care Home 
on Horton Road was still within the 55dB noise contour.  However the CAC 
observed that the shape and length of the 55 dB contour was unusual given 
the distance from the works.  

County Acoustic Consultant Comments dated 15th January 2020

7.9 In response to the Applicant’s acoustic consultant’s reworking of the noise 
modelling, the CAC advised that he was satisfied that the noise levels at the 
receptors complies with the noise planning condition (with the amendment at 
the Gas Holder Cottages) that includes stockpiles and a 1.8 metre fence 
between the Site and Gas Holder Cottages which resolved all outstanding 
noise issues.

County Air Quality Advisor

7.10 The County Air Quality Advisor (CAQA) initially commented that it is apparent 
that within the last consented period the Site has not operated in compliance 
with planning conditions attached to the consent (ref. 15/0077/GLMAJW).  
The CAQA advised that should the Council be minded to grant consent for the 
continuation of activities, planning conditions as attached to the previous 
consent (ref. 15/0077/GLMAJW), should be imposed on any new consent, 
with amendments to conditions 20, 26 and 27.  Two new planning conditions 
were recommended which require the Dust Management Plan to be amended 
and include additional measures to comply with the requirements of condition 
20 and a requirement to maintain a site log book summarising operations in 
the preceding three months.  

County Air Quality Advisor’s comment on the revised Dust Management Plan 

7.11 Following the submission of a revised Dust Management (DMP) and 
additional amendment to paragraph 5.2.4 the CAQA was of the opinion that 

Page 48



this provides the required clarification with regard to washing of materials.  
The CAQA recommended; 

“a variation to Condition 27 to require a 20m stockpile exclusion zone at the 
boundary with (not the façade of) the Gas Holder Cottages to seek to 
strengthen the condition in light of reported non-compliance.  The proposed 
amendment is simply to provide clarity on the extant Condition 27 and is no 
more onerous.  As stated previously, the exclusion zone may be used by the 
site operator for storage of other plant or equipment (as is observed on aerial 
imagery) but not loose stockpiled material, or for crushing / screening 
activities.

The updated site plan indicating the 6m stockpile exclusion zone on the 
southern boundary (Condition 6) and the 20m stockpile exclusion zone 
adjacent the boundary with the Gas Holder Cottages (Condition 27) is 
satisfactory.”

County Ecologist

7.12 The County Ecologist has no observations on this planning application for the 
continuation of an existing development.  Biodiversity enhancement is not a 
reasonable expectation in this instance.

Public Health Gloucestershire 

7.13 No comments have been received in spite of a reminder being sent.

Mineral & Waste Planning Policy

7.14 The Mineral & Waste Planning Policy Officer (MWPPO) considered that the 
extent to which circumstances have changed since the last temporary 
permission was granted in October 2016 is key to the determination of the 
proposal.  The MWPPO confirmed that the planning policy environment 
remains largely unchanged and that no material change in the policy 
environment has occurred.

7.15 The MWPPO advised that the only other consideration is to confirm is that the 
deliverability and performance of conditions attached to 15/0077/GLMAJW are 
acceptable in extending the timeframe of operations.  A review of enforcement 
matters over the period up to 2019 was considered to be a useful starting 
point for such review.

Planning Considerations:

7.16 The submitted application proposes the following changes to planning 
permission 15/0077/GLMAJW dated 05/10/2016: 

1. Third renewal of temporary planning permission to continue the waste 
recycling operations until the 5th October 2021 by amending the expiry 
date in condition 1;

Page 49



2. Revision to the Site Location Plan reference specified in condition 2.  The 
change to the Site Location Plan is concerned with the addition of a 
relatively small parcel of land to the north west of the application site in 
the ownership of the Applicant but not part of the application site 
boundary, the addition of a concrete pad on which crushed material is 
washed and delineating those parts of the application site which should 
not be used to store stockpiled material; 

3. Revision to condition 2 to update the references to the Noise Impact 
Assessment by 24Acoustics and Dust Management Plan by Ove Arup 
and Partners Ltd.  

4. Noise Impact Assessment includes a Noise Management Plan to satisfy 
the requirements of planning condition 15 of 15/0077/GLMAJW;

5. A Dust Management Plan in order to satisfy the requirements of planning 
condition 20 of 15/0077/GLMAJW.

7.17 The main issues in the determination of this application relate to:
 noise, 
 air quality and health, 
 traffic and highways,
 amenity of neighbouring properties, 
 multiple renewals of temporary permission; and
 the extent to which the proposals comply with national and 

development plan policies for Gloucestershire.

7.18 Other issues raised:
 alternative sites; and
 lack of compliance with and enforcement of existing planning 

conditions.

Noise issues

7.19 Planning condition 14 on planning permission 15/0077/GLMAJW which the 
Applicant is seeking to renew, was imposed to limit noise from the application 
site to not more than 55dB at the nearest residential receptors in order to 
protect amenity.  However 30 local residents have objected to the proposed 
renewal, many of whom refer to excessive noise from operations in the open, 
preventing enjoyment of their gardens and the necessity of keeping windows 
closed.  Constant noise from crushing early in the morning and on Bank 
Holidays has been mentioned by objectors as well as early morning noise and 
disturbance from lorries waiting outside the site to enter.  The County 
Councillor for this division also added his concern for the residents of nearby 
Swallow Park and Armscroft Estate over continued noise nuisance from the 
site and its unsuitability to an urban environment.

7.20 Planning condition 15 of planning permission required the Applicant to submit 
a noise management strategy within 3 months of permission being granted in 
October 2016.  In spite of reminders from the Enforcement Officer, the 
Applicant only submitted an updated Noise Impact Assessment (NIA) which 
includes a Noise Management Plan in Appendix D as part of this application 
for renewal and to satisfy the requirements of condition 15.  

Page 50



7.21 The NIA was completed by 24Acoustics Limited and was based on “the 
findings of a background noise survey, source-term noise survey and acoustic 
modelling of the operations on site”.  The Executive Summary concludes that 
“the noise from crushing, screening and associated operations will not exceed 
55 dB LAeq 1 hour at the nearest residential receptors to the site and indicates 
compliance with condition 14 of the previous planning consent and is also 
compliant with the requirements of technical guidance of the NPPF”.  Noise 
emissions from the works undertaken on a campaign basis, typically for 
around 4 weeks a year will be managed in accordance with the Noise 
Management Plan with the intention of minimising the noise emission from the 
operations to as low as reasonably practicable.  

7.22 The background noise surveys were undertaken between 14th and 23rd 
August 2019.  Measurements were undertaken at the junction between Hamer 
Street and Coldray Close as this location was acoustically representative of 
the background noise level in the area but not affected by Allstone’s 
operations.  The results show a typical weekday average of 45dB.  Source –
term noise survey of crushing and screening plant in operation were 
undertaken in September 2019.  The calculations show noise levels at 
receptors well below 55 dB and managed in accordance with management 
plan.  

7.23 Given the technical nature of a noise impact assessment (NIA), the Council 
has obtained specialist acoustic advice from an external environmental 
consultant.  Following revision to the submitted NIA and the noise contour 
plan in light of detailed comments by the CAC, the requirement to limit the 
noise from the operation of the site on the nearest residential receptors to 55 
dB are considered to be met, with the exception of 1 and 2 Gas Holder 
Cottages, which are owned by the Applicant.  

7.24 In order to address the noise exceedance in the vicinity of Gas Holder 
Cottages, a revised planning condition is recommended and has been 
accepted by the Applicant.  This planning condition would require that the 
55dB limit set in planning condition 14 of planning permission 
15/0077/GLMAJW to be relaxed for up to 20 days a year during which time 
the limit can be increased for these properties to 65 dB, provided that the 
Applicant’s own employees occupy them.  The Applicant’s consultant notes 
that the noise impact on these dwellings will not have changed over the 10 
years of consented operation and there is no record of complaint or adverse 
comment from any of the occupants.  It has also been highlighted that the 
short term nature of the concrete crushing campaigns is similar to the noise 
impact from construction work and that BS5228:2009 provides suitable 
guidance in which the suggested noise levels should be for no more than 10 
days in any 15 consecutive working days or for no more than 40 working days 
in a 6 month period.  This pragmatic approach in relation to Gas Holder 
Cottages and amended planning condition would appear to satisfy the 
requirement of Policy 37 of the WLP to take account such matters as the 
effect on the occupants’ and users’ amenity and health when considering 
waste management development as well as Policy WCS4 of the WCS.

Page 51



7.25 Following revision to the noise modelling, the CAC was satisfied that all other 
outstanding issues had been resolved.  

7.26 The properties to the south of Metz Way would not be affected by the 55dB 
noise contour due to the elevated section and embankments of Metz Way.  

7.27 While the CAC had some concerns about the reliance on changing stockpile 
heights to provide acoustic screening, it has been explained that the natural 
topography of the application site also provides additional acoustic screening.  
However the Applicant has undertaken to monitor the height of stockpiles 
around the crushing plant as part of the Noise Management Plan which is 
considered to be acceptable.  

7.28 In order to address the CAC’s concerns regarding the 55dB noise contour 
which clipped the eastern façade of the Chapel House Care Home, located on 
Horton Road, the Applicant’s acoustic consultant carried out additional noise 
readings on the 14th January 2020.  This demonstrated that the ambient 
background noise in this location were in the magnitude of 65-68dB due to the 
located close to a busy road.  The Applicant’s acoustic consultant, having 
made some changes to the acoustic model, was able to show to the 
satisfaction of the CAC, on the revised plan submitted on the 15th January 
2020 that the Chapel House Care Home would be below the 55dB noise 
contour from the crushing operations.  The revised plan also shows the 65dB 
noise contour and that the noise level in the rear gardens of Gas Holder 
Cottages will be marginally below 65dB LAeq.

7.29 The Gloucester City EHO confirmed that the noise emitted from the aggregate 
activity would be compliant with condition 14 and has no objection to the 
application to renew permission in terms of noise emissions.  The EHO 
suggested that a similar noise limiting condition to be imposed, should 
permission be granted. He advised that he was not aware of any current or 
historic complaints relating to the aggregate activity.

7.30 The Environment Agency has no objection to the renewal of permission and is 
not aware of any outstanding non-compliance by the Applicant.  

Air Quality/Health issues

7.31 Air Quality is an issue that has been raised by objectors to the proposal and 
by the Local County Councillor.  Dust in particular, created during crushing 
operations, blowing off stock piles and from the access road has been 
specifically referred to.  Dust from the site is reported to collect on windows, is 
deposited on vehicles, in houses, on drying clothes and is considered by 
objectors to cause or accentuate health problems such as asthma, coughs 
and allergies.  In this respect Public Health England (PHE) and 
Gloucestershire (PHG) were consulted.  PHE are not aware of any local 
Health Authority concerns for the area.  PHG did not respond to the 
consultation despite being chased, so it is assumed that this is not an issue 
causing concern for PHG.

Page 52



7.32 Planning condition 20 of planning permission 15/0077/GLMAJW required the 
Applicant to submit a site specific Dust and Air Quality Management Strategy 
based upon the recommendations of the ARUP Air Quality Report dated 10 
March 2016 within 3 months of permission being granted in October 2016.  In 
spite of this requirement, the Applicant has only submitted a Dust Management 
Plan by Ove Arup and Partners as part of this application for renewal and to 
satisfy the requirements of condition 20.  

7.33 Given the technical nature of air quality assessment, the Council commissioned 
external air quality consultants to evaluate and advise upon the proposals. 

7.34 The ARUP report refers to the Institute of Air Quality Management (IAQM) 
Construction Dust guidance which provides guidance for practitioners on how to 
assess air quality impacts from dust generating activities.  The guidance provides 
a method of classifying the significance of effects based on magnitude high, 
medium or low and the proximity to proposed receptors.  

7.35 Similarly IAQM provides guidance in relation to the dust assessment for activities 
such as preparation of land extraction processing handling and transportation of 
extracted minerals.  The guidance requires distance based screening process to 
identify sites where dust impacts are unlikely to be significant.  If a more detailed 
assessment is required then a source pathway receptor approach is 
recommended. 

7.36 The ARUP report states that there are fewer than 10 residential properties 
within 20 metres of the boundary and the ‘track-out road’ from the site onto 
Myers Road which have a high sensitivity of dust soiling effects and human 
effects of PM10 particles.  There are no ecological receptors within 350 metres 
of the site boundary.  The sensitivity of the area to dust soiling has been 
classified as ‘medium’.   The sensitivity of the area to human health impacts 
has been assigned as ‘low’ given the background estimated PM10 
concentrations from DEFRA. The report notes that according to the 2019 Air 
Quality Annual Status Report produced by Gloucester City Council that as 
local authority it does not carry out any routine monitoring of PM10. The 
predicted background PM10 concentration in 2019 is 13ug/m3 the effects on 
human health are considered not significance.  The IAQM mineral dust 
guidance stated that if background PM10 below 17mg/m3 there is little risk that 
additional process contribution would lead to an exceedance of the annual 
mean objective. 

7.37 The ARUP report recommends that “the dust emitting activities can be greatly 
reduced or eliminated by applying the site specific mitigation measures for 
medium risk sites according to the IAQM construction dust guidance.”

7.38 The ARUP report contains a site specific Dust Management Plan in Section 5, 
setting out a series of measures for the day to day activities on site.  The 
contact details of those responsible will be displayed at the site boundary and 
person responsible will undertake daily on-site and off-site inspections to 
monitor compliance and check for dust soiling of surfaces.   All dust and air 

Page 53



quality incidents and complaints will be recorded in the site log book.  Actions 
taken to resolve complaints will be recorded.  The log book will be available 
for inspection and a quarterly report sent to the WPA.  

7.39 It would appear that the main concerns are directed at the crushing and 
screening of waste materials rather than the day to day operation of the site.  
These activities are carried out infrequently and on a campaign basis by an 
external contractor, no more than twice a year, over a three to four week 
period.  Washing of material will only occur during these campaigns and 
notice will be given as required by condition 19.  

7.40 To mitigate the effects of dust, all crushing activities should be located away 
from sensitive receptors and a higher level of mitigation applied, keeping the 
site clean and tidy and finer materials stored further from dwellings and 
tarpauling used as a barrier along with dampening down, by high pressure 
water hose, water canon and fire engine.

7.41 The Gloucester City EHO confirmed that the submitted Dust Management 
Plan appears satisfactory and if permission is granted, he advised that a 
condition regarding its implementation should be included.  He was not aware 
of any current or historic complaints relating to the recycled aggregate activity.

7.42 The Environment Agency has no objection to the renewal of permission and is 
not aware of any outstanding non-compliance by the Applicant.  

7.43 The CAQA is satisfied with the mitigation proposed in the Dust Management 
Plan and considers that it satisfies the requirements of condition 20 of 
permission 15/0077/GLMAJW.  It is recommended that a planning condition 
now requires the implementation of the agreed mitigation measures in 
accordance with the submitted Dust Management Plan.  This is considered to 
accord with national guidance and Policy 37 of the Waste Local Plan.

Traffic and highway issues

7.44 Increased traffic generation and adverse impact upon the local highway 
network has been identified as a major concern for local residents.  Local 
residents consider that the ‘lorries and speed are very dangerous in this 
location with a Doctors Surgery, Hospital and school in close proximity to the 
site.  It is reported that vehicles have to mount the kerb to pass other lorries 
and that other vehicles often park on double yellow lines obstructing the road. 

7.45 The County Highways advisor (CHA) has been consulted regarding this 
application and considers that there are no highway grounds to recommend 
refusal subject to a reparation planning condition and planning informative.  
The Highway Authority raised no objection to the previous applications and 
the application as currently submitted does not differ in terms of the access, 
layout or impact on the adjacent highway network.  No change is proposed to 
the site access which is considered to be a safe and suitable access.  Given 
that the impact on the adjacent transport network is not severe, in accordance 

Page 54



with Paragraph 109 of the NPPF3, it would be difficult to substantiate a refusal 
to this proposal on highway grounds.

7.46 Some objectors have referred to the suitability of the approach roads to Myers 
Road and the site entrance being unsuitable for such large HGV, excessive 
speed and danger to pedestrians by large vehicles mounting the kerb in order 
to pass.  Horton Road and London Road are already heavily trafficked, used 
as a through route, in spite of congestion caused by the need to close the 
road at the railway level crossing at regular intervals.  No change is proposed 
to the traffic generation from this development which could justify restrictions 
of vehicle movements to and from the site.  Matters such as excessive vehicle 
speed and unauthorised parking are for the Police to enforce through Road 
Traffic Regulations.  

7.47 The reportedly poor condition of the road surface in this part of Gloucester 
and changes to parking arrangements have been suggested to facilitate traffic 
flows in busy part of the city and these matters have been brought to the 
attention of the Highway Manager.  The local Member has recommended that 
the Applicant should pay to resurface Myers Road from Horton Road and for 
the cleansing of the highway.  The CHA was of the opinion that a planning 
condition could be imposed to require the submission of a reparation and 
maintenance strategy for the access route to ensure that the maintenance 
required due to the quicker deterioration in the road surface from the impact of 
the development is secured.  While the CHA recommended that the Applicant 
should be required to submit this strategy prior to the commencement of the 
development, Officers consider that as this is a renewal of a temporary 
permission from 5th October 2019 that 3 months from the date of any 
permission be allowed for submission.  The requirement for such a condition 
is consider to satisfy the tests for the use of conditions and would secure the 
safe and suitable access for all users of Myers Road in accordance with 
paragraph 108 of the NPPF3.

7.48 The local Member considered that the Applicant should contribute towards 
road cleansing of Myers Road.  It should be noted that there are currently no 
wheel washing facilities on the application site.  The Supporting Statement 
states that: “Both the length and surfacing of this private access road is 
sufficient to ensure that no materials (such as mud and other debris) are 
deposited on the Public Highway.  In the unlikely event that the proposed 
development gives rise to any unacceptable build up of mud/other debris on 
the Public Highway, the company will deploy a road sweeping vehicle to 
ensure that any material is removed from the Public Highway.  The Company 
wish to point out that at no time since the grant  of the first temporary planning 
permission in March 2011 (to present time) have they ever received 
complaints about mud /other debris entering the Public Highway as a result of 
any activities associated with the approved use of the application site.”  

7.49 Neither the WPA nor the Applicant has received any complaints about mud on 
the road.  As the Applicant would be willing to deploy a road sweeper, the 
reimposition of the planning condition which prevents mud from being 
deposited on Myers Road appears to be satisfactory, there would appear to 

Page 55



be no reason to seek additional contributions to cover road cleansing in Myers 
Road.  The current arrangements satisfy Waste Core Strategy Policy WCS19 
by considering the interests of highway users.  

Amenity of neighbouring properties

7.50 The Supporting Statement considers that the nature of material imported to the 
application site will not have the potential to cause or create any litter problems 
or attract vermin or generate odour.  Odour has not been a cause for complaint.  
Although one objection refers to rats and flies being seen close to the site, the 
inert nature of construction and demolition waste should not be an attractant.  

7.51 Some objectors have commented that this is not an industrial area and that this 
waste operation should not be permitted close to residential properties.  The site 
was purchased by the Applicant as surplus railway sidings and has previously 
been identified in the Gloucester City Development Plan as a site for 
employment use where B1 use industrial process, being a use which can be 
carried out in any residential area without detriment to the amenity of that area by 
reason of noise, vibration, smell, fumes, smoke, soot, dust or grit.

7.52 The use as a waste operation is ‘sui generis’ (i.e. in a class of its own).  However 
with the imposition of appropriate conditions, the use should be compatible with a 
Business Use Class B1 (c).  It is therefore not considered to be an inappropriate 
use of a former railway siding, which already has an established default use for 
storage and distribution through planning reference 96/00418/LAW. 

7.53 Planning permission 15/0077/GLMAJW was subject to planning conditions to 
limit the height of stockpiles to 6 metres in order to safeguard adjoining 
properties and Network Rail operational land.  The storage of stockpiled 
materials in excess of the permitted 6 metres has been raised with the Applicant 
by the Planning Enforcement Officer.  As the previous planning permission was 
subject to two planning conditions relating to stockpile height, these have been 
amended to reflect a stand off distance to the site boundary close to the southern 
and north-western site boundaries.  The Site Layout Plan has been amended to 
show areas of the site which should be kept free of stockpiles of material and 
should prevent the stockpiles from getting too large since the base of the 
stockpile necessarily increases with the height in order to ensure stability.  This 
should increase the safety of neighbouring properties and Network Rail assets.  
The requirement for the installation of security fencing adjacent to the Network 
Rail land has also been amended to reflect that the security fencing is in place 
and needs to be maintained for security reasons.

7.54 While the throughput figures have been previously requested of the Applicant 
and not provided, they have been submitted with this renewal application.  These 
demonstrate that for the last 2 years, that annual throughput has been in excess 
of the 20,000 tonnes permitted by condition 8 of planning permission 
15/0077/GLMAJW which appears to have arisen because of confusion over how 
the material was accounted for.  The excess in the amount of material which has 
been shown to have entered the site was questioned by the local Member and 
demonstrates that stockpiles in excess of the permitted height can accumulate 

Page 56



unless there is close scrutiny of figures.  The Applicant has advised Officers of 
improved record keeping has been put in place.  A planning condition requiring 
the Applicant to report figures for throughput quarterly and on a 12 month rolling 
basis should provide better control and prevent excessive stockpiling in future 
should a renewal of temporary permission be granted.  In addition, two new 
planning conditions have been recommended, requiring that waste material is 
weighed and recorded separately from other wastes before entering and leaving 
the Site in order to improve the precision of the information recorded by the 
Applicant.  These new conditions are considered to satisfy the tests in the use of 
planning conditions and would be in accordance with Policy 37 of the Waste 
Local Plan.

7.55 Noise and disturbance arising from skip movements, lorry bleepers on the site 
and lorries waiting to enter the main site from Myers Road have been referred to 
by some objectors.  The Applicant commissioned consultants to carry out a noise 
survey and assessment of operational noise levels arising from the continued 
use of the application site which demonstrates that noise emissions comply with 
the noise limit imposed by the 2015 planning consent and should not cause harm 
or loss of amenity to the nearest residential receptors compared against noise 
criteria defined in the NPPG to the NPPF.  The CAC considers that operational 
noise can be managed in accordance with the Noise Management Plan in 
Appendix D of the Noise Assessment.  This Plan includes the fitting of 
broadband (white noise) reversing alarms for all vehicles under Allstone’s control 
and engine shut down when vehicles are stationary.  Awareness raising of all 
staff of the noise sensitive nature of the site would also assist in reducing noise 
and disturbance from operations to local residents.  It is recommended that a 
planning condition now requires the implementation of the agreed mitigation 
measures in accordance with the submitted Noise Management Plan.  This is 
considered to accord with national guidance and Policy 37 of the Waste Local 
Plan.  

Renewal of Temporary Permission

7.56 The Local Member and some objectors have questioned whether it is valid to 
renew a temporary permission which has already expired.  In this case, the 
application was submitted and validated on 2nd October 2019; i.e. 3 days 
before the permission under 15/0077/GLMAJW expired on 5th October 2019.  
The Applicant is able to use Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 to vary the planning condition which relates to the time period of the 
planning permission. 
 

7.57 Gloucester City Council has questioned if it is appropriate to renew a 
temporary permission in light of NPPG advice on the use of temporary 
permission.  Paragraph 14 in the NPPG advises that it will rarely be justifiable 
to grant a second temporary permission except in cases where changing 
circumstances provide a clear rationale.  In this case the Applicant seeks the 
temporary permission for the reason that in light of the City Council granting 
outline residential planning permission on the whole Allstone site, including 
this application site and allocating more residential development on adjacent 
sites that this could amount to the ‘changing circumstances.’  There is a ‘clear 

Page 57



rationale’ for not granting a permanent permission for a waste use on this site 
as opposed to a further temporary permission if this would assist the Applicant 
to find an alternative site to relocate the business to a more appropriate 
location. 

7.58 Gloucester City Council was concerned with the sustainability of a waste site 
in the centre of Gloucester.  The proximity of the site to waste arising 
minimises transportation impacts more sustainably than hauling waste over 
greater distances. The operation assists with managing waste up the waste 
hierarchy and reducing waste sent to landfill in accordance with Policy WCS4 
of the WCS.  Clearly in principle the recycling of inert material to produce a 
recycled aggregate is a beneficial use as it substitutes for using primary 
aggregate dug from the ground.  Given that the waste management operation 
is providing a valuable strategic resource, which the WPA would be keen to 
protect, it is considered that there is a clear rationale to allow a temporary 
consent.  This would help facilitate the relocation of the whole operation to an 
alternative site in order that it may continue to contribute to the County’s 
recycling targets in accordance with Policy WCS1 of the WCS by working 
proactively with applicants to find solutions to secure development that 
improves economic and environmental conditions in the area.  

Compliance with the National and Development Plan Policy

7.59 The NPPF has a presumption of favour of sustainable development.  A key 
aim of the National Planning Policy for Waste (Oct 2014) is to drive waste up 
the waste hierarchy.  Reducing waste going to landfill and driving it up the 
waste hierarchy is also reflected in the development plan for Gloucestershire.  
Waste Core Strategy Policy WCS1 reflects the presumption in favour of 
sustainable development.  

7.60 The proposed development has been successful in recycling material that 
would otherwise go to landfill.  The proposal accords with the aims of Policy 
WCS4 (inert waste recycling and recovery) to divert waste away from landfill 
provided it can be demonstrated that the impact on the environment and 
neighbouring uses is acceptable and the highway access is suitable for the 
proposed vehicle movements.

7.61 Policy WCS10 requires that in determining proposals for new or enhanced 
facilities, the WPA should have regard to the cumulative effects of previous 
and existing waste management facilities on local communities alongside the 
potential benefits to have of co-locating complementary facilities together. 
Although this proposal is a continuation of the existing previously consented 
operations on site and there is no proposal to increase production or vehicle 
movements at the site, the proposed facility is located alongside the 
Applicant’s existing Waste Transfer station, established in 1999.  These 
operations were once conducted from that existing site.  The impact of the 
temporary development upon the neighbouring land uses has been taken into 
consideration and following consultation responses it is considered that 
appropriate controls can be put in place to mitigate any adverse effects.  

Page 58



Officers therefore consider that the proposal accords with the aims of Policy 
WCS10 of the WCS.

7.62 Policy WCS18 promotes the bulking and transfer of materials.  In this instance 
construction and demolition materials are brought to site, and stored until 
there is sufficient to process.  Once processed, the material is sold.  Policy 
WCS 18 states that particular support will be given to proposals that: “are 
located within or close to an urban centre, and/or involve the reuse of 
previously developed land, vacant or under utilised employment land; and/or 
involves co-location with an existing operation of a similar of complimentary 
nature.”   The application site, being former railway sidings, adjacent to the 
Applicant’s recycling site satisfies the aims of this policy.

7.63 The supply of locally-sourced recycled aggregate in Gloucestershire has been 
well in excess of 100,000 tonnes per annum for a number of years.  It largely 
arises from regeneration and re-development projects from across the County 
and includes construction and demolition material, which has been 
transported to fixed plant, usually located at waste management sites or 
minerals sites.  The emerging Minerals Local Plan for Gloucestershire and 
Policy SR01 aims to increase awareness of and to encourage greater uptake 
of recycled and secondary aggregates within new development.  Once taken 
out of the ground, primary minerals cannot be replaced – they are a finite 
resource.  Their working and onwards movements can also be energy 
intensive and disruptive to the natural environment and neighbouring land 
uses.  It is therefore important to try and achieve maximum benefit from 
primary minerals when and where they are required and to facilitate 
alternative options such as the use of recycled aggregates when these are 
more sustainable.  A means of achieving this is to support the use of recycled 
and / or secondary aggregates.  In view of the above it is not considered that 
the development is in conflict with National Guidance or any existing or 
emerging Development Plan policies.

OTHER ISSUES RAISED 

Alternative Sites

7.64 Some objectors have suggested that Allstone has outgrown this site, 
considering that an industrialised use is unsuitable so close to residential 
areas and that the Applicant needs to find an alternative location.  Some 
residents have suggested that they should pay lower Council Tax to 
compensate them; however this matter is outside of the control of the WPA.  

7.65 The City Council has expressed concerns that if the site does not relocate, 
then that might prevent nearby housing allocations in the Gloucester City Plan 
from being delivered.  However, the Applicant has obtained an outline 
planning permission in 2018 to redevelop their site and has submitted a letter 
from a land agent to show that they are actively searching for an alternative 
site.  A planning condition is recommended to secure an annual progress 
report on alternative site search and methods to provide additional public 
confidence that an alternative site is being sought by the Applicant. 

Page 59



7.66 While it is not for the WPA to proactively assist the Applicant in finding an 
alternative site, the WPA is aware of resistance that operators face by some 
landlords to waste operations being located on existing industrial sites.  
During the consultation, a Planning Policy Officer at the City Council 
confirmed that he was not aware of any suitable sites in the Strategic Land 
Allocation work within Gloucester.  The Applicant has also been advised to 
contact the Economic Development Officer at the City Council to request 
whatever assistance can be given.  

Enforcement of planning conditions 

7.67 There has been criticism by some residents and the local Member of the 
perceived lack of enforcement of the planning conditions of the current 
planning permission, leading to a lack of confidence that the enforcement 
powers which are available to the WPA will be used.  While the EHO and EA 
have confirmed that they have no outstanding complaints, the WPA has been 
working with the City Council EHO, the EA and the Applicant to address 
operational concerns which have brought to the WPA’s attention.  In 
response, the Applicant convened a meeting in October 2019 with a view to 
the EA Permitting Officer, City EHO and a representative of the WPA meeting 
every quarter to discuss operational issues and complaints from the public.  
The next meeting has been scheduled for the 21st January 2020.
 

7.68 In order to secure better compliance in future, better reporting of operations 
has been agreed with the Applicant as part of the mitigation strategies 
submitted to satisfy planning conditions of 15/0077/GLMAJW.  A planning 
condition to require the Applicant to organise and attend a quarterly meeting 
of a liaison group is recommended for the duration of any planning permission 
granted.  While the Applicant does not see the need for this to be a planning 
condition, Officers consider that it would put this meeting on a formal basis.  
The timing of a quarterly meeting could also be useful to review the quarterly 
reports which have been recommended to be subject to planning conditions.  
The meeting could also provide a forum for the public to attend or where 
complaints by the public can be reviewed and remedial action is discussed.  

7.69 The County Planning Enforcement Officer has investigated and visited the site 
each time any complaint has been received in accordance with the Council’s 
published Enforcement Plan.  Paragraph 03 of the National Planning Practice 
Guidance on Enforcement states that “Local planning authorities have 
discretion to take enforcement action, when they regard it as expedient to do 
so having regard to the development plan and any other material 
considerations.”

7.70 Paragraph 11 of the National Planning Practice Guidance on when formal 
enforcement action may not be appropriate states that:

“Nothing in this guidance should be taken as condoning a wilful breach of 
planning law.  Enforcement action should, however, be proportionate to the 

Page 60



breach of planning control to which it relates and taken when it is expedient to 
do so.  Where the balance of public interest lies will vary from case to case.”

“In deciding, in each case, what is the most appropriate way forward, local 
planning authorities should usually avoid taking formal enforcement action 
where:

 there is a trivial or technical breach of control which causes no material 
harm or adverse impact on the amenity of the site or the surrounding area;

 development is acceptable on its planning merits and formal enforcement 
action would solely be to regularise the development;

 in their assessment, the local planning authority considers that an 
application is the appropriate way forward to regularise the situation, for 
example, where planning conditions may need to be imposed.”

7.71 The local Member has recommended that in the event of planning permission 
being granted, a financial bond be paid by the Applicant to be retained by the 
County Council if the Applicant fails to comply with its planning conditions.  
Unfortunately there is no provision in planning legislation to impose such a 
financial arrangement on an operator in these circumstances.  Bonds are only 
a consideration to ensure the restoration of a mineral site and then only 
applicable if the financial security of the operator is in question.  Any 
complaints made in respect of either minerals or waste sites will be fully 
investigated in accordance with the Council’s published Planning Enforcement 
Plan.  Formal enforcement action is seen as a last resort and, in accordance 
with NPPG, no formal action is taken whilst the application is under 
consideration as this would not be expedient or considered to be in the public 
interest.  This is especially so as the application site is a former railway siding 
which already has an established default use for storage and distribution 
within which the stockpiling of materials may fall.

Human Rights 

7.72 From 2nd October 2000, the Human Rights Act 1998 has the effect of 
enshrining much of the European Convention on Human Rights in UK law. 
Article 8 of the Human Rights Act 1998 guarantees a right to respect for 
private and family life and Article 1 of the First Protocol guarantees the right to 
peaceful enjoyment of possessions.  Article 8 also provides that there shall be 
no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this right except in 
the interests of national security, public safety, or the economic well-being of 
the country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the protection of health 
or morals, or for the protection of the freedom of others. 

7.73 No objection has been received from a statutory consultee.  There have been 
30 objections received from local residents and the local Member concerned 
with the loss of amenity on grounds of lack of enforcement of planning 
controls relating to noise and dust, hours of operation and from HGV travelling 
to and from the site.  For the reasons set out in the Planning Considerations 
above it is not considered that there would be any breach of the Convention 
rights.  Even if there was to be an interference with Convention rights then, in 
this case, it is considered that the interference would be justified in the 

Page 61



interests of economic well-being and proportionate.  Accordingly, it would not 
be unlawful to grant planning permission for this development.  

Summary Reasons for the Grant of Planning Permission

7.74 The proposal in this planning application is to vary two planning conditions 
which would permit the continued external operation of a waste recycling 
facility to produce secondary aggregates and top soils, which forms part of a 
larger waste management operation on the adjacent land.  While the 
Applicant has purchased 1-2 Gas Holder Cottages, which are the closest 
residential properties to the application site, these would not form part of the 
application site boundary, which remains unchanged.  

7.75 The proposed development has been successful in recycling construction and 
demolition type material that would otherwise go to landfill.  The inert waste 
recycling operation commenced in 2011 and has been operating with 
temporary planning consent since that time.  The adjacent waste 
management operations are subject to separate planning permissions and 
planning conditions.  The Applicant has requested a third renewal of  
temporary permission to permit him to consider options for the business, given 
that outline planning permission was granted in 2018 following the signing of a 
legal agreement for the redevelopment of the site for a residential use.  

7.76 The Applicant has submitted information to demonstrate that the waste 
recycling operation can be carried out on the site without unacceptable 
adverse environmental impacts.  Whilst there have been no statutory 
consultee objections to permit a further temporary planning permission, 30 
objections have been received from local residents and local Member to the 
continued operation of the site for waste management principally on the 
grounds of noise and air quality impacts as well as traffic generation.  The 
submission of acceptable air quality and noise mitigation strategies satisfies 
the requirements of outstanding planning conditions of the previous planning 
permission.  While the WPA can sympathise with the objectors and recognise 
their concerns, the WPA considers that the operator can address the 
concerns, provided that the agreed mitigation is adhered to.  In order to 
increase public confidence and to ensure compliance with the agreed 
mitigation strategies, the renewal of planning permission includes a new 
planning condition to require the Applicant to report details of their operation 
more frequently.  The intention is that this information and any complaints 
from the public would be reviewed on a quarterly basis by the City’s 
Environmental Health Officer, Environment Agency Permitting Officer and a 
representative of the WPA at a joint liaison meeting arranged by the Applicant.  
By securing the additional requirement for regular reports and liaison 
meetings by planning conditions, it is believed that the enforcement authorities 
will be able to take the most appropriate remedial action sooner, in a more co-
ordinated way, to prevent any potential breaches of the agreed schemes from 
occurring.

7.77 The Applicant is not proposing to make any change to the application site 
access arrangements or to the vehicle movements associated with the inert 

Page 62



waste recycling operation.  The Highway Authority does not consider that 
there are grounds to refuse the proposed renewal of temporary planning 
permission on highway grounds, provided that the Applicant submits and 
implements an acceptable scheme to maintain and repair the cost of highway 
repair which can be enforced by a planning condition.  Matters such as speed 
limit enforcement and parking restrictions can be pursued through other 
highway legislation and Police enforcement powers.  Given the presumption in 
favour of sustainable of development and with the benefit of additional 
planning conditions and specific management plans to control air quality and 
noise from operations, the WPA considers that there are no material planning 
reasons why a further temporary planning permission should not be granted.  

7.78 In determining this application, the WPA has worked with the Applicant in a 
positive and proactive manner based on seeking solutions to problems arising 
in relation to dealing with the planning application by liaising with consultees, 
respondents and the Applicant/agent and discussing changes to the proposal 
where considered appropriate or necessary.  This approach has been taken 
positively and proactively in accordance with the requirements of the NPPF, 
as set out in the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION

8.1 It is recommended that permission for the variation of planning conditions is 
GRANTED for the reasons summarised in paragraphs 7.74 to 7.78 subject to 
the following conditions (where emboldened text indicates new wording or 
conditions and strikethrough indicates where wording has been deleted): 

Commencement /Duration

1 The development hereby permitted shall cease and the site be restored to 
permeable hard standing to the levels indicated on the Site Survey Plan 
ASG/001/2019, dated September 2019, with all plant and machinery removed, 
by no later than 5th October 2022. 

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase 
Act 2004, and in the interests of the amenity of the area in accordance with 
Saved Policy 37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan.

 2 Operating Conditions 

Unless varied by other condition(s) attached to this permission, The 
development hereby permitted shall be carried out within the site edged red 
with a continuous line on the 'Site Location Plan' (hereafter referred to as 'the 
Site'), ASG/001/2015 Rev A Survey and Site Location details, dated 
September 2015, Site Layout Plan Number ASG/002/2015 Rev. A , Site 
Layout Plan dated September 2015, Noise Impact Assessment by ARUP 
dated 30 March 2016, Air Quality Report by ARUP dated 10th March 2016 

Page 63



Drawing Reference: ASG/001/2019, dated September 2019; Site Layout 
Plan ASG/002/2019 Rev. B; Supporting Statement dated September 
2019; Dust Management Plan by Ove Arup & Partners Ltd., dated 9th 
December 2019; Temporary Inert Waste Crushing and Screening 
Operations- Noise Impact Assessment Technical Report R8129-3 rev 4 
dated 21st January 2020 by 24Acoustics; the submitted planning application 
and supporting information and specifications with any scheme, working 
programme or other details submitted for the prior written approval of the 
Waste Planning Authority in pursuance of any condition attached to this 
permission.

Reason: In order to define the scope of the consent and in the interests of the 
amenity of the area in accordance with Saved Policy 37 of the adopted 
Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan. 

 3 Operating Conditions 

No material other than inert soil and sub soils and naturally excavated 
material, and inert material from household, construction and demolition 
commercial and industrial sources shall be imported to the Site. 

Reason: In order to define the scope of the consented use at the Site and in 
the interests of the amenity of the area in accordance with Saved Policy 37 of 
the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan and the adopted Waste Core 
Strategy Policy WCS4. 

 4 The Site shall not be used for a purpose of processing, handling or storing of 
liquid chemical waste, solvents, pesticides, clinical waste or waste oil 
products. 

Reason: In order to define the scope of the consented use at the Site and in 
the interests of the amenity of the area in accordance with Saved Policy 37 of 
the Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan and the Waste Core Strategy Policy 
WCS4. 

 5 There shall be no burning of any waste or other material or substances on the 
Site. 

Reason: In the interest of the amenity of the area in accordance with Saved 
Policy 37 of the Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan and the Waste Core 
Strategy Policy WCS4. 

 6 Any material stockpiled on the Site shall not exceed 6 metres in height, this 
limit should include the height of operational plant working on stockpiles, as 
measured from existing ground level (as shown on Site Survey Plan 
ASG/001/2015, Rev A dated September 2015) ASG/001/2019, dated 
September 2019. 

Page 64



Reason: In order to define the scope of the consented use at the Site and in 
the interests of the amenity of the area in accordance with Saved Policy 37 of 
the Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan.

 7 Permitted Development 

Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 7 Class L (development at waste 
management facilities) of Schedule 2 the Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) Order 2015, or any order revoking and re-
enacting that Order with or without modification, no buildings, external 
floodlighting or other illumination or fixed or mobile plant shall be erected on 
any part of the Site without planning permission from the Waste Planning 
Authority. 

Reason: There is a need to secure control over additional plant and 
machinery in the interests in the amenity of the area and in accordance with 
Saved Policy 37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan. 

 8 Throughput 

From the date of this permission the throughput of material shall not exceed 
20,000 tonnes per annum. 
A written record shall be maintained by the Site operator of all movements in 
and out of the Site by heavy goods vehicles, as defined in this permission; 
such records shall contain the vehicles' weight, registration number and the 
time and date of the movement and shall be made available for inspection by 
the Waste Planning Authority on demand at any time. 

Quarterly figures (covering each 3 month period) shall be submitted in writing 
to the Waste Planning Authority for monitoring purposes. All records shall be 
kept for at least 24 months. 

8 No more than 20,000 tonnes of waste material shall be brought onto the 
site per annum and on a rolling 12 month basis.  

Reason: To limit the scope of the development to that described on the 
application, in order that the Waste Planning Authority can monitor the Site, 
and in the interests of highway safety in accordance with the adopted Waste 
Core Strategy Policy WCS19 and also in the interests of the amenity of the 
area in accordance with Saved Policy 37 of the Gloucestershire Waste Local 
Plan.

9 Prior to entering the Site, all waste material shall be weighed and 
recorded separately from other operational land uses in the Applicant’s 
ownership.  The details recorded in writing shall cover vehicle 
registration number, origin, weight and type of material, time and date of 
movement.  

Page 65



Reason: In order to monitor the consented use at the Site and in the 
interests of the amenity of the area in accordance with Saved Policy 37 
of the Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan.

10 Prior to leaving the Site, all recycled material shall be weighed and 
recorded separately from other operational landuses in the Applicant’s 
ownership.  The details recorded in writing shall cover vehicle 
registration number, destination, weight and type of material, time and 
date of movement.  

Reason: In order to monitor the consented use at the Site and in the 
interests of the amenity of the area in accordance with Saved Policy 37 
of the Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan.

9 11 No mud, debris or other materials shall be deposited on the highway from 
vehicles entering or leaving the Site. 

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to prevent mud, debris and 
materials getting onto the highway in accordance with the adopted Waste 
Core Strategy Policy WCS19.

10 12 The surfacing of the Site access from Myers Road shall be maintained in a 
good state of repair and kept clean and free of mud and debris at all times 
until the completion of site restoration and aftercare.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to prevent mud, debris and 
materials getting onto the highway in accordance with the adopted Waste 
Core Strategy Policy WCS19. 

11 13 No loaded vehicles carrying waste, or recycled or recovered material, shall 
enter or leave the Site unsheeted, except those only carrying materials in 
excess of 500mm in any dimension.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and in accordance with the adopted 
Waste Core Strategy Policy WCS19. 

12 14 The Site shall not accept waste direct from members of the public and 
members of the public shall not be permitted access to the Site.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety in accordance with the adopted 
Waste Core Strategy Policy WCS19. 

15 Within 3 months from the date of this permission, a scheme comprising 
a monitoring, maintenance and reparation strategy for the access route 
along Myers Road from Horton Road to the Site as identified on the Site 
Location Plan reference ASG/001/2019, dated September 2019 shall be 
submitted for approval in writing by the Waste Planning Authority.  The 
scheme shall be fully implemented as approved and shall include the 
maintenance and repair of the route throughout the lifetime of this 
permission, and subject to the planning informative.  

Page 66



Reason: to ensure a safe and suitable access in the interest of highway 
safety for all users of Myers Road is provided.

13 16 Hours of working

No operations shall take place, no machinery shall be operated, no process 
shall be carried out and no skips shall be moved, onto, around or from the Site 
except between the following hours:

- 0730hrs to 1800hrs Monday to Friday;

Deliveries shall only be taken at or dispatched from the site between the 
following hours:

- 0730hrs to 1800hrs Monday to Friday;
- 0730hrs to 1300hrs Saturday

There shall be no operations on Sundays, Bank Holidays or Public Holidays.

Reason: To protect the amenities of local residents in accordance with Saved 
Policies 37 and 38 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan. 

14 17 Noise Limit

Noise emitted from the site shall not exceed 55 dB LAeq (1 hour) as 
measured at the nearest noise sensitive receptors as identified on Figure 1 of 
the ARUP Noise Impact Assessment report (30/03/2016).

Provided that 1 and 2 Gas Holder Cottages are occupied by employees 
of Allstone Limited, the free-field noise level in the rear garden of Gas 
Holder Cottages shall not exceed 55 dB LAeq (1 hour) except during 
crushing activities which may occur for up to 20 days per year when the 
free-field noise levels shall not exceed 65 dB LAeq (1 hour).

Reason: In the interests of limiting noise pollution and to protect the residential 
amenities enjoyed by neighbouring residents in accordance with Saved Policy 
37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan and the adopted Waste 
Core Strategy Policy WCS4. 

15 18 Noise Management Strategy

A site specific Noise Management Strategy based upon the recommendation 
and mitigation measures detailed in the ARUP Noise Impact Assessment 
report for extension of temporary planning permission (30/03/2016) submitted 
in support of the planning application shall be submitted for the written 
approval of the Waste Planning Authority within three calendar months of the 
date of this permission and once approved implemented within 7 days thereof 
and thereafter maintained for the duration of this permission. 

Page 67



The Noise Management Strategy must take into consideration the 
recommendations and suggested mitigation measures of the said ARUP 
Noise Impact Assessment report and address the following activities, 
proposing methods to limit the noise disturbance: 

I  Vehicle movements into and out of the site (including idling vehicles 
on their entrance to the site and reversing bleepers)
 ii. Loading and unloading of material 
iii. Crushing of material 
iv. Screening and sorting and washing of material as appropriate 
v. The use of any other plant or machinery as part of the facility 
vi. Provision for monitoring and review of the scheme

The Noise Management Plan in Appendix D of the Temporary Inert 
Waste Crushing and Screening Operations - Noise Impact Assessment, 
Technical Report R8129-3 rev 4 dated 21st January 2020 by 24Acoustics 
shall be implemented as approved for the duration of the development.

Reason: In the interests of limiting noise pollution and to protect the residential 
amenities enjoyed by neighbouring residents in accordance with Saved Policy 
37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan and the adopted Waste 
Core Strategy Policy WCS 4. 

16 19 Noise Complaint

In the event that complaints are received regarding noise levels from the Site 
during crushing campaigns and the noise levels specified in Condition 14 16 
are proven to be exceeded, the Site operator shall (upon receiving written 
notice of the same from the Waste Planning Authority) cease crushing 
activities immediately and submit for approval in writing by the Waste 
Planning Authority a Noise Mitigation Scheme to demonstrate and ensure that 
the appropriate noise levels are achieved.  The approved Noise Mitigation 
Scheme shall be implemented prior to the re-commencement of the crushing 
campaign and thereafter for the duration of this permission.

Reason:  To protect the amenities of residents and the local environment in 
accordance with Policy 37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan 
and the adopted Waste Core Strategy Policy WCS 4.

17 20 Processing Machinery 

No more than two crushers and two screens/sorters shall be in use 
simultaneously at any one time at the Site. No other processing machinery 
shall operate at the same time as the crushers and screens at the Site.

Reason: In the interests of limiting noise pollution and to protect the residential 
amenities enjoyed by neighbouring residents in accordance with Saved Policy 
37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan and the adopted Waste 
Core Strategy Policy WCS4. 

18 21 Noise Reduction

Page 68



All plant and machinery shall operate only during the hours permitted under 
Condition 13 16 of this consent, except in emergency (which shall be notified 
to the Waste Planning Authority as soon as practicable), and shall be silenced 
at all times in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations. 

Reason: To protect the amenities of local residents in accordance with Saved 
Policy 37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan and the adopted 
Waste Core Strategy Policy WCS4.

19 22 Noise Notification of Crushing

The Waste Local Planning Authority shall be notified at least 48 hours in 
advance of when crushing and screening or washing operations are to take 
place. The crushing and screening or washing plant shall only be allowed on 
site during these notified periods and thereafter shall be removed.

Reason: In order to define the scope of this consent and in the interests of the 
amenity of the area in accordance with Saved Policy 37 of the adopted 
Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan

20 23 Air Quality 

A site specific Dust and Air Quality Management Strategy based upon the 
recommendations and suggested mitigation measures and generic Dust and 
Air Quality Management Strategy detailed in the ARUP Air Quality Report 
(Dated 10/03/2016) shall be submitted for the written of the Waste Planning 
Authority within three calendar months of the date of this permission and once 
approved implemented within 7 days thereof and in any event prior to the 
commencement of any crushing and screening activities on Site.  The Dust 
Management Strategy must address the following activities, proposing 
methods to limit the air quality disturbance: 

i. Dust generated by vehicle movements into and out of the site and 
along the access road. 

ii. Loading and unloading of material. 
iii. Crushing of material DEC NOTICE CM CONSENT/ Allstone Sand 
and Gravel Centre 8 of 13 15/0077/GLMAJW. 
iv. Screening and sorting of material 
v. Washing of material. 
vi. The use of any other plant or machinery as part of the facility.
vii. Measures to protect Network Rail Property. 
viii. The impact of vehicle movements on local concentrations of dust, 
ambient NO2 and PM10. ix. Provision for monitoring and review of the 
scheme.

The Dust Management Plan dated 9th December 2019 by Ove Arup 
Partners Limited shall be implemented as approved for the duration of 
the development.

Page 69



Reason: In the interests of limiting dust pollution and to protect the residential 
amenities enjoyed by neighbouring residents in accordance with Saved Policy 
37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan and the adopted Waste 
Core Strategy Policy WCS4.

21 24 Ground and Surface Water Pollution

There shall be no discharge of foul or contaminated drainage from the Site 
into either groundwater or any surface waters, whether direct or via 
soakaways. 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the water environment in accordance with 
Saved Policy 33 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan. 

22 25 Prior to being discharged into any watercourse, surface water sewer or 
soakaway system, all surface water drainage from parking areas and 
hardstandings shall be passed through an oil interceptor designed and 
constructed to have a capacity and details compatible with the area being 
drained.  Roof water shall not be passed through the interceptor. 

Reason: To prevent pollution of the water environment in accordance with 
Saved Policy 33 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan.

23 26 Additional or increased flows of surface water shall not be discharged onto 
Network Rail land or into Network Rail's culvert or drains.  In the interest of the 
long-term stability of the railway, it is recommended that soakaways shall not 
be constructed within 20 metres of Network Rail's boundary.

Reason: To prevent pollution of the water environment  and to safeguard the 
adjacent Network Rail land and assets and in accordance with Saved Policies 
33 and 37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan. 

24 27 Plant, Scaffolding and Cranes

Any scaffold which is to be constructed adjacent to the railway must be 
erected in such a manner that at no time will any poles or cranes over-sail or 
fall onto the railway.  All plant and scaffolding must be positioned, that in the 
event of failure, it will not fall on to Network Rail land. 

Reason: To safeguard the adjacent Network Rail land and assets and in 
accordance with Saved Policy 37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local 
Plan. 

25 28 Safety

No work shall be carried out on the Site that may endanger the safe operation 
of the railway or the stability of Network Rail's structures and adjoining land. 

Page 70



Reason: To safeguard the adjacent Network Rail land and assets and in 
accordance with Saved Policy 37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local 
Plan.

26 29 Safety Stand off 

Items to be stock piled on Site should be kept away from the Network Rail 
boundary at an equal distance therefrom as the pile is high to avoid the risk of 
toppling and damaging or breaching the boundary.  

There shall be no stockpiles of materials on the Site within 6 metres of 
the Network Rail boundary as indicated on Site Layout Plan 
ASG/002/2019 Rev. B;

Reason: To safeguard the adjacent Network Rail land and assets, to prevent 
material being stored against the boundary fence and in accordance with 
Saved Policy 37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan.

27 30 Safety Stand off 

Materials to be stockpiled on site shall be kept a minimum of 20 metres away 
from the north western site boundary adjacent to the properties known and 1 and 
2 Gas Works Cottages. 

Reason: To safeguard the neighbouring Cottages and in accordance with Saved 
Policy 37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan.

There shall be no materials stockpiled on the Site within 20 metres of the 
north western site boundary, adjacent to the properties known and 1 and 
2 Gas Holder Cottages as indicated on the Site Layout Plan 
ASG/002/2019 Rev. B.

Reason: To safeguard the neighbouring Cottages and in accordance with 
Saved Policy 37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan.

28 31 Within three months of the date of this permission, if not already in place, the 
Site operator must provide at their expense a suitable trespass proof fence (of 
at least 1.8m in height) adjacent to Network Rail's boundary and make 
provision for its future maintenance and renewal without encroachment upon 
Network Rail land. Network Rail's existing fencing / wall must not be removed 
or damaged and at no point either during construction or after works are 
completed on site should the foundations of the fencing or wall or any 
embankment therein be damaged, undermined or compromised in any way. 
Any vegetation on Network Rail land and within Network Rail's boundary must 
also not be disturbed.  

The fencing, its foundations or embankment adjacent to Network Rail's 
boundary shall be not be removed or damaged, undermined or 
compromised in any way.  Any vegetation on Network Rail land and 
within Network Rail's boundary must not be disturbed.

Page 71



Reason: To safeguard the adjacent Network Rail land and assets and in 
accordance with Saved Policy 37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local 
Plan.

29 32 No part of the development shall cause any existing railway level crossing, 
road signs or traffic signals or the crossing itself to be obscured.  Clear 
sighting of the crossing must be maintained for the construction/operational 
period and as a permanent arrangement. The same conditions apply to the 
rail approaches to the level crossing. This stipulation includes the parking of 
vehicles, caravans, equipment and materials etc., which shall not cause rail 
and road approach sight lines of the crossing to be obstructed.  At no point 
during construction on Site or after completion of works should there be any 
deterioration of the ability of pedestrians and vehicles to see the level crossing 
and its signage.  There must be no reduction in the distance that pedestrians 
and vehicles have sight of the warning signs and the crossing itself.

Reason: To safeguard the adjacent Network Rail land and assets and in 
accordance with Saved Policy 37 of the adopted Gloucestershire Waste Local 
Plan.

33 Quarterly Reporting 

The operator shall submit a quarterly report to the Waste Planning 
Authority summarising operations in the preceding 3 months.  The first 
quarterly report shall be submitted to the Waste Planning Authority by 
no later than 6th April 2020.  The report shall include the following:

i volumes of material throughput (tonnes in and out) along with 
written records of vehicle numbers as defined in conditions 9 and 10; 
ii dates on which crushing and screening operations have been 
undertaken;
iii measured noise levels during crushing and screening campaigns 
at the noise sensitive receptors (condition 17);
iv  records of incidents and complaints and remedial actions taken.

The above written records shall be retained by the operator for at least 
24 months from the date each record is recorded.

The Waste Planning Authority reserves the right to inspect the site log 
book on request and to make site visits to examine operations and 
compliance with planning conditions. 

Without prejudice to the above reporting requirements, the operator 
shall produce the above written records to the Waste Planning Authority 
within 7 days of any request. 

Page 72



Reason: to address previous issues of non-compliance with planning 
conditions and secure application of mitigation measures.  Quarterly 
reporting will serve as a proactive measure to demonstrate the site is 
operating with the requirements of planning conditions imposed and 
that the implementation of mitigation measures employed for the 
protection of amenity has been effective during the relevant period.

34 Site Liaison

Within 3 months of the date of this permission, details of an operator led 
multi-agency liaison group including their terms of reference (which 
shall include a public complaints scheme and consideration of the 
quarterly reports set out in this permission), shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Waste Planning Authority.  The approved 
details shall be implemented and adhered to fully thereafter for the 
duration of this permission.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area in accordance with 
Policy 37 of the Gloucestershire Waste Local Plan.

35 Site Search Report

An annual progress report shall be submitted by the Applicant every 12 
months from the date of this permission until this permission expires, 
giving details of the Applicant's search and methods used to secure an 
alternative site for the relocation of the existing waste management site 
hereby approved. 

Reason: To allow the Waste Planning Authority to monitor the 
Applicant's progress in finding an alternative site given the temporary 
nature of this planning permission.  

Informatives:

1. GCC Ecology:
If a protected species (such as any bat, great crested newt, badger, reptile, barn 
owl or any nesting bird) is discovered using a feature on site that would be 
affected by the development or construction work all work at the locality should 
cease. A suitably qualified ecological consultant or Natural England should be 
contacted and the situation assessed before operations can proceed. This action 
is necessary to ensure compliance with the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as 
amended), the Conservation (Natural Habitats & c.) Regulations 2010 and / or 
the Protection of Badgers Act 1992. This advice note should be passed on to any 
persons/contractors carrying out the development.

2. The Highway Authority:
The Highway Authority will seek to recover extraordinary maintenance payments 
for any damage to the highway associated with vehicles entering and leaving the 
site, in accordance with the provisions of Section 59 of the Highways Act 1980.  
Planning condition 15 will ensure that any routine maintenance required 
earlier due to the deterioration of the highway quicker than anticipated due 

Page 73



to the impacts of this development will be secured by a Section 278 
agreement.  

3. Environment Agency:
All crushers and screens shall be accompanied by a 'Permit to Operate' issued 
under the Pollution Prevention and Control Act 1999.

4. Network Rail:
a) Demarcation 
The development is located on an area of land previously under the ownership of 
Network Rail.  The applicant should contact Network Rail's Portfolio Surveyor 
Roy Webb quoting reference DA1221/RT, email; Roy.WEBB@networkrail.co.uk 
to understand further the implications this may have.  Often these sites are sold 
and are the subject of a demarcation agreement which may include particular 
rights in relation to the safe operation of the railway and associated 
infrastructure.
b) Safety
In view of the close proximity of these proposed works to the railway boundary 
the developer should contact Richard Selwood at Network Rail on 
AssetProtectionWestern@networkrail.co.uk before works begin.
c) Dust and Litter
Network Rail has concerns over the potential for dust clouds and rubbish created 
from the processing at the site affecting the railway signal sighting.  Therefore, 
adequate measures for preventing dust and rubbish blowing onto Network Rail 
property are to be in operation.

BACKGROUND PAPERS: 

Planning Application file 19/0070/GLMAJW containing the planning application, 
supporting statement, drawings, consultation responses and representations may be 
viewed by appointment with the case officer below or on the Council’s Public Access 
website www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning by a search with the application 
reference.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Case Officer: Linda Townsend.
Telephone: 01452 426896
Email: planningdc@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

Page 74

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning
mailto:planningdc@gloucestershire.gov.uk


APPLICATION NO: 19/0036CHREG3 VALIDATION  03 May 2019
  DATE:

 DISTRICT REF: 19/01026/DEEM3

AGENT: Gloucestershire County Council

APPLICANT: Head of Property Services, Gloucestershire County Council

 SITE: St John’s Primary School, Albion Street, Cheltenham, 
Gloucestershire GL52 2SN

PROPOSAL: Change of use to D1 (Schools) - extension of school
grounds.

RECOMMENDATION: That planning permission is GRANTED for the reasons 
summarised in paragraph 7.22 in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town and 
Country Planning General Regulations 1992 and subject to the planning conditions 
recommended in Section 8.0 of this report.

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION

1.1 The proposal seeks to change the use of land for an outdoor educational 
teaching area for St John’s Primary School, Albion Street, towards the centre of 
Cheltenham. The land is located opposite the school entrance on Witcombe 
Place and is currently a privately owned open grassed area with a tree and a 
line of mature hedgerow across the southwestern boundary. The parcel of land 
in question is triangular in shape and approximately 294 square metres in area. 
It is proposed to fence off and provide an outdoor educational resource known 
as a “forest school”. The site is currently separated by a public vehicular 
highway. Access to the site by pupils would be by foot from the school gate 
entrance on Witcombe Place. 

1.2 Witcombe Place (a dead end road to residential properties) bounds the northern 
edge of the site; Berkeley Street (A46) runs along the eastern boundary and is 
a main one-way route through Cheltenham’s town centre. To the south is a 
Listed Building belonging to “The Vineyard Practice” (used by health 
professionals), with associated parking spaces directly adjoining the site’s 
south-west boundary. Another small grassed area with three trees is located to 
the north across the road of Witcombe Place. Residential properties are located 
beyond Berkeley Street to the north-east of the site. The properties of 7 and 8 
Berkeley Street and railings, and St. John’s Villa to the eastern side of Berkeley 
Street are Listed Buildings.

1.3 The school has approximately a 180 student capacity, with an age range of 4 to 
11. The school premises themselves are located to the west of the proposed site 
bounded by the Witcombe Place side road. Visitor car parking spaces for the 
school are located adjacent to the school, off Witcombe Place.

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



1.4 The site lies within the Central Conservation Area of Cheltenham and within 
Sydnenham Character Area, which has a Character Appraisal and Management 
Plan (July 2008).  The parcel of land is not located within Cheltenham Borough 
Council’s Green Space Strategy. There is also no identifiable flood risk 
according to the Environment Agency’s Flood map for Planning.

1.5 LOCATION PLAN

             
             OS Copyright GCC 100019134 2006

2.0 PROPOSAL

2.1 The application seeks to change the use of the land to an educational use 
known as a “forest school”. A forest school is an outdoor, nature based 
learning opportunity that focuses on the holistic development of the child. It 
is a regular, long term process rather than a one off. Forest school can take 
place in any natural outdoor environment which may be on school premises 
or in the local area as in this case. Forest schools tie in with the National 
Curriculum contributing to geography, science and design and technology. 

2.2 The proposal seeks to enclose the parcel of land with 1.5 metre high black 
Page 76



metal railings. A matching pedestrian gate is proposed to be located 
opposite the school gates with a new section of dropped kerb. There would 
be a gated access near to the existing tree and mature shrubs along the 
south-eastern boundary. An area of hazel for coppicing is proposed along 
the northern boundary, with a new native hedgerow to provide screening 
from the road along the north-eastern and eastern boundary.

Environmental Impact Assessment - Consideration

2.3      The proposed development is not a type that falls within that detailed 
in Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact 
Assessment) Regulations 2017.

Amended plans and application documents

2.4 Following consultee comments, the applicant provided revised plans and   
further supporting information. The original application proposed close 
boarded timber fencing to the boundary when submitted. Following 
concerns raised by both the County Planning Authority and the Borough 
Council the boundary treatment was amended and now the revised plans 
include the replacement of the 1.8m timber boundary treatment with 1.5m 
black metal railings.

2.5 The application documents include:

 Planning application form;
 Design and Access Statement July 2019;
 Off site layout plan 3097/OSL Rev 1A;
 Existing layout plan 3097/EL; and
 Location Plan 3097/LP

3.0 PLANNING HISTORY

Application Description Dates and 
Decision

Compliance with condition 4 (Materials) 
of 16/0072/CHREG3

16/0112/COMPLI Compliance 
with Condition 
22/9/16

16/0072/CHREG3 Single storey extension to the front of 
the School to provide entrance lobby 
and Office

Consent

CB/02/1600/DEEM3 Erection of two replacement classrooms
& toilets

Consent - 
11.12.2002

CB13441/2 1 x 3 terrapin dining/classroom 
extension

Consent - 
14.03.1979

CB13441/1 Demolition of 3 cottages and use of site 
as paved extension to playground and 
staff car park

Consent - 
14.03.1979

CB/ED/13441 Erection of 1 x 4 terrapin classroom and 
scullery and formation of vehicular 
access to Witcombe place

Consent - 
15.07.1977

Page 77

http://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?previousCaseType=Property&amp;keyVal=OHKHWRHNLEC00&amp;previousCaseNumber=006B89HNBU000&amp;previousCaseUprn=100121233219&amp;activeTab=summary&amp;previousKeyVal=006NFXHNLI000
http://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?previousCaseType=Property&amp;keyVal=OHKHWRHNLEC00&amp;previousCaseNumber=006B89HNBU000&amp;previousCaseUprn=100121233219&amp;activeTab=summary&amp;previousKeyVal=006NFXHNLI000
http://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?previousCaseType=Property&amp;keyVal=OAKEYBHNKLG00&amp;previousCaseNumber=006B89HNBU000&amp;previousCaseUprn=100121233219&amp;activeTab=summary&amp;previousKeyVal=006NFXHNLI000
http://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?previousCaseType=Property&amp;keyVal=OAKEYBHNKLG00&amp;previousCaseNumber=006B89HNBU000&amp;previousCaseUprn=100121233219&amp;activeTab=summary&amp;previousKeyVal=006NFXHNLI000
http://planning.gloucestershire.gov.uk/publicaccess/applicationDetails.do?previousCaseType=Property&amp;keyVal=OAKEYBHNKLG00&amp;previousCaseNumber=006B89HNBU000&amp;previousCaseUprn=100121233219&amp;activeTab=summary&amp;previousKeyVal=006NFXHNLI000


CB11006/1 Demolition of 3 cottages and use of site 
as paved extension to playground and 
car park

Consent - 
16.05.1979

4.0 POLICY CONTEXT
National Planning Policy Framework

4.1 The revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF3) published on 19th 
February 2019 sets out the Government’s planning policies for England and how 
these are expected to be applied and is a material consideration in determining 
the application. In assessing and determining planning proposals, the local 
planning authority should apply the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development, which is the main focus of the NPPF3 in relation to both the plan- 
making and decision making process.

4.2 Paragraph 94 of the NPPF3 states that it is important that a sufficient choice of 
school places is available to meet the needs of existing and new communities. 
Local planning authorities should take a proactive, positive and collaborative 
approach to meeting this requirement and to development that will widen choice 
in education. They should:

“a) give great weight to the need to create, expand or alter schools through 
the preparation of plans and decisions on applications; and

b) work with schools promoters, delivery partners and statutory bodies to 
identify and resolve key planning issues before applications are 
submitted.”

4.3 Paragraph 102 of the NPPF3 states that transport issues should be considered 
from the earliest stages of the development proposals so that opportunities to 
promote walking, cycling and public transport are identified and pursued. The 
environmental impacts of traffic and transport need to be assessed and taken 
account of for avoiding and mitigating any adverse effects and for net 
environmental gains.

4.4 Paragraph 109 NPPF3 states that

“Development should only be prevented or refused on highways grounds if there 
would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative 
impacts on the road network would be severe.”

4.5 Paragraph 110 NPPF3 states that applications for development should:

“a)  give priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements, both within the scheme 
and with neighbouring areas; and second – so far as possible to facilitating 
access to high quality public transport, with layouts that maximise the 
catchment area for bus or other public transport services, and appropriate 
facilities that encourage public transport use;

b) address the needs of people with disabilities and reduced mobility in 
relation to all modes of transport;

c) create places that are safe, secure and attractive – which minimise the 
scope for conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles, avoid 
unnecessary street clutter, and respond to local character and design 
standards;

Page 78



d) allow for the efficient delivery of goods, and access by service and 
emergency vehicles”

4.6   Paragraph 124 NPPF3 states that:

“The creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what the 
planning and development process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect 
of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and work and 
helps make development acceptable to communities. Being clear about design 
expectations, and how these will be tested, is essential for achieving this. So too 
is effective engagement between applicants, communities, local planning 
authorities and other interests throughout the process.”

4.7 Paragraph 127 NPPF3 states that planning decisions should ensure that 
developments: 

“a) will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for 
the short term but over the lifetime of the development;

b) are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and 
appropriate and effective landscaping;

c) are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding 
built environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or 
discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as increased 
densities);

d) establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of 
streets, spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, 
welcoming and distinctive places to live, work and visit;

e) optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an 
appropriate amount and mix of development (including green and other 
public space) and support local facilities and transport networks; and

f) create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote 
health and well-being with a high standard of amenity for existing and 
future users and where crime and disorder and the fear of crime, do 
not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.”

4.8 Paragraph 170 NPPF3 requires planning decisions to enhance the natural and 
local environment by:

“a)  protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or 
geological value and soils (in a manner commensurate with their 
statutory status or identified quality in the development plan);

b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the 
wider benefits from natural capital and ecosystem services – including 
the economic and other benefits of the best and most versatile 
agricultural land, and of trees and woodland.....;

d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including 
by establishing coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to 
current and future pressures;

e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put 
at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by, unacceptable 
levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution or land instability. Development 
should, wherever possible, help to improve local environmental 
conditions such as

Page 79



air and water quality, taking into account relevant information such as river 
basin management plans……”

4.9 Paragraph 175 NPPF3 is concerned with the principles of decision making 
where there is a biodiversity interest which could be affected by 
development.

                 “d)    development whose primary objective is to conserve or enhance 
biodiversity should be supported; while opportunities to incorporate 
biodiversity improvements in and around developments should be 
encouraged, especially where this can secure measurable net gains 
for biodiversity.”

4.10 In  proposals affecting Heritage Assets, Paragraph 192 NPPF3 refers to in 
determining applications, local planning authorities should take account of:

“a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of 
heritage assets and putting them to viable uses consistent with their 
conservation;

b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can 
make to sustainable communities including their economic vitality; 
and

c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to 
local character and distinctiveness.”

4.11 Paragraph 193 NPPF3 refers to when considering the impact of a proposed 
development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, great weight 
should be given to the asset’s conservation (and the more important the asset, 
the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential 
harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its 
significance.

4.12 Paragraph 196 NPPF3 refers to where a development proposal will lead to less 
than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this 
harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, 
where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.

Joint Core Strategy – Adopted 5th December 2017

4.13  Under Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, 
planning applications should be determined in accordance with the 
Development Plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  The 
Joint Core Strategy (JCS) forms part of the Development Plan and provides 
the strategic policy for development across the three administrative areas of

Page 80



Cheltenham, Gloucester and Tewkesbury until 2031. Tewkesbury Borough 
Council formally adopted the Joint Core Strategy (5th December 2017) along 
with Gloucester City Council (23rd November 2017) and Cheltenham Borough 
Council (11th December 2017).

Strategic Objective 4 – Conserving and enhancing the environment

4.14 The JCS contains a number of strategic objectives, one of which (Objective 7) 
is the promotion of sustainable transport, reducing the need to travel and 
reliance on the car by improving opportunities for public transport, walking and 
cycling by making routes more convenient, safe and attractive.

Objective 9 is concerned with promoting healthy communities by enhancing 
opportunities for high quality education working in partnership to encourage 
healthy lifestyles through access to key community facilities and sustainable 
transport as well as ensuring that environmental quality and air quality is 
protected.

4.15 JCS Policy INF1 – Transport Network

1.Developers should provide safe and accessible connections to the   
transport network to enable travel choice for residents and commuters. All 
proposals should ensure that:

i. Safe and efficient access to the highway network is provided for all 
transport modes;

ii. Connections are provided, where appropriate, to existing walking, 
cycling and passenger transport networks and should be designed 
to encourage maximum potential use;

iii. All opportunities are identified and taken, where appropriate, to 
extend and/or modify existing walking, cycling and public transport 
networks and links, to ensure that credible travel choices are 
provided by sustainable modes.

2. Planning permission will be granted only where the impact of development 
is not considered to be severe. Where severe impacts that are attributable 
to the development are considered likely, including as a consequence of 
cumulative impacts, they must be mitigated to the satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authorities and in line 
with the Local Transport Plan.

3. Developers will be required to assess the impact of proposals on the 
transport network through a Transport Assessment.  The assessment will 
demonstrate the impact, including cumulative impacts, of the prospective 
development on:

a) Congestion on the transport network
b) Travel safety within the zone of influence of the development
c) Noise and/or atmospheric pollution within the zone of influence 

of the development

Page 81



4. Where appropriate the local planning authority may require applications to 
be accompanied by a Travel Plan that has full regard to the criteria set out 
in the NPPF.”

4.16 The supporting text of Policy INF1 makes reference to the potential for short - 
distance trips to transfer where appropriate to non-car modes, such as public 
transport, walking or cycling - something which the NPPF3 considers to be a 
core planning principle. The policy recognises that to enable the transfer to 
non-car modes requires a co-ordinated approach across several policy and 
delivery areas and the JCS seeks to achieve this through its policies on 
design and infrastructure. The role of the Development Plan is to reflect, 
support and enable the implementation of transport objectives of the Local 
Transport Plan through its land-use policies and proposals.

4.17 JCS SD4 Design requirements

“iv. Public realm and landscape;
New development should ensure that the design of landscaped areas, open 
space and public realm are of high quality, provide a clear structure and 
constitute an integral and cohesive element within the design. The 
contribution of public realm designs, at all scales, to facilitate the preferential 
use of sustainable transport modes should be maximised.

v. Safety and security;
New development should be designed to contribute to safe communities 
including reducing the risk of fire, conflicts between traffic and cyclists or 
pedestrians, and the likelihood and fear of crime.

vi. Inclusiveness and adaptability;

New development should provide access for all potential users, including 
people with disabilities, to buildings, spaces and the transport network, to 
ensure the highest standards of inclusive design. Development should also be 
designed to be adaptable to changing economic, social and environmental 
requirements.”

4.18 JCS SD8 Historic Environment

1. “The built, natural and cultural heritage of Gloucester City, Cheltenham 
town, Tewkesbury town, smaller historic settlements and the wider 
countryside will continue to be valued and promoted for their important 
contribution to local identity, quality of life and the economy;

2. Development should make a positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness, having regard to valued and distinctive elements of the 
historic environment;

3. Designated and undesignated heritage assets and their settings will be 
conserved and enhanced as appropriate to their significance, and for their 
important contribution to local character, distinctiveness and sense of 
place. Consideration will also be given to the contribution made by heritage 
assets to supporting sustainable communities and the local economy.

Page 82



Development should aim to sustain and enhance the significance of 
heritage assets and put them to viable uses consistent with their 
conservation whilst improving accessibility where appropriate;

4. Proposals that will secure the future conservation and maintenance of 
heritage assets and their settings that are at risk through neglect, decay or 
other threats will be encouraged Proposals that will bring vacant or derelict 
heritage assets back into appropriate use will also be encouraged;

5. Development proposals at Strategic Allocations must have regard to the 
findings and recommendations of the JCS Historic Environment 
Assessment (or any subsequent revision) demonstrating that the potential 
impacts on heritage assets and appropriate mitigation measures have been 
addressed.”

4.19 JCS Policy SD9 Biodiversity and Geodiversity

“1 The biodiversity and geological resource of the JCS area will be protected 
and enhanced in order to establish and reinforce ecological networks that 
are resilient to current and future pressures. Improved community access 
will be encouraged so far as is compatible with the conservation of special 
features and interests.

2. This will be achieved by:

i. Ensuring that European Protected Species and National Protected 
Species are safeguarded in accordance with the law

ii. Conserving and enhancing biodiversity and geodiversity on 
internationally, nationally and locally designated sites, and other assets 
of demonstrable value where these make a contribution to the wider 
network, thus ensuring that new development both within and 
surrounding such sites has no unacceptable adverse impacts

iii. Encouraging new development to contribute positively to biodiversity 
and geodiversity whilst linking with wider networks of green 
infrastructure. For example, by incorporating habitat features into 
the design to assist in the creation and enhancement of wildlife 
corridors and ecological stepping stones between sites

iv. Encouraging the creation, restoration and beneficial management of 
priority landscapes, priority habitats and populations of priority species. 
For example, by securing improvements to Strategic Nature Areas (as 
set out on the Gloucestershire Nature Map) and Nature Improvement 
Areas.

3. Any development that has the potential to have a likely significant effect on 
an international site will be subject to a Habitats Regulations Assessment.

4. Within nationally designated sites, development will not be permitted unless 
it is necessary for appropriate on -site management measures, and 
proposals can demonstrate that there will be no adverse impacts on the 
notified special interest features of the site.

5. Development within locally designated sites will not be permitted where it 
would have an adverse impact on the registered interest features or criteria

Page 83



for which the site was listed, and harm cannot be avoided or 
satisfactorily mitigated.

6. Harm to the biodiversity or geodiversity of an undesignated site or 
asset should be avoided where possible. Where there is a risk of 
harm as a consequence of development, this should be mitigated by 
integrating enhancements into the scheme that are appropriate to the 
location and satisfactory to the local planning authority. If harm cannot 
be mitigated on site then, exceptionally, compensatory enhancements 
off site may be acceptable.”

The supporting text of Policy SD9 advises enhancements will be 
secured through the design of the development and via planning 
conditions.

Cheltenham Borough Local Plan

4.20 The Cheltenham Borough Local Plan adopted in 2006 contains a number 
of ‘saved’ policies which have not been replaced by the JCS and will 
remain in place until replaced by the emerging Local Plan. The emerging 
Cheltenham Plan 2011-2031 was subject to examination during February 
2019. The following ‘saved’ policies of the adopted Cheltenham Borough 
Local Plan are considered to be relevant to the determination of this 
application:

4.21 Policy CP4 – Safe and sustainable living

“Development will be permitted only where it would:

(a) not cause unacceptable harm to the amenity of adjoining land 
users and the locality (notes 1- 4); and

(b) not result in levels of traffic to and from the site 
attaining an environmentally unacceptable level; and

(c) make adequate provision for security and the prevention of crime 
and disorder (note 5); and

(d) not, by nature of its size, location, layout or design, give rise to 
crime or the significant fear of crime or endanger public safety; and

(e) maintain the vitality and viability of the town centre and district and 
local shopping facilities.”

4.22 Policy CP 7 - Design

“Development will only be permitted where it:

(a) is of a high standard of architectural design; and
(b) adequately reflects principles of urban design; and
(c) complements and respects neighbouring development 

and the character of the locality and/or landscape”

4.23 POLICY D1: DESIGN (emerging plan)
“Development will only be permitted where it:

a) adequately reflects principles of urban and architectural design; andPage 84



b) complements and respects neighbouring development and the 
character of the locality and / or landscape.”

4.24 POLICY L1: LANDSCAPE AND SETTING (emerging plan)
“Development will only be permitted where it would not harm the setting of 
Cheltenham including views into or out of areas of acknowledged 
importance.

These emerging Plan policies according to the NPPF3 are afforded limited 
weight before adoption.

5.0 REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 The application was publicised by site notices dated 7th June 2019 and a 
press notice in the Gloucestershire Echo newspaper on the 6th June 2019. 
The expiry date for comments was 27th June 2019.  No comments from 
members of the public have been received.

6.0 CONSULTATIONS

6.1 Cheltenham Borough Council (CBC)

Comments on initial scheme received 13th June 2019.

“The principle of the proposed use of land as educational is not supported as 
the current site is an open piece of soft landscaped land, and as a result of 
the proposed use there would be a loss of an open area which is currently a 
positive contribution to the character of the area. In addition, the proposed 1.8 
metre high feather edged timber fencing to enable the use would further result 
in harm to the character of the conservation area, given that the Sydenham 
Character Area Appraisal and Management Plan sets out that, wooden 
fencing as a boundary enclosure 'serves as an unattractive, hard boundary 
treatment and negative feature within the street scene'. The proposed fence is 
considered to be of poor design as it fails to respond to or respect the 
character of the site and its surroundings.

For the reasons set out above, an objection is raised to the proposal.”

 Following the concerns raised by CBC (and GCC officers) the applicant 
revised the proposals and this was further consulted on. The revised CBC 
comments are stated below.

Comments on revised scheme received 6th September 2019.

“The revised plans show the omission of the proposed close boarded fence 
with black metal railings and a hedge set behind. This boundary treatment is 
considered to be more in-keeping with the surroundings and the wider 
conservation area. The Sydenham Character Area Appraisal and 
Management Plan sets out that 'boundary treatments predominantly take the 
form of attractive and traditional railings' and 'hedgerows act as an attractive 
boundary treatment, which soften the edges between public and private space 
enhancing the green environment'. As such, based on the revised plans, the 
impact on the conservation area would be reduced given that the railingsPage 85



would have a more positive impact on the character of the conservation 
area, in comparison to the previously proposed timber fence.

However, initial concerns were raised in regards to the loss of an open piece 
of soft landscaped land. It is considered that this parcel of land is currently a 
positive contribution to the character of the area. The Sydenham Character 
Area Appraisal and Management Plan states 'public spaces, together with 
views out of, into and within the Character Area impact on the area's 
character and appearance the presence of trees and other greenery helps to 
soften the spaces'. It is therefore considered that the enclosure would result 
in the loss of an open space that is currently a positive addition to the 
character of the area.

Whilst the revised plans show a more appropriate design in terms of its 
impact on the conservation area, there is still concern raised in terms of the 
enclosing of this relatively small piece of land and the impact this would 
have on the street scene. As such, we would still raise an objection.”

6.2 GCC Highways

The Highway Authority (HA)  raises concerns regarding: highway safety of 
vulnerable road users in accessing the site from the school; fire risk and 
accessibility by fire tender; and highway infrastructure (kerb heights). The HA 
comments are presented below.

“REFUSAL – Unacceptable impact on highway safety- vulnerable road users

GCC has reviewed the submission materials and the local highway 
alignment. A site visit has been carried out. GCC recommends that GCC 
road safety and the police are consulted.

The submitted materials do not satisfactorily demonstrate how the area will 
be used or accessed. The gated access is noted but given that the use is for 
a school no materials presenting how movements of vulnerable road users 
to and from the main site have been provided.

No walking route or crossing points have been assessed to establish if the 
site location can be appropriately accessed and the maximum capacity is 
not understood. Given the intended use which includes a fire pit and as 
such may have a use / purpose in hours of darkness the highway authority 
would want assurance that movements of children are conditioned to 
appropriate times of day. Details of numbers of staff members supervising 
children would also be useful and if a crossing patrol is necessary.

Further, whilst not a usual highways concern GCC considers it would be 
remiss to not identify the risk of fire and whilst a fire tender could access the 
site in the absence of any other information the use of this space for open 
flames, in relation to education without suitable infrastructure for protection 
could result in a fire impacting the public highway. As such a suitable waiting 
area should be identified if the site itself was to be “unsafe”.
Although information has been submitted GCC are satisfied that pedestrian 
and motor vehicle visibility would not be unreasonably impacted by the 
erection of the proposed fence. Existing street furniture has been identified 
on site but GCC cannot establish if any will require relocation due to the 

Page 86



proposed access. 
Insufficient information has been provided to satisfy the safety concerns of 
GCC. Further consideration will be given with plans produced by a 
competent highways engineer demonstrating appropriate crossing points 
with tactile paving and lowered kerbs for the benefit of vulnerable road 
users and those who struggle to negotiate full height kerbs”

No further information was provided by the applicant.

Following discussion with the HA all of their concerns were considered to be 
capable of being addressed by a suitably  worded planning condition and an 
“informative to applicant” attached to any forthcoming Decision Notice.

6.3 GCC County Ecologist

The County Ecologist identifies that there would be a small localised 
enhancement of biodiversity and recommends conditions regarding a 
planting and aftercare scheme and being established in accordance with the 
application details submitted. An informative is also recommended relating to 
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. The County Ecologist’s comments are 
summarised below.

“Conclusion
The development will have a small localised enhancement of biodiversity.

Recommended Action
As part of a consent that may be granted items such as the following below 
should be attached:
1. Condition – The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in 
accordance with the submitted application, its accompanying 
documentation, and the approved drawings: drawing ‘Off Site Layout’ dated 
28.2.19 Design and Access Statement dated April 2019 etc.

Reason: To ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the 
submitted details and for the avoidance of doubt.

2. Condition – Within three months of the commencement of the 
development a Planting and Aftercare Scheme based on the drawing ‘Off 
Site Layout’ dated 28.2.19 shall be submitted to and approved by the 
County Planning Authority. The scheme shall include:
(a) An annotated drawing of the soft landscape features to be 
retained, created, enhanced and managed;
(b) Details of species, number, density, and size of shrubs/trees to be 
planted and composition of any wildflower or grass seeding mix or turfing. 
All plants that fail to thrive or which die within the first five years after 
completion should be replaced with species of, as a minimum, the same 
size or extent as those planted or sown.;
(c) Methods of establishment plus short-term and long-term after-care of 
all plants and landscape structures to be installed or retained;
(d) Organisation or personnel responsible for implementation of the scheme; 
Thereafter the approved Planting and Aftercare scheme shall be fully 
implemented as approved by the County Planning Authority within six months 
of the occupation of the development or the first planting season, whichever 
is sooner.

Page 87



Reason: To conserve and enhance the landscape and biodiversity value of 
the land and in accordance with Local Plan Policy X, ODPM Circular 06/2005 
plus National Planning Policy Framework paragraphs 8, 170 and 175. This is 
also in accordance with Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural 
Communities Act 2006, which confers a general biodiversity duty upon Local 
Authorities.

3. Advice Note – This informative is given as a reminder of the Wildlife & 
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) which makes it an offence to kill, injure 
or take any wild bird, and to intentionally remove, damage or destroy the nest 
of any wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. It is also an offence to 
take or destroy any wild bird eggs. If at any time nesting birds are observed 
on or close to the site then works which might affect them should cease and 
advice sought from a suitably qualified or experienced person.

It is my view that the above advice is in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), ODPM Circular 06/2005, Natural 
England’s Standing Advice, and with Section 40 of the Natural Environment 
and Rural Communities Act 2006 which confers a general biodiversity duty 
upon Local Authorities whilst exercising their functions. Opportunities to 
produce measureable gains for biodiversity have been explored (NPPF 
paragraph 175(d))”

7.0      PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

The main considerations in the determination of this proposal to change the 
use of the open space land to an enclosed outdoor classroom area are 
considered to be:

(a) impact on Designated Heritage Assets;
(b) impact on Residential Amenity; and
(c) impact on Highway Safety.

Impact on Designated Heritage Assets

7.1 Section 66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 places a statutory duty on a Local Planning Authority to have special 
regard to the desirability of preserving a listed building, its setting and any 
features of special architectural or historic interest it may possess. 

7.2 Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 
1990 places a statutory duty on a Local Planning Authority to pay special 
attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area

7.3 JCS Policy SD8 supports development that complements and relates to its 
surroundings, not only in terms of its appearance but also in the way that it 
functions. This requires developers to consider the relationships between 
buildings, relationships of buildings to their settings and relationships with 
adjacent land uses and the wider landscape, all of which contribute to local 
character and distinctiveness.

7.4 The NPPF3 provides a framework for conserving and enhancing the historic Page 88



environment, which sits alongside a range of legislative regimes associated 
with planning and heritage. JCS Policy SD8 reinforces that framework. To 
ensure that the historic environment makes a positive contribution towards 
wider social, cultural, economic and environmental benefits, the JCS takes a 
holistic approach and Policy SD8 should be read in association with other 
policies, particularly those relating to design - Policy SD4. The JCS states 
that District plans provide supplementary policies as required, having regard 
to the variety, significance and condition of heritage assets in each local 
authority area.

7.5 JCS Policy SD4 Design Requirements seeks to preserve and, where 
appropriate, enhance the special character and appearance of Conservation 
Areas in terms of siting, scale, form, proportion, design, materials and the 
retention of positive features. This includes avoiding the loss of open spaces 
which make a valuable contribution to the character and/or appearance, 
and/or allow important views into or out of conservation areas. Hard and soft 
landscaping should respect the character and appearance of Conservation 
Areas and proposals should have regard to the relevant conservation area 
appraisal. CBC  has raised concerns regarding the loss of open space and its 
impact on the Conservation Area. However, it is noted, and referred to earlier 
in the report, that CBC  are satisfied with the railings now proposed and 
consider “The revised plans show the omission of the proposed close boarded 
fence with black metal railings and a hedge set behind. This boundary 
treatment is considered to be more in-keeping with the surroundings and the 
wider conservation area. The Sydenham Character Area Appraisal and 
Management Plan sets out that ‘boundary treatments predominantly take the 
form of attractive and traditional railings’ and ’hedgerows act as an attractive 
boundary treatment, which soften the edges between public and private 
space…enhancing the green environment’. As such, based on the revised 
plans, the impact on the Conservation Area would be reduced given that the 
railings would have a less negative impact on the character of the 
Conservation Area, in comparison to the previously proposed timber fence.

7.6 CBC do raise a concern regarding the loss of open landscaped land which it 
considers provides a positive contribution to the character of the area. In so 
doing it refers to the Sydenham Character Area Appraisal and Management 
Plan which states “public spaces, together with views out of, into and within the 
Character Area impact on the area’s character and appearance…the presence 
of trees and other greenery helps to soften the spaces”.

7.7 NPPF3 Section 12 requires good design, providing sustainable 
development and creating better places to live and work in. Paragraph 127 
states decisions should ensure that development will function well and add 
to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term but over the 
lifetime of the development.  Development should be visually attractive as a 
result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective 
landscaping, which are sympathetic to local character and history 
maintaining a strong sense of place.

7.8 Section 16 of the NPPF3 states that historical 'assets are an irreplaceable 
resource, and should be conserved in a manner appropriate to their 
significance, so that they can be enjoyed for their contribution to the quality 
of life of existing and future generations'. Specifically Paragraph 192 states 
that local planning authorities should take account of the desirability of 
sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and putting Page 89



them to viable uses consistent with their conservation.

7.9 Paragraph 193 NPPF3 states that when considering the impact of a 
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, 
great weight should be given to the asset's conservation. Paragraph 194 
NPPF3 states that any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated 
heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within 
its setting), should require clear and convincing justification. Paragraph 196  
states that where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial 
harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be 
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where 
appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.

7.10 JCS SD4 - Design requires inclusive and safe design. The use of the land as 
an outdoor resource and teaching area is designed to be inclusive and safe. 
The use of the fire pit will require a risk assessment by school staff before use 
and would not be promoted if there was any risk that can not be managed 
accordingly. The enclosure of the site by black metal railings satisfies both 
safety and good design and are considered to have a neutral impact on the 
character and appearance of the Conservation Area and setting of nearby 
listed buildings. The railings are promoted following concerns initially raised 
by Officers and CBC  regarding a proposed close boarded timber fence 
which was not considered in keeping with the Conservation Area. It is noted 
that CBC do not raise any concern regarding impact on the setting of any 
listed buildings.  At present, GCC officers consider the current open space 
can be considered to be enhanced by its lack of enclosure and that the open 
space contributes to the appearance and character of the Conservation Area 
and the setting of the Listed Buildings identified above. Having said this it is 
considered that the proposed use of the land for educational purposes and 
the enclosure with metal railings  would have a less than substantial effect on 
the heritage assets of the Conservation Area and nearby listed buildings. 
Overall GCC officers consider that, in the “planning balance” the proposal will 
have neutral effect on the character and appearance of the Conservation 
Area as well as preserving the setting of the listed buildings.

7.11 In any event, any harm caused is considered, by GCC officers, to be less 
than substantial and overall neutral effect (subject to appropriate planning 
conditions relating to boundary treatment and landscaping) on the character 
and appearance of the Conservation Area as well as preserving the setting of 
the listed buildings, and when weighed in the “ planning balance” against the 
public benefit of the use of the private land for educational purposes is 
considered an acceptable use of the land satisfying JCS SD8 – Historic 
Environment.

7.12 The site lies within a Conservation Area adjoining and near to several Listed 
Buildings. There is an issue about visual loss of “open space” but, in GCC 
Officers’ opinion, this is reduced by the proposed railings. In the “planning 
balance” the use of the land and scale of the proposal regarding the 
landscaping and its location near to the school site is such that it would result 
in less than substantial harm to the significance of these designated heritage 
assets. As indicated above, any such harm would, in the opinion of Officers, 
be outweighed by the public benefits of the proposal. As such, it is considered 
the proposal accords with JCS Policies SD4 and SD8, along with saved 
policy CP7 of the CBC  development plan along with Sections 12 and 16 and 
paragraphs 193, 194 and 196 of the NPPF3.Page 90



Impact on Residential Amenity

7.13 The land adjoins a vehicular public highway and a commercial building 
(chiropractor, osteopath, sports injury and massage practice). Between the 
property and the land is an existing hedge which will remain, as well as a 
parking area for the practice. Residential buildings are located opposite the 
site on Berkeley Street. These are separated by the vehicular public 
highway.

7.14 The site will not be in constant use by the school. No representations have 
been received by local residents, members of the public or local businesses. 
Its intermittent use is unlikely to give rise to residential amenity concerns. The 
site is proposed to include landscaping in the form of retention of the existing 
boundary hedge and shrubs, planting of a new native hedge and willow trees. 
An existing mature tree will remain on the site.

7.15 It is recommended that the use of the land is limited by condition to between  
08:00 and 18:00 hours on Monday to Friday (excluding bank or public 
holidays)  to ensure no impact on residential amenity in the evenings and 
weekends, particularly from the use of the fire pit.

7.16 Overall it is considered that the use of the land for educational purposes will 
not give rise to concerns relating to residential amenity regarding any loss of 
light, privacy, noise or fire risk. As such, the use is considered to accord with 
saved Policy CP4 of the Cheltenham Borough Council development plan 
along with Section 12 of the NPPF3.

Impact on highway safety

7.17 The HA  originally raised concern regarding highway safety to vulnerable 
road users. This relates to the movement of children to the site across a 
vehicular highway between the school and the site. The safe passage of 
children is a matter for the school to control and manage and they would need 
to undertake a risk assessment. The HA also raised concern regarding the 
fire pit and access to the site by a fire tender should it be necessary. It is 
noted that the use of the land does not alter any highway access 
arrangement for emergency vehicles. The enclosure of the land by railings 
would not impede access to the same by the emergency services.

7.18 Whilst concerns were raised by the HA, they have confirmed that these can 
be addressed through planning conditions/informatives and as such the 
original objection was removed. The proposed planning condition  would 
require the applicant/developer to agree a scheme covering such matters as:

• appropriate crossing points with tactile paving and lowered kerbs for the 
benefit of vulnerable road users and those who struggle to negotiate full 
height kerbs;

• details of staff supervision of vulnerable road users in crossing the public 
highway;

• details of fire prevention measures and provision of access for emergency 
vehicles; and

Page 91



• provision for gates to only open inwards onto site and not onto the public 
highway.

Subject to the above highway requirements being agreed and implemented,  
the use of the land for educational purposes would have a significantly 
reduced impact on highway safety or the safety of children using the site. 
As such, GCC planning officers consider the use is considered to accord 
with JCS Policy INF1 along with Paragraph 108 of the NPPF3.

Other considerations

7.19 The land is currently occupied by a mature tree and hedgerow. The mature 
tree provides a significant benefit to the setting of the area and is to be 
retained as part of the development. The existing hedgerow is identified as a 
shrub area. It is proposed that, if planning permission is granted, that a 
planning condition is imposed requiring a landscaping scheme and boundary 
treatment to be agreed with the planning authority, to include the retention of 
the hedgerow and tree.

7.20 The County Ecologist identifies that there would be a small localised 
enhancement of biodiversity and recommends conditions regarding a planting 
and aftercare scheme and being established in accordance with the 
application details submitted. An informative is also recommended relating to 
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981.

7.21 As such it is considered that the use of the land, subject to planning 
conditions, is in compliance with JCS Policy SD9 and Paragraphs 170 and 
175 of the NPPF3.

Summary reasons for the grant of planning permission and relevant 
development plan policies

7.22 The proposed development of the outdoor “Forest School” on land opposite 
the school entrance is by virtue of its design, location and need for 
educational facility is in “planning balance” considered by the County 
Planning Authority not to have an adverse impact on the local highway 
network, biodiversity or amenity of neighbouring and nearby residents and 
businesses. The proposed development is considered to have a neutral 
effect on the character and appearance of the Conservation Area and 
setting of the listed buildings. Even if the development was shown to have 
a harmful effect on these heritage assets, this would be less than 
substantial harm and would be outweighed by the public benefits of the 
proposal. It is therefore considered that the proposed development is in 
accordance with Policy SD4, SD8, SD9, INF1 of the JCS and Paragraphs 
94, 170, 175, 193 and 196 of the NPPF3.

7.23 In determining this planning application, the County Planning Authority has 
worked with the applicant in a positive and proactive manner based on
seeking solutions to any potential problems arising in relation to dealing with 
the planning application by liaising with consultees, respondents and the 
agent, and by discussing outcomes, findings and comments with the 
applicant where considered appropriate or necessary.  This approach has 
been taken positively and proactively in accordance with the requirement in 

Page 92



the National Planning Policy Framework, as set out in Article 35 of  the Town 
and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 
Order 2015.

Human Rights

7.24 From 2nd October 2000, the Human Rights Act 1998 has the effect of 
enshrining much of the European Convention on Human Rights in UK law. 
Article 8 of the Human Rights Act 1998 guarantees a right to respect for 
private and family life and Article 1 of the First Protocol guarantees the right 
to peaceful enjoyment of possessions. Article 8 also provides that there 
shall be no interference by a public authority with the exercise of this right 
except in the interests of national security, public safety, or the economic 
well-being of the country, for the prevention of disorder or crime, for the 
protection of health or morals, or for the protection of the freedom of others.

7.25 Apart from the objection raised by CBC  which has been considered and 
addressed in this report, no objection was raised by the statutory consultees 
other than the HA (which is addressed by planning conditions and informative 
and agreed by the HA) or representations received from members of the 
public. For the reasons set out in the section on Planning Considerations, it is 
not thought there would be any breach of the European Convention rights.  
Even if there was to be an interference with Convention rights then, in this 
case, it is thought that the interference would be justified in the interests of 
economic and educational well-being. Accordingly, it would not be unlawful 
to grant planning permission for the change of use and expansion to this 
primary school.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION

8.1 It is recommended that planning permission is GRANTED for the reasons 
summarised in paragraph 7.22  in accordance with Regulation 3 of the Town 
and Country Planning General Regulations 1992, and subject to the 
following conditions:

Commencement

1 The development hereby authorised shall begin not later than the expiration 
of 3 years from the date of this permission. Written notification of the date of 
commencement shall be sent to the County Planning Authority within 7 days 
of such commencement.

Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 as amended.

Scope of Development

2 The proposed development shall be carried out in accordance with application 
form; Supporting Planning & Design and Access Statement July 2019 and the 
following plans and documents, unless otherwise approved by conditions 
below:

 Location Plan dated 28.02.19
Page 93



Off site layout Plan dated 28.02.19

Reason: In order to define the scope of this consent.

Hours of Construction

3 No construction, including delivery of materials, shall take place at the site 
outside of the hours 08:00 to 18:00 hours Monday to Friday and 09:00 to 
13:00 hours on Saturdays. No work shall be undertaken on Sundays, bank 
holidays or public holidays.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the area in accordance with ‘saved’ 
Policy CP4 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan.

Hours of Occupation

4 The use of the land as a Forest School shall not be occupied except between 
the following hours:

08:00 and 18:00 hours on Monday to Friday

No occupation or use of the land shall be permitted on Saturdays and 
Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of the neighbouring residents in 
accordance with ‘saved’ Policy CP4 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan.

Materials

5 Prior to commencement of development, details of the materials and finishes 
to be used as boundary treatment shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the County Planning Authority. The development shall be fully 
implemented and maintained throughout the use of the land hereby approved 
in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the area in accordance with 
‘saved’ Policy CP7 of the Cheltenham Borough Local Plan.

Landscaping and Biodiversity

6 Prior to commencement of the development a Planting and Aftercare Scheme 
based on the drawing ‘Off Site Layout’ dated 28.2.19 shall be submitted to 
and approved by the County Planning Authority. The scheme shall include:

(a) An annotated drawing of the soft landscape features to be retained, 
created, enhanced and managed;
(b) Details of species, number, density, and size of shrubs/trees to be 
planted and composition of any wildflower or grass seeding mix or turfing. All 
plants that fail to thrive or which die within the first five years after completion 
should be replaced with species of, as a minimum, the same size or extent as 
those planted or sown;
(c) Methods of establishment plus short-term and long-term after-care of 
all plants and landscape structures to be installed or retained;
(d) Organisation or personnel responsible for implementation of the 

Page 94



scheme;

Thereafter the approved Planting and Aftercare scheme shall be fully 
implemented as approved by the County Planning Authority within six months 
of the occupation of the development or the first planting season, whichever is 
sooner.

Reason: To conserve and enhance the landscape and biodiversity value of 
the land and in accordance with JCS Policy SD9, ODPM Circular 06/2005 
plus National Planning Policy Framework Paragraphs 8, 170 and 175. This is 
also in accordance with Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural 
Communities Act 2006, which confers a general biodiversity duty upon Local 
Authorities.

7. No external lighting shall be installed on this site without the prior approval, in 
writing, from the County Planning Authority.

Reason: To protect local amenity and to ensure that wildlife are not 
discouraged at this location, in accordance with WCS Policy 15 and GCTJCS 
Policy SD9.

Highways

8. Prior to commencement of development a highway safety scheme shall be 
submitted and approved in writing by the County Planning Authority. The 
submitted scheme shall include details relating to:

 appropriate crossing points with tactile paving and lowered kerbs for 
the benefit of vulnerable road users and those who struggle to 
negotiate full height kerbs;

 details of staff supervision of vulnerable road users in crossing the 
public highway;

 details of fire prevention measures and provision of access for 
emergency vehicles; and

 provision for gates to only open inwards onto site and not onto 
the public highway.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety for pedestrians and vehicle users 
near to the site entrance, in accordance with WCS Policy INF1 and NPPF3 
Paragraphs 109 and 110.

Informatives

1. This informative is given as a reminder of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 
(as amended) which makes it an offence to kill, injure or take any wild bird, and 
to intentionally remove, damage or destroy the nest of any wild bird while that 
nest is in use or being built. It is also an offence to take or destroy any wild 
bird eggs. If at any time nesting birds are observed on or close to the site then 
works which might affect them should cease and advice sought from a suitably 
qualified or experienced person.

2. The applicant is advised to contact the Highway Authority regarding any 
permissions and authorisations required regarding works in and on the public 

Page 95



highway.

BACKGROUND PAPERS:
Planning Application file 19/0036/CHREG3 containing the planning application, 
supporting statement, drawings, consultation responses may be viewed by 
appointment with the case officer below or on the Council’s Public Access website 
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning by a search with the application reference.

CONTACT OFFICER:
Case Officer: Denis Canney 
Telephone: 01452 425611
Email: planningdc@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Page 96

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning
mailto:planningdc@gloucestershire.gov.uk


DRAFT REPORT FOR PLANNING COMMITTEE | JAN 2020

Update on progress with the further revised (2nd Review) Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI) for Gloucestershire | following public consultation between 
October and December 2019

1. Introduction

1.1 A Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) is a statutory planning document that 
outlines the consultation and engagement methods that planning authorities will use 
when involving interested residents, groups, organisations, businesses, and other 
representatives and individuals in the planning process. It explains who will be 
consulted, when and how in the preparation of planning policy documents, including 
the development plan and the consideration of planning applications.

1.2 All local planning authorities are required by law to prepare an SCI for their area 
and keep it under review at least every five years.

1.3 The SCI for Gloucestershire County Council was first adopted back in December 
2005.  A revised SCI was adopted at the end of March 2013.  The revision was 
prepared to reflect significant reforms to the planning system brought about by the 
Localism Act 2011.

1.4 Following changes to Planning Regulations which came into force in early 2018, a 
scoping review of the revised SCI was conducted by officers.  This concluded that a 
further revised (2ndReview) SCI should be produced.  In March 2019, the Lead 
Cabinet Member for Environment and Planning endorsed an officer proposal to 
produce a further revised (2nd Review) SCI for Gloucestershire.  This was presented 
to Planning Committee in September 2019 prior to consultation from Monday 7th 
October to Friday 6th December 2019.

1.5 Paragraph 2.1 below outlines to Planning Committee a summary of the responses 
that have been received during the public consultation and the proposed 
amendments advised by officers to the  2nd Review SCI for Gloucestershire in 
response to the consultation. 

2. Summary of October to December 2019 consultation for the further revised 
(2nd Review) SCI for Gloucestershire 

2.1 A total of twelve interested parties responded to the SCI consultation.  All were 
generally supportive of the existence of a local SCI and the Council’s decision to 
review it. No objections to the review were recorded and a small number of further 
changes to the proposed 2nd Review SCI were advised by several respondents. 
Suggested changes were proposed to help with clarifying technical matters and to 
improve readability. 

3. Proposed amendments to the further revised (2nd Review) SCI for 
Gloucestershire following public consultation

Page 97

Agenda Item 9



3.1. In response to consultation comments a number of minor amendments have been 
proposed by officers to the further revised (2nd Review) SCI for Gloucestershire 
(see appendix 1).  The amendments include enhancements to the consultee section 
to recognise the stakeholder engagement of certain organisations and the adding of 
further footnotes and references to aid clarification.

4. Next Steps

4.1. A Cabinet report is to be prepared for the further revised (2nd Review) SCI for 
Gloucestershire. This is timetabled for March 2020. This Cabinet report will seek a 
recommendation from Cabinet for Full Council to formally adopt the new SCI.

5. Recommendation

5.1. It is recommended that Planning Committee notes the intention of the Director of 
Economy, Environment and Infrastructure to direct officers to prepare a Cabinet 
report for March 2020 that will seek a recommendation to County Council to adopt 
the further revised (2nd Review) SCI for Gloucestershire incorporating the 
amendments made following the public consultation between October and 
December 2019.

CONTACT OFFICER DETAILS:

Robin Drake – Principal Planning Officer | Minerals & Waste Policy
Telephone: 01452 425682
Email: m-wplans@gloucestershire.gov.uk

Page 98

mailto:m-wplans@gloucestershire.gov.uk


Appendix 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Statement of 

Community Involvement 

for Gloucestershire 

 

 

 

2
nd

 Review  
 

Planning Committee Version | January 2020 
 

Page 99



1 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 

 
Introduction 2 

Consultation: Development plan documents (DPDs) 4 

Consultation: Supplementary planning documents (SPDs) 9 

Consultation: Development proposals and planning applications 11 

Table 1: Consultees the County Council will engage with during plan making 5 - 6 

Table 2: The plan making stages for supplementary planning documents  10 

Figure 1: Key consultation stages and engagement for development plan 
documents 

8 

Page 100



2 
 

1 INTRODUCTION 
 
1. The planning system touches the lives of everyone who lives in, works in 

and visits Gloucestershire.  However, for many of us we only come into 

contact with it when we find out about a nearby planning application.  To be 

approved schemes have got to fit into the wider plan for an area, as well as 

be consistent with national policies issued by the Government. 

 

2. For every new planning document that the County Council produces, or any 

planning applications submitted to it for determination, the people of 

Gloucestershire and organisations need to be informed and given the 

opportunity to air their views as part of the decision making process. 

 

3. To help set out how the County Council will go about this a Statement of 

Community Involvement (SCI) for Gloucestershire has been prepared.  This 

statement is also a statutory requirement for the County Council in its role as 

a planning authority1,2. 

 

4. The SCI covers all consultations undertaken by the County Council in relation 

to future development plan documents involving strategic and non-strategic 

policies, including for minerals and waste matters3.  It also considers planning 

applications submitted to the County Council.  The SCI has been split into 

sections according to the type of planning function.  Sections 2 and 3 are 

planning policy and plan making functions related to the production of 

development plan documents and supplementary planning documents.  

Section 4 covers development management and the planning application 

process. 

 

5. The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 

(as amended)4 includes a requirement to review the Statement of Community 

Involvement (SCI) every five years.  The SCI for Gloucestershire was originally 

adopted in December 2005.  A revised (1st Review) SCI was adopted by the 

County Council in March 2013. 

 

6. This document is a further revised (2nd Review) version of the SCI.  It has been 

prepared in accordance with the latest legislation and was made available for 

public consultation between 9am on Monday 7th October and 5pm on Friday 

                                                           
1 A statement of community involvement is required under Section 18 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 as amended by 
the Planning Act 2008; Localism Act 2011; and Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended). 
 
2 County Councils are now recognised as a plan-making authority with responsibilities that could be extended beyond minerals and waste 
matters under provisions of the Neighbourhood Planning Act.2017 
 
3 Paragraphs 17 to 19 of the further revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019) explains what must be included within a 
local development plan 
 
4 Regulation 10A of the Town & Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) (Amendment) Regulations 2017 (SI 2017 No. 1244) introduced 
the need to review local development documents. It came into force on 28th December 2017. 

Page 101



3 
 

6th December 2019.     

 

7. In undertaking consultation and engagement we have also had regard to wider 

Government5 and County Council policies and to the following legislation: 

 Human Rights Act; 

  Freedom of Information Act;  

 Environmental Information Regulations; 

  Data Protection Act; 

  General Data Protection Regulations; and  

 Equality Act. 

 
 
Glossary 
 

8. To further assist in your consideration of this matter, a glossary of common 
planning terms and phases can be accessed on the National Planning Portal 
at:  

 

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/general/glossaryandlinks/glossary  
 
 

 
 

 
 

                                                           
5 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/consultation-principles-guidance 

Page 102

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/general/glossaryandlinks/glossary


4 
 

2 CONSULTATION: DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENTS (DPD) 

 

9. This SCI sets out local guidelines for the preparation of any development plan 

documents that Gloucestershire County Council intends to produce in the 

future.  This involves local development plans containing strategic and / or 

non-strategic policies, which cover both minerals and waste matters6. 

 

10. A key aim of consultation and engagement is to try and build consensus 

across Gloucestershire on the way in which new developments are assessed.  

Whilst a consensus is not always possible, consultation also offers the 

opportunity to improve understanding of key issues that in turn may help to 

minimise the degree of conflict and delay in putting in place up-to-date, 

effective and responsive local planning policies. 

 

11. Consultation methods and processes for engagement will be chosen by the 

County Council on a case-by-case basis to make them as relevant and 

effective as possible, having taken into account of the different stages of plan-

making.  Electronic communication, enabling online representations and using 

social media to share ideas and information will help to maximise effective 

and resource efficient engagement.  However, where these options are not 

possible or appropriate, the County Council will look to use more traditional 

methods, such as making hard copies of consultation documents available to 

view at key locations and sending out notification letters to inform interested 

parties about upcoming consultation events.  Written representations from 

interested participants in response to consultation events will also be 

accepted. 

 

12. Table 1 over the page identifies categories of individual organisations that the 

County Council is committed to engaging with during plan making.  ‘Specific 

consultation bodies’ are those that the County Council is statutorily required to 

consult with in preparing new plans and policies7.  There are a number of 

other ‘general consultation bodies’ that the County Council will also consult 

with as a matter of course, mostly comprising of local organisations and 

groups that represent the interests of different sections of the community.  In 

addition, there are ‘Duty to Co-operate’ (DtC) bodies.  These are a 

combination of local planning authorities, county councils and other public 

bodies not already listed that are subject to meeting statutory DtC 

requirements and which the County Council believes should be engaged with 

in respect of strategic planning matters8.  The list of DtC bodies is flexible in 

                                                           
6 Paras 17 to 19 of the further revised NPPF (2019) explains what must be included within a local development plan 
 
7 As set out in Part 1, Regulation 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) 

 
8 Section 33A of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) introduced the Duty to co-operate in relation to planning 
of sustainable development. It was contained in the Part 6 Chapter 1 clause 110 of the Localism Act 2011. It places a duty on local planning 
authorities, county councils in England and other public bodies to engage constructively, actively and on an ongoing basis in the 
preparation of development plan and local development documents (and marine plans) in respect of sustainable development and / or the 
use of land that will significantly impact on two or more planning areas  

Page 103



5 
 

so much as not all bodies listed will need to be consulted on every occasion.  

The decision to consult on DtC bodies will be made by the County Council on 

a case-by-case basis subject to the nature of the strategic planning matters. 

 

13. Outside of the categories set out in the table, other interested parties or 

individuals who express an interest in plan making will be included on the 

County Council consultation database9.  This is a live system that is kept up-

to-date regularly in line with the General Data Protection Regulations. 

 
 
 Table 1: Consultees the County Council will engage with during plan 

making * 
 

Types of consultee Who this means? 

Specific Consultation 
Bodies- 

 Environment Agency (EA);  

 Marine Management Organisation (MMO) 

 Historic England;  

 Natural England (NE);  

 Network Rail Infrastructure Ltd;  

 Highways England (HE); 

 Local authorities; parish / town councils; and / or 

neighbourhood forums within Gloucestershire and 

those that adjoin the county’s administrative 

boundary; 

 National Health Service Commissioning Board; 

 NHS Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group; 

 Homes England and the Regulator of Social 

Housing; 

 Electronic communication providers covering 

Gloucestershire and communication infrastructure 

operators with facilities located within the county; 

 Bristol Water Plc, Dwr Cymru Cyfyngedig (Welsh 

Ltd), Thames Water Utilities Ltd, Severn Trent Water 

Ltd, and Wessex Water Services Ltd in their 

capacity as sewerage and / or water undertakers 

operating within Gloucestershire; 

 National Grid; Scottish and Southern Electricity 

Networks; and Western Power Distribution in their 

capacity as licence holders for either electricity 

transmission or supply within Gloucestershire; 

 National Grid and Wales & West Utilities in their 

capacity as licence holders for either gas 

transmission or distribution within Gloucestershire; 

and 

 Coal Authority. 

                                                           
9 Please contact m-wplans@gloucestershire.gov.uk to be added onto the consultation database. 

Page 104

mailto:m-wplans@gloucestershire.gov.uk


6 
 

General Consultation 
Bodies# 

 Voluntary bodies (national or locally-based) whose 

activities benefit Gloucestershire – including in 

respect to health and well-being, heritage, wildlife 

and wider environmental matters; 

 Bodies representing the interests of different racial, 

ethnic, national groups; and / or different religious 

groups; and / or disabled persons in 

Gloucestershire; and 

 Bodies (including chambers of commerce and trade 

associations) representing the interests of 

businesses operating within Gloucestershire. 

 Other bodies considered to be of relevance to the 

specific consultation e.g. Nuclear Disposal Authority 

Duty to Co-operate 
Bodies 

 Local authorities with planning responsibilities other 

than those which adjoin the county’s administrative 

boundary, which are potentially impacted by a 

strategic planning matter relevant to the preparation 

of a local development document undertaken by the 

County Council; 

 Mayor of London; 

 Civil Aviation Authority (CAA); 

 Office of Rail and Road (ORR); 

 Transport for London (TfL); 

 Integrated Transport Authorities; and 

 Highway authorities other than Highways England 

and those which are local authorities adjoining the 

county’s administrative boundary, which are 

potentially impacted by a strategic planning matter 

relevant to the preparation of a local development 

document undertaken by the County Council. 

 Gloucestershire Local Enterprise Partnership (GFirst 

LEP)*; 

 Gloucestershire Local Nature Partnership*; and 

 Other Local Enterprise or Nature Partnership(s), 

which are potentially impacted by a strategic 

planning matter relevant to the preparation of a local 

development document undertaken by the County 

Council. 

 
*These bodies are not strictly subject to DtC requirements. However, 

planning authorities should engage with them and have regard to their 

activities where they relate to local plan making. In effect a ‘duty to 

cooperate’ of sorts exists between planning authorities, LEPs and LNPs. 

 
# - There are also a number of national organisations that the County Council considers to be potentially important and 
highly influential in respect of plan-making. However, these organisations do not fall under the consultation categories 
outlined in the SCI.  The decision to consult these organisations will be taken on a case-by-case basis dependent upon 
the subject matter of the local development plan or supplementary planning document being prepared, the recognised 
best planning practice at that time, further government guidance and also other legislative requirements. The 
organisations this is likely to involve include: - British Geological Survey (BGS), The Crown Estate, Defence 
Infrastructure Organisation (DIO), The Health & Safety Executive (HSE) and Public Health England, 

 

Page 105



7 
 

Consultation periods 

 

14. Consultation events will normally take place for a period of at least six 

weeks.  This is the usual timeframe required by plan making regulations.  

However, the County Council is able to extend this time to receive 

representations.  The decision to extend consultations will be made by the 

County Council on a case-by-case basis having considered the 

circumstances surrounding any potential extension including the occurrence 

of public holidays or main holiday periods such as Christmas, Easter and the 

school summer break.  Critical to any decision will be the reasonableness of 

a responding organisation to schedule any meetings / carry out internal 

decision making processes in order to arrive at a consensus view.  The need 

to avoid excessive delay will also be of paramount importance  

 

Availability of documents 

 

15. The County Council will make consultation documents available to view on its 

website.  It may also upload posts using social media to signpost interested 

parties to consultation events.  A limited amount of hard copy consultation 

documents will also be made available for inspection in the main reception 

area of the County Council and at the primary offices of Gloucestershire’s 

borough, city and district councils. 

 

16. Consultation documents will also be accessible to view via the online services 

offered by Gloucestershire libraries including those supported by the County 

Council10.  Library computers are installed with software enabling 

magnification, speech and Braille support for people who are visually 

impaired.   

 

17. Consultation documents will be sent electronically to organisations and bodies 

on request.  However, a cost recovery charge may be made for any other 

requests for hard copy consultation documents whether they are collected in 

person or sent by post.  

 

 

Consultation stages 

 

18. The plan-making stages involving consultation and engagement are largely 

governed by statutory procedures11.  National guidance12 to support this is 

also provided.  The later, decision-making stages are more formal and more 

heavily controlled by regulations.  The County Council cannot deviate from 

                                                           
10 Online services offered at libraries in Gloucestershire include:- free bookable computers, free public wifi and subject to availability, 
computer buddies to help with the use of computers, tablets and getting online. 
 
11 Statutory procedures are contained within the Town & Country Planning (England) (Local Planning) Regulations 2012 (as amended) 
 
12 Available at https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance  

Page 106

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/planning-practice-guidance


8 
 

the requirements at the submission stage onwards.  Figure 1 presents a basic 

diagram of the key plan making stages involved in consultation and the broad 

engagement commitments that will be usually followed by the County 

Council. 

Page 107



9 
 

Figure 1: Key consultation stages & engagement for development plan documents 
 

Plan-making 

Stages: -

What is being 

considered? 

Broad engagement  
commitments: - 

 

  
 

 

 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

* 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Plan 
Preparation 

 

Gathering evidence; 

Scoping what is to be looked at or not;

Starting to look at possible options;
Looking at social, environmental and 

economic Impacts (the beginning of 
the Sustainability Appraisal process); 

 

 Consultation primarily aimed at:- checking 
that we have got the approach right; 

 Consultation documents deposited at local 
council receptions; 

 Minimum 6-week consultation period;

Workshops may be held to talk through 

issues;  

 Multiple consultations and social media 

may be used 

Draft 
Plan 

Publication of 
Proposed 

Submission 
Plan 

Adoption 

 

Independent
Examination 

 
Consultation primarily aimed at: - checking 
the ‘soundness’ of the plan* and its legal 
compliance; 

Notification letters used for all prospective
consultees; 

Notification on Council website;

Notification to advise on when and how
consultations can be made; 

Consultation documents deposited at local 
council receptions; 

Minimum 6-week consultation period; 

All representations will be submitted with 
plan for consideration at the examination by
the inspector. 

Submission
Stage 

Formal decision- 
making 

Submission – The Council will submit 
its ‘submission’ version of the plan, 
plus all formal consultation 
representations received at this stage
and all associated documents 
including the final Sustainability
Appraisal; 

Examination – The independent
inspector will decide on the level of 
participation for the examination and 
how any amendments might need to 
be consulted upon; 

Adoption – GCC to decide to adopt
plan. There is a six-week legal 
challenge period post-adoption 

 Consultation primarily aimed at: - ensuring the 
draft policies are right for Gloucestershire;
Notification letters used for all prospective
consultees; 

 Notification on Council website, advising on 

when and how consultations can be made; 

 Consultation documents deposited at local 
council receptions; 

 Minimum 6-week consultation period; 

 Workshops  and social media may be used for 
promotional purposes 

 

The production of the final council 
version of the plan; 

Conclusion of the assessment of social, 
environmental and economic impacts of 
the plan (the final stage of the
Sustainability Appraisal process) 

The production of a draft plan;
Continuing to look at the social, 
environmental and economic impacts of 
the emerging plan (the next stage of the
Sustainability Appraisal process) 

 Consultation primarily aimed at: -
providing the inspector with sufficient 
detail and clarity in order to fully assess 
the plan’s soundness; the inspector to 
decide on the length, scale and nature 
of any public consultations (e.g. Main 
Modifications); 

 Council website updated to include
Inspector’s Report and all proposed 
modifications; 

 Inspector’s Report deposited at local 
council receptions 

 All respondents to the plan will be 
notified of the adoption; 

An adoption statement will be 
published 

Page 108



10 
 

3 CONSULTATION: SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENTS 

(SPD) 

 

19. Supplementary planning documents (SPDs) do not have the same planning 

status as a development plan document.  They are normally used to help in 

the understanding and implementation of local plan policies contained in 

development plan documents.  SPDs are adopted by councils without 

independent examination.  However, they are material considerations in the 

determination of planning applications. 

 

20. The level and extent of consultation required in preparing an SPD is generally 

less than that for a development plan document.  The consultation methods 

may also vary according to the scope and significance of the SPD.  The aim is 

for SPDs to be prepared reasonably swiftly so they can be responsive to 

arising policy implementation matters.  SPDs can be extremely influential in 

ensuring local plan policies are properly reflected in decision making with 

planning applications.  As a consequence, it is important that effective 

community involvement takes place but that delays are avoided wherever 

possible. 

 

 

Consultation periods 

 

21. Consultation events will normally take place for a period of four weeks.  

However, the County Council may choose to extend this time to receive 

representations.  The decision to extend consultations will be made by the 

County Council on a case-by-case basis having considered the circumstances 

surrounding any potential extension including the occurrence of public holidays 

or main holiday periods such as Christmas, Easter and the school summer 

break.  Critical to any decision will be the reasonableness of a responding 

organisation to schedule any meetings / carry out internal decision making 

processes in order to arrive at a consensus view.  The need to avoid excessive 

delay will also be of paramount importance 

 

 

Availability of documents 

 

22. The availability of consultation documents will be the same as development 

plan documents.  A strong online presence will limit access to hard copy 

documents at key locations. 

 

 

  

Page 109



11 
 

Consultation stages 

 

23. As with the preparation of development plan documents, the preparation and 

adoption of SPDs is governed by statutory procedures13.  National guidance 

is also provided to support the process.  Table 2 provides a summary of the 

stages usually involved in the preparation of SPDs  

 

Table 2: The plan making stages for supplementary planning documents 

 

Stage Stakeholder Involvement 

Evidence gathering and 

preparation of draft 

SPD 

Likely to involve informal and / or targeted engagement 

with relevant specific and general consultation bodies 

and other organisations. A site-specific SPD may also 

include consultation with local communities affected and 

/ or representatives of local communities. 

 

Social media will be used to promote consultation where 

relevant and appropriate. 

 

Elected members will receive a report about progress on 

SPD preparation including a review of the consultation 

outcomes  

Public consultation and 

preparation of final 

draft 

A period of public consultation regarding the draft SPD 

will be completed for a period of at least 4 weeks.  

 

General and specific consultees will be notified about the 

consultation along with any other individuals and 

organisations who have expressed an interest. Social 

media will also be used to promote the consultation 

Representations and 

finalise SPD 

Elected members will received a report about progress 

on SPD preparation including a review of consultation 

outcomes (and any changes to be taken forward into the 

final SPD). 

Adoption Following adoption necessary notifications will be issued   

 
  

                                                           
13 Statutory procedures are contained within the Town & Country Planning (England) (Local Planning) Regulations 2012 as made by the 
Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, Planning Act 2008 and Localism Act 2011 

Page 110



12 
 

4  CONSULTATION: DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS AND 

PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 

 

24. The SCI also sets out how the County Council will engage in consultation with 

the public and other organisations when dealing with planning applications.  This 

includes expectations and commitments surrounding consultation carried out at 

the pre-application stage.  Minimum requirements exist for consulting on 

planning application and these are set out in law14. 

 

25. The County Council is responsible for determining certain types of planning 

applications.  It also offers pre-application advice that is encouraged through 

best practice.  The following types of planning application are dealt with by the 

County Council: - 

 

 Mineral developments including: - extraction; on-site mineral processing; 

and the implementation of mineral site restoration; 

 Waste management developments including: - composting; disposal and 

recovery (landfill and energy from waste); recycling; treatment; and 

bulking and transfer; and 

 Public infrastructure on land under the control of County Council and / or 

funded by the County Council such as new or extended schools or local 

roads. 

 

 

Consultation and engagement in pre-application proposals 

 

26. The County Council encourages prospective applicants to seek pre-

application planning advice.  This is a chargeable service15 that offers input 

from internal technical specialists from within the County Council.  Wider 

consultation including with members of the public or other potentially relevant 

statutory bodies does not usually take place through the pre-application 

service although some statutory bodies may be involved16.  Pre-application 

advice is also not publicised by the County Council and is considered in the 

first instance to be confidential.  However, in the event that the County 

Council is subject to a freedom of Information request involving paid pre-

application advice, the confidential status of the advice may need to be re-

assessed.  Decisions on disclosure will only occur after legal advice has been 

sought.   

                                                           
14 Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) 
 
15 More information about GCC’s pre-application service can be obtained from https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-
environment/planning-applications/pre-application-planning-advice  
 
16 As of December 2019, the EA, the Canals Trust have sought to be involved in GCC pre-application considerations. 

Page 111

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-applications/pre-application-planning-advice
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-applications/pre-application-planning-advice


13 
 

 

27. The County Council actively encourages prospective applicants to carry out 

engagement with the local community, relevant statutory bodies and other 

interested parties during the pre-application stage.  This also applies to the 

County Council for developments it is responsible for.  Pre-application is 

strongly supported in government guidance17 

 

28. Prospective applicants should think about the various methods available to 

ensure those that could be affected have been involved.  This might include: - 

sending out targeted notification letters and leaflets; uploading posts to social 

media; setting up websites that showcase easily readable plans and diagrams 

to explain emerging proposals; and running public meetings, exhibitions or 

more involved workshops.   

 

29. A ‘Statement of Pre-application Engagement’ may be requested by the 

County Council for proposals that progress from pre-application to the 

application stage.  The statement should be similar to that required under 

regulations for specific pre-application consultation18.  The failure to carry out 

meaningful pre-application consultation and / or to produce a robust 

supporting engagement statement, could risk delaying decisions on any 

subsequent planning applications.  A ‘Statement of Pre-application 

Engagement’ should ideally include the following matters: 

 

 Who has been involved; 

 How have they been engaged; 

 What were the issues raised; 

 What recommendations were highlighted by respondents; and 

 What changes have been taken forward into the proposal at the 

application stage? 

 

 

The need for Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) and what matters will 

need to be considered with planning applications 

 

30. Some development proposals determined by the County Council may require 

an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) to be carried out.  This will result 

in the need to produce an Environmental Statement (ES) to accompany a 

planning application.  Regulations allow for prospective applicants to seek a 

decision from the County Council as to whether an (ES) is needed.  This is 

called a Screening Opinion and, if required, another document called a 

                                                           
17 Planning Practice Guidance (PPG), Section covering: - The value of pre-application engagement, paragraph: 001, reference ID: 20-001-
20190315 
 
18 Part 2, Article 4, Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) 
 

Page 112



14 
 

Scoping Opinion will detail what matters need to be considered19.   

 

31. For Screening Opinions the County Council have a period of 3-weeks in 

which to respond.  There is no requirement to undergo consultation for a 

Screening Opinion, however, a decision to consult external organisations will 

be made on case-by-case basis.  Once a Screening Opinion has been 

adopted by the County Council it will be publicised on the Council’s website.  

A copy of the adopted Screening Opinion will also be sent to the borough, city 

or district council of Gloucestershire in which the application is located. 

 
32. For Scoping Opinion requests the County Council is required to provide a 

response within a 5-week period.  Consultation with a number of external 

organisations is a requirement of this process, although it does not include the 

general public20.  A copy of the adopted Scoping Opinion will be publicised on 

the Council’s website and sent to the borough, city or district council of 

Gloucestershire in which the application is located. 

 

Awareness raising and notification of new planning applications 

 

33. On receipt of a valid planning application the County Council will either place 

a notice or request for one to be placed, on or near to the application site.  

The notice will give details of the application, where further information about 

it can be found, and the date by which any comments will need to be 

submitted to the County Council.  The site notice must be displayed for at 

least 21 days, unless the planning application is defined as ‘EIA development’ 

and is accompanied by an environmental statement.  For EIA development 

the site notice must be displayed for 30 days21.  The County Council will also 

place notices on the Council’s website. 

 

34. A public notice of valid planning applications may also be placed in a local 

newspaper, which is in circulation in the locality of the proposal site.  The 

decision to place a public notice in a local newspaper will be made on a case-

by-case basis having reviewed regulations relating to this matter and taking 

into account the likely scale and significance of the proposed development22.   

 

35. The public notice placed in a local newspaper will also invite comments to be 

made for a period of no less than 21 days following the publication of the 

notice. 

                                                           
19 The Town and Country Planning (Local Authority Consultations etc.) (England) Order 2018 

 
20 Organisation that must be consulted include:- Natural England, Environment Agency, Historic England, the relevant local planning 
authority and any other body that would be required to be consulted in accordance with Schedule 4 of the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) Order 2015 (as amended) 
 
21 Part 3, Article 15, Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) 

 
22 Part 3, Article 15, Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) 

Page 113



15 
 

 

36. Where there are people living or working nearby to an application site, the 

County Council will notify them by letter giving 28 days from the date of the 

letter in which to respond.  This period of notice is to accommodate any 

unforeseen delays in postal collections and deliveries.  Generally the County 

Council does not employ strict thresholds for deciding who to include in 

nearby consultations.  However, it will try to ensure that at least all known 

properties bordering the application site outlined in red on the submitted plans 

are sent a consultation letter.  The County Council will decide which 

properties it will consult on a case-by-case basis guided by regulatory 

requirements and local circumstances.   

 
37. In respect of amendments to applications, the decision to re-consult and the 

associated timescales for those living or working nearby to an application site 

will be made on a case-by-case basis by the County Council.  Account will be 

given to the scale and significance of the changes being proposed, the level 

of interest already demonstrated in the application and other local 

circumstances.  A re-notification period of less than 28 days may be 

considered to be appropriate in this circumstance. 

 

 

Informing organisations about new planning applications 

 

38. In addition to notifying members of the public about new planning 

applications, the County Council will look to consult public bodies such as 

district and parish / town councils.  It will also seek to engage with other 

potentially relevant technical organisations or agencies.  In all cases a 

minimum period of 21 days will be given to respond.  Most public bodies are 

already bound by a duty to engage with planning applications and make 

representations within the 21-day time period.  This supports the timely 

determination of planning applications within the statutory timescales23.  

However, the County Council may be agreeable to extensions of time for 

complex applications.  This will be decided on a case-by-case basis, having 

considered the reasonableness of any meeting / internal decision-making 

schedule to achieve consensus within a responding organisation and the 

need to avoid unjustifiably delaying the determination of planning applications.  

 

Engagement with the Gloucestershire Design Panel 

 

39. A design review may assist in the determination of certain planning 

applications determined by the County Council.  This is carried out locally by 

the Gloucestershire Design Panel (GDP) – an independent, multi-disciplinary 

panel of local design professionals seeking to make a positive contribution to 

                                                           
23 The statutory timescales are detailed here https://www.gov.uk/guidance/determining-a-planning-application  

Page 114

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/determining-a-planning-application


16 
 

the quality of Gloucestershire’s built environment24.  The County Council will 

refer planning applications to the GDP on a case-by-case basis taking into 

account the scale of development, its potential impact, the visual sensitivity of 

locality and the likelihood it will set a strong precedent for the design of future 

proposals.  Applicants are able to self refer their proposals to the GDP for a 

local design review.  The GDP can also invite planning applications to be 

reviewed.  

 

 

Dealing with comments made on planning applications 

 

40. The County Council are able to receive comments to planning applications by 

post or e-mail.  All representations received in this manner will be available 

for public inspection, by appointment at: - Shire Hall, Westgate Street, 

Gloucester.  Comments can also be made online via the County Council 

website.  These comments will also appear on the County Council website for 

others to see – albeit only the contributor’s name will be associated with 

submitted comments.  All other personal details will be removed.  All 

representations received from statutory, public bodies and / or general 

consultation bodies will also be made available to view on the County Council 

website.  Endeavours will be made to ensure that comments made by 

organisations are available to view online within 5 working days of their 

receipt. 

 

41. In very exceptional circumstances – for example, when a planning application 

is likely to generate a high level of public interest, the County Council may 

upload all representations onto the its website, regardless of how they were 

submitted.  Only the contributor’s name will be associated with the electronic 

version of any postal or hard copy representations.  All other details will be 

removed.  This process may take longer than 5 working days to complete. 

 

 

Making decisions on planning applications 

 

42. Minor and less contentious planning applications will usually be determined 

under delegated powers by senior officers of the County Council.  In all other 

cases, applications are referred to the County Council’s Planning Committee 

for a decision. 

 

43. The Planning Committee is made up of elected members who represent 

communities from across Gloucestershire.  All respondents to planning 

applications will be given the opportunity to attend and observe the relevant 

Planning Committee meeting.  Respondents may also be given the chance to 

                                                           
24 Gloucestershire Design Panel (GDP) https://www.glosdesignpanel.co.uk/  

Page 115

https://www.glosdesignpanel.co.uk/


17 
 

speak at Planning Committee meetings.  The details on how, when and for 

how long public speaking can take place is set out on the County Council’s 

website25. 

 

 

Informing of decisions on planning applications 

 

44. Respondents to planning applications are encouraged to provide an e-mail 

address for future communications.  All those who have responded by e-mail 

or via the County Council’s website will be notified electronically of the 

decision once it has been made.  For those who have submitted only postal 

details a notification letter will be sent.  Endeavours will be made to achieve 

this soon after a decision has been made. 

 

 

Monitoring and enforcement of decisions on planning applications 

 

45. The County Council is unable to monitor every site all of the time so 

members of the public and the wider community play an important role in 

alerting of any potential breaches of planning control.  This can be easily 

done online through the County Council’s Planning Enforcement 

webpages26.  Contact details will be kept confidential.  The County Council 

will also keep you updated with its findings, and we may be in touch to 

request further information. 

 

46. There are no requirements for the County Council to undertake formal 

consultation on enforcement investigations, but may work or consult with 

relevant bodies or individuals to support their investigations. 

 

47. Should any enforcement matter result in an Enforcement Notice, and that 

Notice is appealed, then the Council is required to formally consult immediate 

neighbours and anyone that has reported the breach.  Representations have 

to be made within a deadline which the County Council will specify to you in 

writing and forward to the Planning Inspectorate as part of their deliberations. 

 

48. Further information on the operation of the County Council’s Planning 

Enforcement Service, how to make a report, how an investigation will be 

conducted and what actions may be taken, is set out in the County Council’s 

Planning Enforcement Plan27.  Appendix 2 of the Planning Enforcement Plan 

includes our Customer Service Charter setting out what customers should 

                                                           
25 https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/speaking-at-planning-committee/ 
 
26 Details available from https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-enforcement/how-to-report-a-breach-
of-planning-regulations/  
 
27 Available from https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-enforcement/planning-enforcement-plan/  

Page 116

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/speaking-at-planning-committee/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-enforcement/how-to-report-a-breach-of-planning-regulations/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-enforcement/how-to-report-a-breach-of-planning-regulations/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/planning-and-environment/planning-enforcement/planning-enforcement-plan/


18 
 

expect from the County Council. 

 

 

Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects (NSIPs) proposed within 

Gloucestershire 

 

49. For major infrastructure developments deemed to be of national importance 

(e.g. railways, ports, electricity lines etc.) the County Council is a statutory 

consultee rather than the determining planning authority.  These types of 

developments are known as ‘Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects – 

NSIPs’ and are decided by Government through the Planning Inspectorate 

(PINS). 

 

50. The process for carrying out pre-application engagement and consultation on 

NSIP applications is well established and set out in legislation and 

guidance28.  However, it important that local communities and other 

interested organisations that support or benefit Gloucestershire are 

meaningfully engaged.  As part of the County Council’s early involvement 

with emerging NSIP developments, it will strongly encourage that the 

commitments contained in the SCI for Gloucestershire are followed.  This will 

be particularly relevant where prospective applicants seek the County 

Council’s involvement in the preparation of a Statement of Community 

Consultation (SoCC)29. 

 

                                                           
 
28 Planning Act 2008; Localism Act 2011; Infrastructure Planning (Applications: Prescribed Forms and Procedure) Regulations 2009;  
Infrastructure Planning (Interested Parties and Miscellaneous Prescribed Provisions) Regulations 2015; Planning Act 2008: Guidance on the 
pre-application process (2015); Planning Act 2008: Guidance on nationally significant infrastructure projects and housing (2017). 
 
29 SoCCs are a consequence of section 47 of The Planning Act 2008. There purpose is to set out how the project promoter intends to 
consult people living in the vicinity of the proposed nationally significant infrastructure project. 

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



Delegated List 7th Nov 2019 to 15th Jan 2020

County Matters
Application Ref Proposal Site Location Decision Issue 

Date
Decision

17/0113/COMPLI Compliance with condition 14 (Pedestrian 
& cycle link), 18 (Landscaping scheme) & 
22 (Lighting) relating to appeal 
APP/T1600/A/13/2200210 Allowed 
16/01/2015.  GCC Public Access appeal 
ref. 13/0001/INQUIR. (Original planning 
ref. 12/0008/STMAJW.

Javelin Park EFW
Bath Road
Haresfield
Stonehouse
Gloucestershire
GL10 3ET

20/12/2019 Compliance 
with 
Condition(s)

19/0024/CWMAJM Variation of conditions 1 (Duration of 
Permission) and 4 (Limit of Production) 
relating to planning consent 
16/0077/CWMAJM dated 27/07/2017.

Land East Of Spratsgate Lane And 
Adjacent To Keynes Country Park 
Spratsgate Lane
Siddington

09/12/2019 Consent

19/0077/COMPLI Re-submission of Compliance with 
condition 32 (Aftercare & Management 
scheme) relating to planning consent 
14/0124/CWMAJM dated 22/04/2015 
[Variation of Extraction of walling and 
building stone with restoration to 
limestone grassland and woodland 
permission 09/0082/CWMAJM dated 
11/08/2011]

Land To The West Of 
Nayles Larch Building Stone Quarry
Snowshill Hill
Cutsdean
Gloucestershire

19/11/2019 Compliance 
with 
Condition(s)

Regulation 3 Applications

9/0013/TWREG3 Erection of a new modular building, to 
serve 3 new classrooms.

Ashchurch Primary School
Ashchurch Road
Tewkesbury GL2O 8LA

16/12/2019 Consent

19/0045/GLR3MJ Erection of one three-storey building to 
comprise 2 general medical practitioner 
surgeries (Use Class D1), associated 
pharmacy (Use Class A1), open plan 
office space (Use Class B1) and ground 
floor parking.

Site Of The Former Quayside House
Quay Street
Gloucester
Gloucestershire
GL1 2TZ

21/11/2019 Consent

P
age 119

A
genda Item

 10



Delegated List 7th Nov 2019 to 15th Jan 2020

19/0064/STREG3 Improvements & making good of 
existing access at rear of school.

Slimbridge Primary School
St Johns Road
Slimbridge GL2 7DD

26/11/2019 Consent

19/0079/COMPLI Compliance with conditions 7(external 
lighting) & 8 (cycle scooter parking) 
relating to planning consent 
19/0048/TWREG3 dated 14/08/2019.

The John Moore Primary School
Columbine Road
Walton Cardiff
Tewkesbury
Gloucestershire GL20 7SP

21/11/2019 Compliance 
with 
Condition(s)

P
age 120


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of previous meeting
	Minutes

	6 Members Site Visit
	7 Application No: 19/0070/GLMAJW (District Reference 19/01060/DCC) Site: Allstone Sand And Gravel Centre
	8 Application No: 19/0036CHREG3  Site: St John's Primary School, Albion Street, Cheltenham, Gloucestershire GL52 2SN
	9 Second Review Gloucestershire Statement of Community Involvement
	Planning Committee - 2nd Review of the Statement of Community Involvemen...

	10 Delegated Decisions

